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Okmetic in brief
Okmetic supplies innovative silicon-based solutions for the 
semiconductor industry, especially for sensor manufacturing. 
Okmetic is the world’s leading sensor wafer manufacturer 
and a technological pioneer. The company has production 
plants in Finland and the United States, and contract 
manufacturing in Japan and China. Okmetic’s own sales 
organisation serves customers in the United States,  
Japan and Hong Kong. In addition, the company has sales 
agents in China, Korea, Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and  
the United States. Okmetic, founded in 1985, is listed on 
Nasdaq Helsinki.



Value of deliveries per  
market area

Value of deliveries per  
customer area

The year 2014

Key Figures

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Net sales 74,104 68,516
Operating profit before depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) 12,985

 
10,905

Operating profit 6,401 5,031
% of net sales 8.6 7.3
Profit for the period 4,832 3,842
Basic earnings per share, euro 0.29 0.23
Net cash flow from operating activities 12,478 9,726
Net interest-bearing liabilities -1,110 6,530
Equity ratio, % 70.5 68.2
Average number of personnel during the period 370 363

In 2014, Okmetic’s net sales grew by 8.2 percent, 
clearly outperforming the silicon wafer industry 
as a whole (growth 1.2%). Operating profit grew 
by 27 percent to 6.4 million euro, accounting for 
8.6 percent of net sales. The value of deliveries 
in sensor wafers and other high value-added 
products in this category surged by 13.5 percent, 
and their share in the total value of deliveries 
rose to 63 percent. Healthy growth was seen in 
Europe and, in particular, in Asia.
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13.5%
growth in the value of  
the high value-added  

wafer deliveriesOkmetic’s growth was 
due to improved sales 
in its core business, 

silicon wafers.



The year 2014 saw Okmetic return to a growth 
path. Net sales amounted to 74.1 million euro, up 
8.2 percent from last year. Growth in the silicon 
wafer industry lagged behind at 1.2 percent, 
meaning that the company once again outper-
formed the rest of the silicon wafer market.  
What is particularly pleasing is that Okmetic’s 
growth was due to improved sales in its core 
business, silicon wafers. In the semiconductor 
market as a whole, sales growth in 2014 was 
stronger than in the previous years and the 
market value reached a new record high at 
approximately 350 billion US dollars.

Okmetic’s strategy is to focus on the manufacture and 
sales of advanced sensor wafers and other high value-
added silicon wafers. This strategic choice has been sup-
ported by investments and product development projects 
executed in 2010–2014, with more planned for the coming 
years. The chosen strategy sets Okmetic apart from the 
rest of the silicon wafer industry, as is perhaps best illus-
trated by this fact: Despite a drop of approximately 10 
percent in the average price level in the silicon wafer mar-
ket, the company was able to increase the average prices 
of its silicon wafers by approximately six percent.

Okmetic has set a long-term target of a minimum 
10-percent organic growth in the sensor wafer business 

per annum, a target it has already achieved in the ten-year 
period 2005–2014. In view of the growth outlook for the 
market, Okmetic seems well placed to remain on target 
going forward. There is no need to adjust the strategy in 
this respect. The use of sensor technology is significantly 
increasing in different types of applications for consumer 
electronics, automotive industry and Internet of Things. 
Okmetic has a strong market position as a supplier for the 
key players in the industry.

Sales development in 2014 was twofold. Value of deliv-
eries of sensor and other high value-added wafers 
increased by 13.5 percent, whereas the value of semicon-
ductor wafer deliveries declined by 5.2 percent. The share 
of the high value-added products in the total value of 
deliveries has been growing for several years now, rising to 
63 percent in 2014. Europe (40 percent of all deliveries) 
and North America (38 percent) were the largest market 
areas, but Asia saw the fastest growth.

Costs were tightly managed. Sales grew at a faster 
rate than key cost items. This improved the company’s 
sales margin, operating profit before depreciation and 
amortisation (EBITDA), and operating profit both in abso-
lute and relative terms. Operating profit grew to 6.4 million 
euro, accounting for 8.6 percent of net sales. Okmetic has 
a long-term operating profit target of 10 percent, which 
appears very much achievable in light of the improved 
product mix.

Okmetic’s working capital is being burdened by a poly-
silicon inventory with a balance sheet value of around 7–8 
million euro in surplus of the company’s crystal growing 

needs comprising nearly one-third of the working capital at 
the end of 2014. This surplus is the result of binding long-
term purchase contracts related to the growing of solar 
crystals from own raw material, which Okmetic ended in 
2012 to adjust to changes in the market. The last of these 
contracted polysilicon deliveries will take place in spring 
2016, after which the company will be able to gradually 
reduce its inventory and working capital to a normal level.

Growth in the semiconductor industry is expected to be 
slightly more moderate in 2015 than that seen in 2014. The 
strengthening of the US dollar in late 2014 and early 2015 
is beneficial to Okmetic. It is, however, difficult to antici-
pate exchange rate fluctuations or predict how the volatile 
macroeconomic environment will affect development this 
year. Nevertheless, Okmetic seems well placed to continue 
to develop its business in line with its strategy in 2015, 
too.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our com-
mitted personnel, customers, shareholders and other 
stakeholders for their trust, without which it would be dif-
ficult to run a successful business. We will do our utmost 
to be worthy of this trust also in the future.

Vantaa, February 2015

Kai Seikku
President

RETURN TO GROWTH IN 2014
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Customers 
Okmetic supplies tailor-
made silicon wafers for the 
semiconductor industry, especially 
for sensor manufacturing. The 
company produces solutions 
that enhance its customers’ 
competitiveness and profitability.

core  
competencies
	Crystal growing 

	Manufacturing of 		
	 advanced sensor wafers

	Customer relationships

Objectives 
Okmetic’s strategic objective is profitable growth, 
based on the company’s core competencies and on 
commercialization of long-term product 
development schemes. The company has set as its 
financial objectives organic growth of sensor wafer 
business at 10 percent per annum or more, and an 
operating profit corresponding to 10 percent of net 
sales or more.

Prerequisites 
Personnel’s know-how, efficient and 
flexible in-house production, reliable 
contract manufacturers as well as 
worldwide sales network create the 
prerequisites for profitable growth.
Contract manufacturing enhances 
flexibility of the production capacity.

Strategic choices 

vision

Best partner 
To be the best partner  

for the customers

Inspiring 
workplace 
To offer an inspiring  

and challenging high-tech  
workplace for its personnel

Profitable  
growth   

To grow profitably and  
add shareholder value

The values guiding Okmetic’s operations
Customer orientation and co-operation / Know-how and continuous improvement / Profitability

Global market 
leader 

To be the global market leader 
and technological pioneer in 
silicon-based solutions in its 

chosen customer areas

okmetic annual report 2014 / 6 



production of a silicon wafer

1 2 3 4
Cutting and slicing 

The crystal is then cut, ground  
and sliced into wafers according  
to the customer’s specifications.

Processing 
Next, the wafer is processed mechanically  
and chemically with extreme precision to  

achieve the properties predefined  
by the customer.

Final inspection 
After careful inspection, the wafers are  

then packed and shipped to the customer  
to be used as raw material for sensor 

or semiconductor components.

Crystal growing 
Manufacture of a silicon wafer begins  

by growing a crystal from ultra- 
purepolycrystalline silicon. Many of  

the wafer’s properties are determined  
in crystal growing.
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portable consumer 
products

automobile  
electronics

medical 
applications

Industrial 
process control

Okmetic ’s customers 
manufacture the compo-
nents either on top of or 
inside the silicon wafers.
Finally, the components 
are packed and installed 
in end products.

okmetic’s customers man-
ufacture products for a 
wide range of applications



Okmetic’s silicon wafers are part of a value chain 
producing end-products people use in many areas 
of their everyday lives. In line with its strategy, 
Okmetic focuses especially on high value-added 
silicon wafers. In 2014, the company again 
succeeded in increasing the share of these high 
value-added products in total sales. This has 
helped Okmetic further strengthen its position as 
the leading global supplier of sensor wafers. 

Okmetic’s strategy is to focus on tailor-made, high value-
added products, which currently account for the largest 
share of its silicon wafer sales. The sensors and semicon-
ductors manufactured by Okmetic’s customers are used in 
mobile phones and portable devices, the automotive indus-
try, industrial process control, and medical applications, 
among others. 

Okmetic’s customers benefit from a global sales net-
work as well as worldwide support services. In addition to 
being globally close to the customer, Okmetic’s key com-
petitive advantages include a flexible supply chain, a com-
prehensive product portfolio, in-depth knowledge of crystal 
growing, an extensive MEMS partner network, and a strong 
hold on the MEMS market. In 2014, Okmetic’s sales were 
strongest in Europe, which is home to a large sensor 
manufacturing industry.

Internet of Things driving demand for 
sensor wafers
Different estimates put sales value growth in the sensor 
industry at 6–12 percent in 2014 (IHS, Yole). The growth 
was accelerated by new growth areas, such as Internet of 

customers and markets
Things and wearable electronics (smart watches, for exam-
ple). With the emergence of these new growth areas, sen-
sors will play an increasingly important role in our everyday 
lives.

The increasing use of portable devices with versatile 
functionalities and the growing role of electronics in cars 
continue to drive demand for advanced sensor components. 
In the automotive industry, sensors are used, for example, 
in safety features, driver assistance and stability control 
systems. The demand for pressure sensors and micro-
phones, among others, is increasing thanks to strong 
growth in the amount of sensors in portable devices. 

The value of Okmetic’s sensor and other high value-
added wafer deliveries was up by 13.5 percent in 2014, 
bringing their share of the total value of deliveries to 63 
percent. In autumn 2014, the company updated its financial 
targets. It now targets a minimum 10-percent annual 
growth in the sensor wafer business. Okmetic is an indus-
try pioneer in silicon-on-insulator (SOI) technology, which is 
becoming increasingly common in sensor applications that 
require a high level of technological expertise.

Semiconductor sales picking up 
Semiconductor sales are being accelerated by the increas-
ing demand for energy efficiency, more widespread use of 
electronics in cars, proliferation of electric cars, the popu-
larity of portable and wireless consumer products, as well 
as different solutions related to power supply and effi-
ciency improvement. The global semiconductor industry is 
anticipated to post record-high sales for 2014. Year-on-
year growth is estimated to have been 6–7 percent (WSTS, 
SIA, IHS). Due to the global fall in semiconductor wafer 
prices the value of Okmetic’s semiconductor wafer deliver-
ies dropped by approximately five percent in 2014.

Okmetic aims to be a reliable, quick and flexible niche 
supplier of wafers to customers in the semiconductor 
industry. The company’s key expertise is in wafers that are 
used as a platform for discrete and power semiconductors 
and in solutions for power supply and efficiency improve-
ment. In addition to serving the semiconductor industry, 
Okmetic supplies material to the solar cell industry. 

Market growth forecasted for  
the coming years
The value of sales in the sensor industry is estimated to 
increase by 6–11 percent in 2015, with annual growth pre-
dicted at 7–13 percent in the following years (IHS, Yole). 
The growth estimates for the semiconductor industry sales 
in US dollars suggest an increase of 3–8 percent in 2015, 
with growth expected to continue into 2016 (WSTS, 
Gartner, IHS, IC Insights).

According to estimates by Semiconductor Equipment 
and Materials International (SEMI), shipments for silicon 
wafers, measured in surface area, grew by 11 percent in 
2014. If realised, this would result in a record high level. For 
2015–2017, SEMI’s estimate for surface area growth in sili-
con wafer shipments is 3–5 percent.
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It is central for 
Okmetic to be genuinely 
close to the customers 
and to understand their 
needs and production 

processes.

Global customer service 
and technical support 

Wide know-how is required in the 
customer interface. From the left,  
Sales and Export Coordinator Birjetta 
Takki, Product Information Specialist 
Jouni Tiilikainen, Customer Support 
Engineer Matti Soininen and Team 
Leader, Customer Support Hannu Aro.



Okmetic offers an extensive portfolio of silicon 
wafers tailored to the needs of sensor and 
semiconductor industries. The company develops 
its product offering and processes considering 
customer needs and technological trends. In 2014, 
Okmetic spent approximately three percent of its 
net sales on research and development.

In Okmetic’s extensive range of wafers, customers can find 
an optimal platform for even the most demanding applica-
tions, since the products are tailor-made to meet each 
customer’s specific needs. Okmetic manufactures 100–
200mm diameter single- and double-side polished wafers, 
SOI wafers, as well as wafers with epitaxial layers of vari-
ous thicknesses. In addition, the company sells solar crys-
tals to the solar cell industry.

During 2014, Okmetic continued to increase its produc-
tion capacity and performance in 200mm wafers. The 
development work on High Voltage SOI wafers and the 
incorporation of Through Silicon Vias (TSV) in C-SOI wafers 
increases the possible application areas for these types of 
wafers. Another major focus of Okmetic’s development 
efforts in 2014 was a new, highly advanced SOI process 
that will enable reducing the film thickness of a SOI layer. 
SOI wafers are used in the manufacture of advanced MEMS 
sensors and power management circuits. In 2014, signifi-
cant advances were also made in the development of sili-
con for radio frequency (RF) applications, with improve-
ments in both crystal growing and wafer manufacture.

products and product development
Continuous product and process 
development to meet customer needs
Okmetic’s success builds on its pioneering technological 
capability, backed by competent people, the right kind of 
product portfolio, and an efficient and flexible manufactur-
ing process. To further improve in these areas, the com-
pany has clear roadmaps for future development work. 
Okmetic works closely with customers to develop new 
products and processes, as well as to boost performance in 
its current offering.

Okmetic has for several years applied Lean and Six 
Sigma methodologies in order to improve productivity and 
yield. The year 2014 was yet another step forward in pro-
ductivity. The biggest improvement was in SOI manufacture 
where productivity was up by more than 30 percent, thanks 
to strong demand, sustained efforts, and new high-perfor-
mance equipment. 

Synergies between different product areas allow 
Okmetic to offer an extensive product range that meets 
the needs of multiple application areas. An agile and flexible 
supply chain, which also holds fab-lite capacity, means that 
the company can make use of its know-how and produc-
tion equipment across different types of products. This 
makes it easier to ride out market cycles and ensures that 
high quality can be maintained throughout.

Taking research to a new level through 
networking
Okmetic is actively involved in collaborative research with 
different partners. Networking allows the company to con-
tinually build on its technological expertise and also share 

know-how. In 2014, Okmetic continued its long-term 
research into silicon material together with Finnish and 
foreign universities and research institutions. The company 
also participated in a number of Finnish and EU-funded 
technology projects. 

One significant project for Okmetic is the EM4EM 
(Electro¬Magnetic Reliability of Electronic Systems for 
Electro Mobility), led by Audi. The project received the 
CATRENE Innovation Award 2014 at the European Nano-
electronics Forum at the end of the year. Okmetic also 
participates in four major ENIAC (European Technology 
Platform for Nanoelectronics) projects.

The year also saw Okmetic continue its successful col-
laboration with VTT Technical Research Centre and Aalto 
University in Finland, the Institute of Microelectronics in 
Singapore, and different units of the Fraunhofer Institute 
in Germany, among others. Okmetic also participated 
actively in member events organised by associations in the 
sensor and semiconductor industries. In Finland, Okmetic 
continued its involvement in the MemsCat cluster, of which 
the company is a founding member.
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Quality Manager Sari Pirhonen 
has a long history at Okmetic 
working with quality and 
environmental matters.

Okmetic also develops the 
quality and eco-friendliness 

of its operations in 
close collaboration with 

customers.

In 2014, the average 
of VDA process audit 

results was 

92%  
 (a maximum of 100%)

During recent years, 
a significant part of 

customer audits has been 
carried out according to 
VDA 6.3 Process Audit 
requirements of the 
automobile industry.



Okmetic systematically works to improve the 
competence and well-being of its employees. In 
2014, there were several training programmes 
and well-being projects on-going. The year also 
saw Okmetic publish its Corporate Social Respon-
sibility Policy. Meanwhile, operational processes 
were further enhanced to ensure a high level of 
quality, which is of top priority for Okmetic.

By investing in professional competence and multi-skilled 
personnel, Okmetic has achieved a significant improvement 
in productivity and in its flexibility to adapt to market 
changes. The company is committed to a culture of con-
tinuous improvement when it comes to its people – its 
most valuable asset. There are regular performance 
appraisals to support professional development of employ-
ees and to monitor progress towards the agreed objectives. 
The company also organises employee training to 
strengthen its skills base, as well as to promote well-being 
and safety at work. 

The two-year training for team leaders in production, 
leading to a Specialist Qualification in Technology, contin-
ued in 2014. With this training, Okmetic aims to boost 
production and further improve its operational efficiency. 
The company also launched a two-year training programme 
for all blue-collar employees, designed to enhance interac-
tion and process efficiency. Meanwhile, the areas for devel-
opment in leadership were addressed through supervisor 
training, and Okmetic’s supervisors benefited from 360 
degree feedback. An outline of the duties and competency 
requirements of employees working in a supervisory role 
were defined together with supervisors.

personnel, quality and environment
personnel well-being contributes to a 
comfortable and safe work environment
In promoting well-being at work, one of the key objectives 
is to take care of the physical condition and mental vitality 
of the employees. To this end, Okmetic works closely with 
its provider of occupational healthcare services. At the 
beginning of 2014, Okmetic joined the Good Work – Longer 
Career project run by the Federation of Finnish Technology 
Industries. As part of the project, Okmetic employees com-
pleted a questionnaire (Individual Radar) on well-being at 
work. The results were discussed and analysed together 
with employee representatives to pinpoint areas for devel-
opment and set priorities for future action. A number of 
measures were put in place to improve well-being for eve-
ryone at Okmetic.

As a result of other practical measures in 2014, the 
employees benefited from periodic health checks, eye tests, 
gym instruction and improved workstation ergonomics. The 
activities of the senior club for employees above the age of 
50 continued, and a range of physical and cultural activities 
were organised by Okmetic’s recreation committee. 

Employee well-being is greatly influenced by health and 
safety at work. Okmetic operates on the principle that 
even one accident is too many. Any accidents or near 
misses are communicated across the company so as to 
avoid similar incidents in the future. In 2014, particular 
attention was given to eye and hearing protection. As a 
preventive measure, the company introduced stricter guide-
lines for eye protection in its production facilities and also 
provided all production workers with new safety glasses. 
The number of accidents at work dropped by 11 percent 
from the previous year. 

Transparency in social responsibility
At Okmetic, the principles of sustainable development are 
embedded in the day-to-day running of the business. In 
2014, the company formulated and published a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy that is consistent with the 
Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition (EICC®) Code of 
Conduct. This policy document outlines Okmetic’s guiding 
principles with regard to human resources, occupational 
health and safety, the environment, business ethics, and 
management. Most of the requirements were already being 
met at Okmetic, but having them compiled into a single 
document serves to increase transparency of Okmetic’s 
operations. 

Okmetic’s quality and environmental management is 
based on certified operational systems, development pro-
jects, and the use of quality tools. The development of 
operational processes was one of the focus areas for 2014, 
and the company invested in measuring equipment, among 
others. The experiences and insights from project activities 
and the use of quality tools are regularly discussed at 
Okmetic’s Six Sigma Forum.

Okmetic maintains quality and environmental manage-
ment systems in accordance with the ISO 9001:2008, ISO 
14001:2004 and TS 16949:2009 standards. It also complies 
with the requirements of REACH regulation, RoHS directive 
and GADSL. Okmetic’s quality system allows the flexibility 
to meet individual customer wishes, supporting the com-
pany to maintain its role as a supplier of tailor-made silicon 
wafers.
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board of directors’ report

Okmetic is a technology company, which supplies tailor-
made silicon wafers for sensor and semiconductor indus-
tries. In line with its strategy, Okmetic focuses on high 
value-added silicon wafers. In 2014, Okmetic managed to 
further increase the share of high value-added silicon 
wafers in its total sales. 

Okmetic is a global market leader in sensor wafers that 
are used as platform for demanding silicon-based MEMS 
sensors. Several significant sensor manufacturers in 
Europe,  North America and Asia are Okmetic’s customers. 
The company provides its customers with solutions that 
enhance their competitiveness and profitability.

The company’s products are based on high-tech exper-
tise that generates added value for customers, on innova-
tive product development, and on efficient production pro-
cess. Okmetic supplies silicon wafers with a diameter of 
100–200mm to sensor and semiconductor industries. Sili-
con-on-insulator (SOI) -technology is increasingly used in 
manufacturing sensors, which demand high technological 
expertise. Okmetic is one of the pioneer companies in SOI 
technology. 

Okmetic has a global customer base and sales network. 
The company has production plants in Finland and the US, 
sales offices in Japan and Hong Kong, and contract manu-
facturers in Japan and China. The globally operating supply 
chain is based on in-house crystal growing as well as on 
in-house and outsourced silicon wafer manufacturing. 

The company has set as its financial objectives: organic 
growth of sensor wafer business at 10 percent per annum 
or more, and operating profit corresponding to 10 percent 
of net sales or more.

MARKETS 

Customer industries sensor and  
semiconductor industries

Sensor industry
According to different estimates, the sales value of sensor 
industry increased by 6-12 percent in 2014 compared to 
the previous year. Sensor sales growth has been acceler-
ated especially by the increasing use of mobile applications. 
In 2015, the sales value of sensor industry is estimated to 
grow by 6-11 percent, and annual growth of 7-13 percent is 
forecasted for the next few years. In terms of volume, sen-
sor shipments are likely to clearly rise to a new record in 
2015. (IHS, Yole) 

Certain silicon-based microelectromechanical (MEMS) 
products within the sensor segment have higher sales 
growth than the others. The increasing amount of sensors 
in mobile devices has significantly accelerated the demand 
of e.g. pressure sensors and microphones. Silicon-on-insu-
lator (SOI) technology is increasingly used in the manufac-
ture of these products, among others.

Semiconductor industry
In the last quarter of 2014, semiconductor industry’s sales 
in US dollars continued to grow exceeding the level of cor-
responding period in 2013 by nine percent (SIA). Annual 
sales in 2014 reached a new record. The estimates settle 
between 339-353 billion US dollars, corresponding to an 
annual growth of 6-7 percent (WSTS, SIA, IHS). 

The semiconductor market is forecasted to grow 3-8 
percent in 2015, and the growth is anticipated to continue 
in 2016 (WSTS, Gartner, IHS, IC Insights).

Net sales
million euro

2010	 2011	 2012	 2013	 2014
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Key figures

1,000 euro

1 Jan– 
31 Dec 
 2014

1 Jan– 
31 Dec  

2013

1 Jan– 
31 Dec 

2012

Net sales 74,104 68,516 83,074
Operating profit before 
depreciation and amortisation 
(EBITDA) 12,985 10,905 13,864
Operating profit 6,401 5,031 8,018
% of net sales 8.6 7.3 9.7
Profit for the period 4,832 3,842 5,089
Basic earnings per share, euro 0.29 0.23 0.31
Net cash flow from operating 
activities 12,478 9,726 9,425
Net interest-bearing liabilities -1,110 6,530 -1,688
Equity ratio, % 70.5 68.2 72.2
Average number of personnel 
during the period 370 363 368
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Silicon wafer market
According to the estimate published by SMG, the group of 
silicon wafer suppliers in SEMI (a global umbrella organisa-
tion for semiconductor materials and equipment industry), 
the surface area of silicon wafer shipments grew 11 percent 
in 2014 and reached a record-high level. In the fourth quar-
ter, shipments were two percent lower than in the third 
quarter, but almost 15 percent higher than in the fourth 
quarter of 2013 (in surface area). In years 2015-2017, sur-
face area is estimated to grow around 3-5 percent annually 
(Infiniti Research, SEMI). The long decrease in total value of 
the silicon wafer shipmentes in US dollars ended, and the 
market grew by 1.2 percent.  

The key customer areas for Okmetic in  
the silicon wafer market
In line with its strategy, Okmetic seeks niches in the silicon 
wafer market, where growth exceeds market average and 
in which the company has special expertise. Okmetic sup-
plies primarily 150mm and 200mm wafers. The sensor/
MEMS industry is a key growth area for Okmetic. MEMS 
market grows as portable consumer products, automotive 
electronics, and industrial process control increase. 

In the semiconductor market, Okmetic’s growth areas 
include wafers for production of discrete and power semi-
conductors. In these wafer markets, areas for growth 
include, among others, components used in the production 
of renewable energy, increasing automotive electronics, 
electric cars, portable consumer products, as well as differ-
ent solutions related to power supply and efficiency 
improvement.

SALES
In 2014, Okmetic’s net sales increased by 8.2 percent 
(down 17.5%) from the previous year amounting to 74.1 
(68.5) million euro. Value of sensor wafer deliveries grew by 
13.5 percent, while value of semiconductor wafer deliveries 
decreased by 5.2 percent. Value of Other business deliver-
ies amounted to 2.6 (2.4) million euro in 2014.

Value of deliveries per customer area

1 Jan–31 Dec
2014

1 Jan–31 Dec
2013

1 Jan–31 Dec
2012

Sensor wafers 63% 59% 47%
Semiconductor wafers 33% 37% 38%

Other business 4% 4% 15%

The demand for sensor wafers was strong in 2014 and 
grew compared to 2013. The strong growth in production 
and delivery volumes of the strategically important SOI 
wafers compared to the corresponding period a year ago 
was particularly positive. The use of sensors and their 
requirement level are expected to continue growing. Sensor 
applications are increasing in the automotive industry and 
in portable devices like smart phones, cameras, game con-
soles, and wearable electronics, such as smart watches. 

Value of deliveries of Okmetic’s semiconductor wafers 
decreased in 2014. The third quarter was the best in terms 
of delivery value, which is typical of the industry. 

Other business sales were at the previous year’s level 
in 2014. The declined price level in the solar cell industry 
did not enable profitable growing of solar crystals.

Value of deliveries per market area

1 Jan–31 Dec
2014

1 Jan–31 Dec
2013

1 Jan–31 Dec
2012

North America 38% 42% 37%
Europe 40% 40% 27%

Asia 22% 18% 35%

Okmetic’s value of deliveries grew strongly in Asia, which is 
Okmetic’s smallest market region. Also in Europe, Okmetic’s 
value of deliveries saw strong growth in 2014, thanks to 
good demand for sensor wafers, although the European 
share of total value of deliveries stayed at the previous 
year’s level. On the contrary, North American sales some-
what decreased.

The demand for sensor wafers grew in all market areas 
in 2014. Value of deliveries rose especially in Asia, but sig-
nificantly also in Europe. The demand for semiconductor 
wafers grew in Asia from the previous year, but decreased 
in Europe and North America.

PROFITABILITY
In January-December, Okmetic’s operating profit was 6.4 
(5.0) million euro and accounted for 8.6 (7.3) percent of net 
sales. Improvement in operating profit was due to strong 
growth in sensor wafer sales, especially in SOI wafer sales, 
as well as successful management of fixed costs, which 
grew clearly at a slower rate than sales. Operating profit 
improved by 1.4 million euro from the comparison period, 
although depreciations were 0.7 million euro higher. Profit 
for the period was 4.8 (3.8) million euro.

Basic earnings per share was 0.29 (0.23) euro. Diluted 
earnings per share was 0.29 (0.22) euro.

FINANCING
The company’s financial situation is solid. In 2014, net cash 
flow from operations amounted to 12.5 (9.7) million euro. 
Especially in the fourth quarter the net cash generated 
from operating activities was good, totaling 6.3 (4.9) million 
euro. 

On 31 December 2014, the company’s interest-bearing 
liabilities amounted to 13.3 (11.7) million euro. Okmetic is 
one of the issuer companies in a multi-issuer bond totaling 
70 million euro and guaranteed by Garantia Insurance Com-
pany Ltd. Okmetic’s allocated amount of the bond is five 
million euro. The maturity of this guaranteed, fixed rate 
(coupon at 1.85%), bullet multi-issuer bond is five years. 
Bond was issued on 18 June 2014. In December, the com-
pany paid back its one-million-euro credit facility, which 
had a maturity of three years. 

At the end of 2014, cash and cash equivalents 
amounted to 14.4 (5.2) million euro. On 31 December 2014, 
the company’s net interest-bearing liabilities amounted to 
-1.1 (6.5) million euro. The group has ensured liquidity with 
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committed credit facilities of 6.0 million euro. On 31 Decem-
ber 2014, the committed credit facilities were unused. 

Return on equity amounted to 8.0 (6.4) percent. At the 
end of the year, the company’s equity ratio was 70.5 (68.2) 
percent. Equity per share was 3.77 (3.43) euro. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
In 2014, Okmetic’s capital expenditure amounted to 3.6 
(7.6) million euro. The investments were directed mainly to 
the performance and capacity increases for SOI and 
200mm wafers. In addition, investments were made in 
debottlenecking, automatisation and equipment renewal in 
production.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
In 2014, the company expensed 2.5 (2.8) million euro in 
product development projects. Product development costs 
accounted for 3.3 (4.1) percent of net sales and were not 
capitalised. 

During 2014, Okmetic continued to increase its produc-
tion capacity and performance in 200mm wafers. Develop-
ment work with High Voltage SOI wafers and with the 
incorporation of Through Silicon Vias (TSV) in C-SOI wafers 
continued. Another major focus of Okmetic’s development 
efforts in 2014 was a new, highly advanced SOI process. In 
2014, significant advances were also made in the develop-
ment of silicon for radio frequency (RF) applications, with 
improvements in both crystal growing and wafer manufac-
ture.

In 2014, Okmetic continued its long-term research of 
silicon material with universities and research institutions 
in Finland and abroad, and participated also in several Finn-
ish and EU-funded technology projects. Successful collabo-
ration, among others, with VTT Technical Research Centre 
of Finland, Aalto University, Institute of Microelectronics in 
Singapore and, and different units of the Fraunhofer Insti-
tute in Germany continued in 2014. Okmetic also partici-
pated actively in member events of sensor and semicon-
ductor associations. In Finland, Okmetic continued its 

involvement in the MemsCat cluster, of which the company 
is a founding member.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Okmetic has voluntarily adopted The Electronic Industry 
Citizenship Coalition (EICC®) Code of Conduct. Okmetic’s 
corporate social responsibility policy is formulated based on 
this guidance.

Okmetic encourages its subcontractors to social 
responsibility and requires them to agree with the princi-
ples of corporate social responsibility policy. 

Okmetic’s suppliers are informed about the principles 
and requirements of the corporate social responsibility pol-
icy. With suppliers and customers, Okmetic operates in 
accordance with the ethical principles of the corporate 
social responsibility policy.  

Okmetic’s corporate social responsibility policy covers 
human resources, occupational health and safety, the envi-
ronment, business ethics, and management system. It can 
be found on the company website www.okmetic .
com>Okmetic>Social responsibility.

PERSONNEL
Competent, motivated and content personnel is a prerequi-
site for Okmetic’s growth and success. This is described in 
the company values as well as in the human resources and 
quality policies of the company.

On average, Okmetic employed 370 (363) people in 
2014. At the end of the year, Okmetic employed 367 (355) 
people of which 321 worked in Finland, 40 in the US, five in 
Japan, and one in Hong Kong.

Women accounted for 27 (26) percent and men 73 (74) 
percent of the personnel. White-collar employees accounted 
for 37 (38) percent and blue-collar employees for 63 (62) 
percent of the personnel. The average age of Okmetic’s 
employees was 44 (44) years and the average length of 
employment was 11.7 (11.6) years. 

Throughout the organisation, salaries and bonuses are 
based on the level of skills required in each position. In 
2014, salaries and bonuses amounted to 21.7 (20.3) million 
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euro including 0.3 (0.2) million euro expenses of the share 
reward schemes. The group’s parent company complies 
with the collective labour agreements of the Federation of 
Finnish Technology Industries.

All employee groups at Okmetic are eligible for an 
incentive scheme. The possible production bonuses for 
blue-collar employees are paid monthly according to the 
achievement of set targets. White-collar employees are 
subject to a profit-sharing scheme, which is based on 
annual targets approved by the board of directors relating 
to the group’s profitability, financial situation, and operative 
performance. 

In 2014, Okmetic arranged an average of 2.2 (1.9) train-
ing days per employee. The production team leaders of the 
Vantaa plant (30 people) participated in an apprenticeship 
programme leading to a Specialist Qualification in Technol-
ogy. The blue-collar employees of the Vantaa plant (approx. 
200 people) started a customised two-year training pro-
gramme which is aimed at improving productivity, profes-
sional skills and the fluency of work processes. 

A 360º feedback survey was conducted with Okmetic’s 
supervisors and senior management. A training event was 
organised with supervisors to review the feedback and 
together develop the supervisor’s role. A supervisor’s job 
description was formulated, including competency require-
ments. Coaching on cooperation and interaction was organ-
ised for the order processing, product and production plan-
ning teams. Further role-specific training was provided on 
topics including chemicals, finances and production equip-
ment.

Okmetic joined the Good Work – Longer Career project 
run by the Federation of Finnish Technology Industries. 
Further, Okmetic’s employees completed the Individual 
Radar questionnaire on well-being at work. The results 
were discussed with employees’ representatives using the 
Company Radar method, and areas for development were 
prioritised. The first development measures were targeted 
at improving everyday interaction, developing the supervi-
sors’ role and training of employees.

Existing occupational well-being activities were contin-
ued. These included the senior club for employees above 
the age of 50 as well as physical and cultural activities 
available to all employees. 

More information on personnel is given in the appendi-
ces of the board of directors’ report.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
In occupational safety, Okmetic’s target is zero accidents 
at work. To this end, the company strives to maintain up-
to-date risk assessments in production and ensure employ-
ees’ awareness of health and safety requirements. The 
occupational safety status is continuously monitored at 
different operational levels. Close-call situations and acci-
dents at work are analysed and reported immediately. 
Okmetic’s occupational safety committee convenes regu-
larly and carries out scheduled visits. Order and cleanliness 
are integral elements of occupational safety. The ‘5S’ tar-
gets are monitored in production by work phase. 

In 2014, the number of accidents at work dropped by 11 
percent (grew by 36%) from the previous year. Work place 
-related injury frequency in 2014 was 7.2 (5.5). Work place 
-related injury frequency is measured as the number of 
accidents resulting in three or more days of absence, 
divided by the number of hours worked (in millions). 

Okmetic’s occupational healthcare services are provided 
by an external service provider. Targets are set with regard 
to employees’ occupational health, the quality of services 
as well as cost level. Occupational health is monitored 
through quarterly reviews with the service provider. 
Okmetic has focused on the prevention of musculoskeletal 
disorders by carrying out ergonomics studies and improve-
ments both in production and office environment.

The number of sickness absences was down from the 
previous year. The number of working days lost due to 
sickness or injury in 2014 amounted to 3.2 (3.5) percent of 
total hours worked. In 2014, Okmetic’s disability pension 
insurance contribution category was 4 (4). In 2015, the cat-
egory is 1.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
Okmetic recognises the environmental risks associated 
with its operations. The company devises both a company-
wide risk management plan and plans for individual pro-
cesses. Ecologically sustainable operations support Okmet-
ic’s competitiveness and profitability.

Measures devised for eliminating environmental risks 
are integrated to Okmetic’s operational processes. Environ-
mental considerations are factored into the development of 
products and operations in line with continuous improve-
ment principles. Planning of preventive measures is a fun-
damental part of environmental risk management.

Okmetic follows the development in environmental reg-
ulation in Finland and abroad, and adjusts its operations 
according to regulatory requirements. 

Okmetic’s environmental programme had three objec-
tives in 2014: to save silicon material through the use of a 
new wire saw, to make more efficient use of polysilicon in 
crystal growing, and to enhance communication about 
Okmetic’s performance in corporate responsibility. Results 
in the first two areas have been promising, and the work is 
set to continue in the environmental programme for 2015. 
The third objective was achieved according to plan.

Okmetic follows the chemical regulations of the Euro-
pean Union (REACH) and all Okmetic’s products meet the 
requirements set in the RoHS-directive.

Okmetic has ISO 9001:2008, TS 16949:2009, and ISO 
14001:2004 certified quality and environmental systems 
both at Vantaa and Allen plants. Okmetic expects its most 
important subcontractors and suppliers to comply with the 
ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 certifications.

Okmetic had no major environmental non-conformities 
in 2014. Okmetic’s environmental management methods 
were found to match the high requirement level of interna-
tional customer companies. The company is not subject to 
emissions trading regulations. 

The company has assessed its consumption of energy, 
use of polysilicon, amount of acid waste as well as con-
sumption of water and chemicals to have a significant 

environmental impact. The development of these factors is 
monitored regularly.

The key figures related to environmental protection at 
the Vantaa plant in 2014 are as follows:

2014 2013

Energy consumption (GWh) 
Electricity 30.5 28.5

District heating 4.7 5.1

Water consumption (tm3)
Water 575 590
Waste water 486 496

Waste volumes (tn)
Hazardous waste 265 254

Ordinary waste 371 368

All waste can be recycled. No landfill waste is produced. 
Okmetic does not publish a separate environmental 

report in addition to the board of directors’ report.

BUSINESS RISKS 
There have been no significant changes in the company’s 
near future business risks and uncertainties. However, the 
picture of macro economy, which has become more unclear, 
may indirectly have an influence also on Okmetic’s busi-
ness. 

Okmetic’s business is confronted by risks, which may 
arise from the company’s operations or changes in its 
operating environment. Risks that, if materialised, can have 
an adverse effect on the company’s operations and valua-
tion are described below. 

Okmetic’s silicon wafer sales are targeted at the sensor 
and semiconductor producers in the electronics industry. 
The demand for semiconductor wafers is sensitive to eco-
nomic fluctuations, and changes in the market situation 
can be sudden and dramatic. The demand for sensor 
wafers is more stable. The proliferation of sensors in con-
sumer electronics applications may, however, increase the 
susceptibility of this market too to economic fluctuations. 
Other business sales have in the previous years mainly 

Major shareholders on 31 Dec 2014

Shareholders
Shares,

pcs
Share,

%

Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company 1,004,985 5.8
Ingman Finance Oy Ab 900,000 5.2

Mandatum Life Insurance Company Limited 800,000 4.6

The State Pension Fund 600,000 3.5
Nordea Nordic Small Cap Fund 528,810 3.1

Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company 477,175 2.8
Okmetic Oyj 416,763 2.4

Etra-Invest Oy Ab  400,000 2.3
Sijoitusrahasto Taaleritehdas  
Arvo Markka Osake 300,100 1.7

Sijoitusrahasto Taaleritehdas Mikro Markka 230,000 1.3

Foreign investors and nominee accounts held 
by custodian banks 2,836,589 16.4
Other 8,793,078 50.9

Total 17,287,500 100.0
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Shareholders by group on 31 Dec 2014

Groups
Shares,

pcs
Share,

 %

Corporations 3,373,168 19.5
Financial and insurance institutions 1,942,960 11.2

Public organisations 2,085,368 12.1

Non-profit organisations 221,449 1.3
Households 6,827,966 39.5

Foreign investors and nominee accounts 
held by custodian banks 2,836,589 16.4
Total 17,287,500 100.0

consisted of selling solar materials to the solar cell indus-
try. Okmetic has existing polysilicon purchasing obligations 
partly until 2016. Since the price level of the solar cell mar-
ket has dropped, the validity of long-term polysilicon pur-
chase contracts typical of the industry may cause a price 
risk. 

Okmetic’s share of the global silicon wafer market is 
around one percent, and the market prices have a notable 
effect on the price development of Okmetic’s products. The 
company has considerable pricing power only in its own 
special products. The pricing of other wafers is largely 
based on global market price.

Okmetic operates globally, and therefore the company’s 
business is affected by risks due to exchange rate fluctua-
tions, consisting of cash flows from purchases and sales. A 
significant part of sales is conducted in US dollars. Despite 
hedging of the forecasted open currency position, the com-
pany remains exposed to exchange rate fluctuations. 

Substantial amounts of electricity are used in Okmetic’s 
production. Despite hedging, the company is exposed to 
fluctuations in the price of electricity. 

SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS
On 31 December 2014, Okmetic Oyj’s paid-up share capital, 
as entered in the Finnish Trade Register, was 11,821,250.00 
euro. The number of shares was 17,287,500. The shares 
have no nominal value attached. Each share entitles to one 
vote at general meetings. The company has one class of 
shares. The company’s shares are included in the Finnish 
book-entry system.

PRICE DEVELOPMENT AND TRADING
A total of 3.8 (3.4) million shares were traded between 1 
January and 31 December 2014, representing 21.9 (19.6) 
percent of the weighted average of share total of 17.3 
(17.3) million during the period. The lowest quotation of the 
reporting period was 4.28 (4.25) euro, and the highest 5.25 
(5.66) euro, with the average being 4.68 (4.92) euro. The 
closing quotation for the period was 4.83 (4.82) euro. At 

the end of the period, market capitalisation amounted to 
83.5 (83.3) million euro.

Okmetic is listed on the Small Cap list of Nasdaq Hel-
sinki under the trading code OKM1V. According to the 
International Classification Benchmark (ICB) of the 
exchange, Okmetic Oyj is listed under the Technology 
Industry. 

DIVIDENDS PAID
During 2014, there were no dividend payments. 

In April 2013, the company distributed a dividend of 4.3 
million euro for the year 2012 (including dividends distrib-
uted to Okmetic Management Oy, a total of 0.1 million 
euro). The dividend was 0.25 euro per share.

In December 2013, the company distributed an addi-
tional dividend of 3.2 million euro (including dividends dis-
tributed to Okmetic Management Oy, a total of 0.1 million 
euro). The additional dividend was 0.19 euro per share.

OWN SHARES AND DIRECTED SHARE ISSUES
On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dis-
solve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management 
Oy, owned by President Kai Seikku and Deputy to the 
President of that time, Mikko Montonen, with an arrange-
ment in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital 
of Okmetic Management Oy. Also 400,000 shares of 
Okmetic Oyj were transferred to the group via Okmetic 
Management Oy. 

On 16 January 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred in total 
150,000 own shares held by the company to President Kai 
Seikku (140,000 shares) and Deputy to the President of 
that time Mikko Montonen (10,000 shares). Subscription 
price per share was determined using the average trading 
price of the company’s share weighted by trading volume in 
Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, which was 4.9969 
euro. Total value of the deal was 749,535 euro. The deci-
sion to transfer company’s own shares was based on 
authorisation of the board of directors given by the annual 
general meeting on 10 April 2013.

Distribution of shareholdings  
on 31 Dec 2014

Shares,
pcs

Number 
of share

holders

% of 
share
holders

Shares,
pcs

% of 
share 

capital

1-100 1,403 17.4 98,907 0.6
101-500 3,695 45.7 1,084,664 6.3

501-1,000 1,513 18.7 1,243,136 7.2

1,001-5,000 1,258 15.6 2,612,129 15.1
5,001-10,000 109 1.3 777,599 4.5

10,001-50,000 87 1.1 1,969,989 11.4
50,001-100,000 5 0.1 349,520 2.0

100,001-500,000 9 0.1 2,553,208 14.8
500,001- 6 0.1 6,598,348 38.2

Total 8,085 100.0 17,287,500 100.0
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On 13 February 2014, Okmetic Oyj’s board of directors 
announced of its decision to transfer a total of 11,919 own 
shares held by the company as a part of the company’s 
share-based incentive scheme for the executive manage-
ment group, of which the company gave a stock exchange 
release on 12 February 2013. All the shares were issued to 
the members of the executive management group in devia-
tion from the shareholders’ pre-emptive rights (directed 
share issue). The rewards of the share reward programme 
were paid in Okmetic shares and in a monetary amount 
covering taxes. 

According to the decision of the annual general meet-
ing, Okmetic Oyj transferred a total of 15,441 shares to the 
board members as payment of the annual remuneration on 
9 May 2014.

At the end of the year, Okmetic Oyj held a total of 
416,763 (194,123) own shares, which is approximately 2.4 
(1.1) percent of Okmetic’s all shares and votes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party transactions have been described in note 26 
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHORT-TERM OUTLOOK 
The demand for semiconductors is expected to remain on a 
growth track in 2015, although most market forecasts sug-
gest a slower growth rate than that seen in 2014. The sili-
con wafer market is anticipated to remain at the previous 
year’s level in terms of value, with a further decline in 
average prices likely to be compensated by volume growth.

Demand for Okmetic’s sensor and special wafers is 
expected to maintain sustained growth in 2015. The 
demand and price level for these wafers seem to be more 
stable than those for semiconductor wafers, which are 
traditionally more sensitive to economic fluctuations and 
also come under greater price pressure. According to the 
normal seasonal fluctuation, the demand is anticipated to 
be strongest in the second and third quarters.

FINANCIAL GUIDANCE FOR 2015
In 2015, net sales and operating profit are estimated to 
exceed the level of 2014.

OTHER EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dis-
solve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management 
Oy, owned by President Kai Seikku and Deputy to the 
President of that time, Mikko Montonen, with an arrange-
ment in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital 
of Okmetic Management Oy. Also 400,000 shares of 
Okmetic Oyj were transferred to the group via Okmetic 
Management Oy, as well as a loan receivable of Okmetic 
Oyj from Okmetic Management Oy amounting to 498,800 
euro. There were no shareholders of Okmetic Management 
Oy in the board of directors of Okmetic Oyj. The value of 
the arrangement for the part of shares owned by Okmetic 
Management Oy was determined using the average trading 
price weighted by trading volume of the company’s share in 
Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, 4.9969 euro. Okmetic 
Management Oy was merged in the parent company on 30 
November 2014. 

Mikko Montonen, Executive Vice President, Customers 
and Markets, Deputy to the President, resigned from 
Okmetic on 26 February 2014 to assume a new position 
with another company. Mr. Montonen left the company on 
6 April 2014.

Anna-Riikka Vuorikari-Antikainen, earlier Senior Vice 
President, Products, was appointed Senior Vice President, 
Customers and Markets from 7 April 2014. Ms. Vuorikari-
Antikainen is also responsible for technical customer sup-
port.

Atte Haapalinna, earlier Senior Vice President, Customer 
Support, was appointed Senior Vice President, Products 
from 7 April 2014. 

In connection with its Capital Markets Day on 26 Sep-
tember 2014, Okmetic modified its long-term targets as:
•	 Organic growth of sensor wafer business at 10 percent 

per annum or more 

•	 Operating profit to account for 10 percent of net sales 
or more 
This implies no explicit growth target for sales of other 

type of wafers.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
The extraordinary general meeting of Okmetic Oyj was held 
on 12 January 2015. The general meeting decided, in accord-
ance with the proposal of the board of directors, to distrib-
ute a dividend of 0.30 euro per share (in total 5,061,221.10 
euro). The dividend was paid to shareholders who were 
registered in the shareholders’ register maintained by Euro-
clear Finland Ltd. on the dividend record date, 14 January 
2015. The dividend payment took place on 21 January 2015.

As of 1 January 2015, Other business sales is reported 
as part of semiconductor sales due to the significantly 
diminished role of Other business. 

NOTIFICATION OF CHANGES IN HOLDINGS
The company did not receive notifications of changes in 
holdings during 2014. 

MANAGEMENT AND AUDITOR
In 2014, Okmetic’s board of directors comprised Henri 
Österlund as chairman, Tapani Järvinen as vice chairman 
until 9 April, Jan Lång as vice chairman as of 9 April, and 
members of the board Hannu Martola, Mervi Paulasto-
Kröckel and Mikko Puolakka. 

Okmetic Oyj’s president is Kai Seikku. In addition to the 
president, the group’s executive management group 
includes: Atte Haapalinna, Senior Vice President, Products 
(during 1 January – 6 April Mr. Haapalinna was responsible 
for technical customer support); Juha Jaatinen, Senior Vice 
President, Finance, IT and Communications; Jaakko Mon-
tonen, Senior Vice President, Supply Chain; Markus Vir-
tanen, Senior Vice President, Human Resources, Quality 
and Environment; and Anna-Riikka Vuorikari-Antikainen, 
Senior Vice President, Customers and Markets (during 
1 January – 6 April Ms. Vuorikari-Antikainen was responsi-
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ble for Products). Ms. Vuorikari-Antikainen is also responsi-
ble for technical customer support. 

During 2014, members of the executive management 
group included also Mikko Montonen, Executive Vice Presi-
dent, Customers and Markets and Deputy to the President 
until 6 April and Petri Antola, Senior Vice President, Tech-
nology Projects and Solar Materials until 18 December.

The company’s auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy, 
Authorised Public Accountants, with Mikko Nieminen, 
Authorised Public Accountant, acting as the principal audi-
tor.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL 
REGARDING THE USE OF DISTRIBUTABLE 
earnings 
According to the financial statements dated on 31 Decem-
ber 2014, the parent company’s distributable earnings 
amounted to 18,455,636.07 euro. No significant changes 
have taken place in the company’s financial position after 
the end of the financial year.

The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj proposes to the 
annual general meeting that the company will distribute a 
dividend of 0.15 euro per share (in total 2.5 million euro) for 
the financial year 2014 in addition to the dividend of 0.30 
euro per share already paid in January 2015. The board of 
directors’ view is that the company’s strong balance sheet 
enables dividend distribution of 0.45 euro per share in total 
(in total 7.6 million euro) during the beginning of 2015.
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Information on personnel

2014 2013 2012

Number of employees, annual average  
Okmetic Oyj, Finland 325 321 326

Okmetic Inc., United States 39 37 37

Okmetic K.K., Japan 5 5 4
Okmetic Limited, Hong Kong 1 1 1

Total 370 363 368

Number of employees at the end of the year  367 355 364

Wages and salaries, million euro 21.7 20.3 21.4

Average length of employment, years 11.7 11.6 10.9

Age structure of the personnel
–19 0% 0% 0%

20–29 10% 10% 9%

30–39 25% 26% 27%
40–49 34% 36% 35%

50–59 25% 24% 23%
60– 6% 5% 4%

Educational background of white-collar employees
Doctorates or licentiates 10% 10% 11%

Postgraduate degrees 34% 36% 36%

Undergraduate degrees 32% 30% 29%
Other degrees 24% 24% 25%

Number of days in training per person 2.2 1.9 1.7

Occupational health and safety

Sickness absences 3.2% 3.5% 3.4%

Work place -related injury frequency 1 7.2 5.5 9.0

Equality

Men 73% 74% 74%
Women 27% 26% 26%

1	 the number of work place -related injuries per million working hours that cause a sickness leave of longer than three days
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Five years in figures

Financial performance

1,000 euro
Financial year 1 Jan-31 Dec 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Net sales 74,104 68,516 83,074 83,186 80,907
Change in net sales, % 8.2 -17.5 -0.1 2.8 48.8

Export and foreign operations share of net sales, % 90.7 91.8 94.4 94.4 95.8
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation 
(EBITDA) 1 12,985 10,905 13,864 18,069 17,102

% of net sales 1 17.5 15.9 16.7 21.7 21.1

Operating profit 1 6,401 5,031 8,018 11,817 10,421
% of net sales 1 8.6 7.3 9.7 14.2 12.9
Profit before tax 6,051 4,401 7,600 11,339 9,811

% of net sales 8.2 6.4 9.1 13.6 12.1

Return on equity, % 8.0 6.4 8.3 17.2 18.6
Return on investment, % 8.7 6.7 11.8 18.7 18.2

Non-interest-bearing liabilities 13,710 15,014 18,309 15,914 16,976

Net interest-bearing liabilities 2 -1,110 6,530 -1,688 -10,257 -18,047

Net gearing ratio, % -1.7 11.4 -2.7 -16.8 -31.0
Equity ratio, % 70.5 68.2 72.2 78.9 76.6

Capital expenditure 3,627 7,648 14,342 11,992 2,232
% of net sales 4.9 11.2 17.3 14.4 2.8

Depreciation and amortisation 6,584 5,874 5,846 6,252 6,681

Research and development expenses 2,472 2,779 2,331 2,382 2,110
% of net sales 3.3 4.1 2.8 2.9 2.6

Average number of personnel during the period 370 363 368 363 345
Personnel at the end of the period 367 355 364 350 342

1	 From 2011 Okmetic has changed the place where changes in fair values of currency derivative contracts and their realised gains and losses are presented in 
the statement of comprehensive income. In line with the new policy, the changes in the fair values of currency derivative contracts and their realised gains 
and losses are presented within financial income and expenses. Previously these items were presented within other operating income and expenses.  
A corresponding change has been made in figures from previous periods.

2	C ash and cash equivalents included liquid investments in fixed-income funds in 2010.
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Share-related key figures 

Euro
Financial year 1 Jan-31 Dec 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Basic earnings per share 3 0.29 0.23 0.31 0.61 0.60

Diluted earnings per share 0.29 0.22 0.30 0.59 0.58
Equity per share 3 3.77 3.43 3.72 3.68 3.49

Capital repayment per share - 0.07 - - -
Dividend per share 4 0.45 - 0.44 0.28 0.45

Dividend/earnings, % 4 155.2 - 141.9 45.8 75.0
Effective dividend yield, % 4 9.3 - 8.8 5.7 8.5

Price/earnings (P/E) 16.8 20.9 16.2 8.0 8.9
Share price performance

Average trading price 4.68 4.92 5.25 5.48 4.22
Lowest trading price 4.28 4.25 4.21 3.50 2.98

Highest trading price 5.25 5.66 6.01 6.65 5.70

Trading price at the end of the period 4.83 4.82 5.02 4.92 5.29
Market capitalisation at the end of the period, 1,000 euro 83,499 83,326 86,783 85,055 91,451

Trading volume

Trading volume, 1,000 pcs 3,778 3,382 3,330 10,907 14,009
In relation to weighted average number of shares, % 21.9 19.6 19.3 63.1 81.4

Trading volume, 1,000 euro 17,704 16,647 17,496 59,650 59,124
The weighted average number of shares during the 
period adjusted by the share issue, 1,000 pcs 17,288 17,288 17,288 17,288 17,220

The number of shares at the end of the period adjusted 
by the share issue, 1,000 pcs 17,288 17,288 17,288 17,288 17,288

3	 When calculating earnings per share (EPS) and equity per share, Okmetic’s own shares and the Okmetic shares owned by Okmetic Management Oy are 
deducted from the total number of shares. Okmetic Management Oy was merged in the parent company on 30 November 2014.

4	T he figure for 2014 contains the dividend distributed in January 2015, 0.30 euro per share, as well as the board of directors’ proposition, 0.15 euro per share. 
The figure for 2012 includes the additional dividend of 0.19 euro per share paid in December 2013. The figure for 2010 includes the additional dividend of 0.15 
euro per share paid in December 2011.
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Quarterly key figures

1,000 euro Oct–Dec/2014 Jul–Sep/2014 Apr–Jun/2014 Jan–Mar/2014

Net sales 18,679 19,320 18,700 17,405
Compared to previous quarter, % -3.3 3.3 7.4 3.4
Compared to corresponding quarter last year, % 10.9 5.9 9.8 6.1
Operating profit 1,579 2,757 1,137 928
% of net sales 8.5 14.3 6.1 5.3
Profit before tax 1,257 2,806 1,096 892
% of net sales 6.7 14.5 5.9 5.1

Net cash from operating activities 6,270 3,644 1,932 632
Net cash from/used in investing activities -996 261 -1,263 -1,637
Net cash from/used in financing activities -1,180 -3,157 4,859 -472
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4,093 748 5,528 -1,477

Personnel at the end of the period 367 363 393 354

1,000 euro Oct–Dec/2013 Jul–Sep/2013 Apr–Jun/2013 Jan–Mar/2013

Net sales 16,837 18,242 17,035 16,403
Compared to previous quarter, % -7.7 7.1 3.9 -20.7

Compared to corresponding quarter last year, % -18.6 -13.2 -24.2 -13.2
Operating profit 263 1,423 1,971 1,373

% of net sales 1.6 7.8 11.6 8.4

Profit before tax 32 1,280 1,812 1,277
% of net sales 0.2 7.0 10.6 7.8

Net cash from operating activities 4,915 3,481 519 811
Net cash used in investing activities -1,304 -1,687 -1,966 -4,131

Net cash from/used in financing activities -3,892 -1,155 -7,276 9,904
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents -281 639 -8,724 6,585

Personnel at the end of the period 355 356 379 354
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Definitions of key financial figures

Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) = Operating profit + depreciation and amortisation

Return on equity (ROE), % =
Profit/loss for the period x 100

Equity (average for the period)

Return on investment (ROI), % =
(Profit/loss before tax + interest and other financial expenses) x 100

Balance sheet total - non-interest-bearing liabilities (average for the period)

Equity ratio, % =
Equity x 100

Balance sheet total - advances received

Net interest-bearing liabilities = Interest-bearing liabilities - cash and cash equivalents

Net gearing ratio, % =
(Interest-bearing liabilities - cash and cash equivalents) x 100

Equity

Earnings per share =
Profit/loss for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Adjusted weighted average number of issued shares during the period 

Equity per share =
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Adjusted number of shares at the end of the period 

Dividend per share =
Dividend for the period

Adjusted number of shares at the end of the period

Effective dividend yield, % =
Dividend per share x 100

Trading price at the end of the period

Price/earnings ratio (P/E) =
Last adjusted trading price at the end of the period

Earnings per share

Average trading price =
Total traded amount in euro

Adjusted number of shares traded during the period

Market capitalisation at the end of the period = Number of shares at the end of the period x trading price at the end of the period

Trading volume =
Number of shares traded during the period

Weighted average number of shares during the period
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shares and shareholders of Okmetic Oyj

Shares and share capital
On 31 December 2014, Okmetic Oyj’s paid-up share capital, 
as entered in the Finnish Trade Register, was 11,821,250.00 
euro. The number of shares was 17,287,500.

The shares have no nominal value attached. Each share 
entitles its holder to one vote at general meetings. The 
company has one class of shares. The company’s shares 
are included in the Finnish book-entry system.

Quotation of the shares
Okmetic Oyj is listed on the Small Cap list of Nasdaq Hel-
sinki  under the trading code OKM1V. According to the 
International Classification Benchmark (ICB), which the 
exchange uses, Okmetic Oyj is listed under Technology 
Industry.

Share repurchase and transfer of own shares
On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dis-
solve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management 
Oy, owned by President Kai Seikku and Deputy to the 
President of that time, Mikko Montonen, with an arrange-
ment in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital 
of Okmetic Management Oy. Also 400,000 shares of 
Okmetic Oyj were transferred to the group via Okmetic 
Management Oy.

On 16 January 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred in total 
150,000 own shares held by the company to President Kai 
Seikku (140,000 shares) and Deputy to the President of 
that time Mikko Montonen (10,000 shares). Subscription 
price per share was determined using the average trading 
price of the company’s share weighted by trading volume in 
Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, which was 4.9969 
euro. Total value of the deal was 749,535 euro. The deci-
sion to transfer company’s own shares was based on 
authorisation of the board of directors given by the annual 
general meeting on 10 April 2013.

On 13 February 2014, Okmetic Oyj’s board of directors 
announced of its decision to transfer a total of 11,919 own 

shares held by the company as a part of the company’s 
share-based incentive scheme for the executive manage-
ment group, based on authorisation given by the annual 
general meeting on 10 April 2013. 

On 9 May 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred a total of 
15,441 shares to the board members as payment of the 
annual remuneration, according to the decision of the 
annual general meeting on 9 April 2014. 

The board of directors’ authorisation to decide on 
repurchase and/or acceptance as pledge of the company’s 
own shares
The annual general meeting on 9 April 2014 authorised the 
board of directors to decide on the repurchase and/or the 
acceptance as pledge of the company’s own shares in one 
or more tranches. On the basis of the authorisation, the 
aggregate number of own shares to be repurchased and/or 
accepted as pledge shall not exceed 1,728,750 shares, 
which represents approximately 10 percent of all the shares 
of the company. The company and its subsidiaries together 
cannot at any time own and/or hold as pledge more than 
10 percent of all the company’s registered shares. Only 
unrestricted equity can be used to repurchase the compa-
ny’s own shares on the basis of the authorisation. Own 
shares can be repurchased at a price determined by public 
trading on the day of the repurchase or at another market-
based price.

The board of directors decides on the method of repur-
chasing and/or accepting as pledge of the company’s own 
shares as well as the other terms and conditions. Shares 
can be repurchased otherwise than in the shareholders’ 
proportional holding of shares (directed repurchase). The 
authorisation canceled the authorisation given by the 
annual general meeting on 10 April 2013 to the board of 
directors to decide on the repurchase and/or acceptance as 
a pledge of the company’s own shares. The authorisation is 
effective until the next annual general meeting, however, 
no longer than until 9 October 2015.
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The board of directors’ authorisation to decide on the 
issuance of shares, the transfer of the company’s  
own shares as well as the issuance of special rights 
entitling to shares
The annual general meeting held on 9 April 2014 author-
ised the board of directors to decide on the issuance of 
shares, the transfer of the company’s own shares, and the 
issuance of special rights entitling to shares according to 
Chapter 10, Section 1 of the  Limited Liability Companies 
Act in one or more tranches. The aggregate number of 
shares issued or transferred on the basis of the authorisa-
tion may not exceed 2,593,125 shares.  

The board of directors decides on all the terms and 
conditions of the issuance of shares, the transfer of the 
company’s own shares, and the issuance of special rights 
entitling to shares according to Chapter 10, Section 1 of the 
Limited Liability Companies Act. The authorisation concerns 
both the issuance of new shares as well as the transfer of 
the company’s own shares. The issuance of shares, the 
transfer of the company’s own shares, and the issuance of 
special rights entitling to shares according to Chapter 10, 
Section 1 of the Limited Liability Companies Act may be 
carried out in deviation from the shareholders’ pre-emptive 
rights (directed issue).

The authorisation cancels the authorisations given by 
the annual general meeting on 10 April 2013 to the board 
of directors to decide on the transfer of rights to the com-
pany’s own shares as well as to decide on the issuance of 
shares and the issuance of special rights entitling to 
shares. The authorisation is effective until the next annual 
general meeting, however, no longer than until 9 October 
2015.

Redemption clause
The articles of association contain no redemption clause 
regarding the company’s shares.

Convertible bonds
Okmetic has no convertible bonds at the moment.

Option programmes 
Based on the authorisation given by the annual general 
meeting on 10 April 2013, Okmetic’s board of directors 
decided on 17 December 2013 to grant share options to the 
key managers of Okmetic. In addition to the executive 
management group, key managers include also other man-
agers of Okmetic.

As a precondition for being eligible to receive share 
options, the key managers were required to invest in 
Okmetic shares. According to the investment requirement, 
the key managers were required to hold in the aggregate 
262,600 Okmetic shares to be eligible to receive all of the 
share options. The purpose of the arrangement is to 
encourage the key managers to invest in the company’s 
shares and to work on a long-term basis to increase the 
company’s share value.

The share options were, in deviation from the share-
holders’ pre-emptive subscription right, offered to the key 
managers of Okmetic. The maximum total number of share 
options offered was 870,000, which entitles participants 
to subscribe for a maximum number of 870,000 Okmetic 
shares (4.8% of the company’s shares on a fully diluted 
basis). Each share option entitles participants to subscribe 
for one share. The shares subscribed with the share 
options may either be new shares issued by the company 
or existing shares held by the company. Of the share 
options, 320,000 were marked with the symbol 2013 A and 
550,000 with the symbol 2013 B. The share options were 
issued free of charge. The number of options subscribed by 
the key managers totaled 604,250, of which options A 
accounted for 252,000 and options B for 352,250. 

The share subscription price for the share options 2013 
A is euro 5.75 and for the share options 2013 B euro 6.00. 
Future dividends and capital repayments from the invested 
unrestricted equity reserve distributed before the share 
subscription shall be deducted from the share subscription 
price.

The share subscription period for 25 percent of the 
share options 2013 A and 2013 B (A1 and B1) will com-
mence on or about 1 February 2016 and for 75 percent of 
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the share options 2013 A and 2013 B (A2 and B2) on or 
about 1 February 2017. The share subscription period for all 
the share options ends on 31 March 2018. 

The management’s share ownership
On 31 December 2014, the members of the board of direc-
tors, the president, and the deputy to the president of 
Okmetic Oyj held a total of 235,788 (523,307) shares, 
which corresponds to 1.4 (3.0) percent of the company’s 
share capital and voting rights. On 31 December 2014, the 
share ownership of the other members of Okmetic’s execu-
tive management group totaled 94,048 (121,622) shares, 
which corresponds to 0.5 (0.7) percent of the company’s 
share capital and voting rights. 

Deputy to the President Mikko Montonen left the com-
pany on 6 April 2014.

More information on the management’s share and 
option ownership is given in note 26 to the consolidated 
financial statements.

	1 Jan 10	 1 Jan 11	 1 Jan 12	 1 Jan 13	 1 Jan 14	 1 Jan 15
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Increases in share capital 1996–2014 by date of registration

Shares,
pcs

Share capital, 
euro

Share capital on 1 January 1996 14,884 2,503,309.10
Increase of share capital by new issue on 12 December 1996 and 11 June 1997 +9,479 4,097,562.45

Redenomination of share capital into euro, abolishing nominal value, increase of share 
capital by new issue on 20 October 1999 +12,180 6,146,091.39

Bonus issue on 5 June 2000 6,395,025.00
Increase of the number of shares, public limited company on 5 June 2000 +9,099,207 6,395,025.00

Increase of share capital in connection with listing on 29 June 2000 +6,395,000 10,871,525.00

Additional shares on 19 July 2000 +450,000 11,186,525.00
Directed issue on 9 March 2001 +900,000 11,816,525.00

Increase of share capital by shares subscribed on the basis of subordinated  
convertible bonds on 27 September 2001 +6,750 11,821,250.00

Directed issue of 400,000 shares in relation to the top management's incentive scheme 
on 4 March 2010 +400,000
Share capital on 31 December 2014 17,287,500 11,821,250.00

Major shareholders

Shareholders
31 Dec 2014
shares, pcs

Share,
 %

31 Dec 2013
shares, pcs

Share,
 %

Change,
 pcs

Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance Company 1,004,985 5.8 1,549,985 9.0 -545,000
Oy Ingman Finance Ab 900,000 5.2 870,000 5.0 30,000

Mandatum Life Insurance Company Limited 800,000 4.6 800,000 4.6 0

The State Pension Fund 600,000 3.5 600,000 3.5 0
Nordea Nordic Small Cap Fund 528,810 3.1 528,810 3.1 0

Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company 477,175 2.8 477,175 2.8 0
Okmetic Oyj 1 416,763 2.4 594,123 3.4 -177,360

Etra-Invest Oy Ab 400,000 2.3 400,000 2.3 0
Investment Fund Taaleritehdas Arvo Markka Osake 300,100 1.7 225,100 1.3 75,000

Taaleritehdas Mikro Markka 230,000 1.3 50,000 0.3 180,000
Foreign investors and nominee accounts held by 
custodian banks 2,836,589 16.4 2,882,366 16.7 -45,777

Other 8,793,078 50.9 8,309,941 48.0 483,137

Total 17,287,500 100.0 17,287,500 100.0 0
1	 On 31 December 2013, a total of 400,000 shares were owned by Okmetic Management Oy. After acquiring Okmetic Management Oy in January 2014, the 

ownership of these shares was transferred to Okmetic Oyj. 

Insider rules
Okmetic Oyj’s board of directors established the insider 
rules that are to be followed in the group at its meeting on 
16 August 2000. The rules take into consideration legisla-
tion regulating the securities market, regulations and 
guidelines issued by Nasdaq Helsinki and the recommenda-
tions given by the Finnish Securities Market Association. 
Okmetic’s insider rules were last updated on 17 April 2008.

Share price development and trading
A total of 3.8 (3.4) million shares were traded between 1 
January and 31 December 2014, representing 21.9 (19.6) 
percent of the weighted average of share total of 17.3 
(17.3) million during the period. The lowest quotation of the 
reporting period was 4.28 (4.25) euro, and the highest 5.25 
(5.66) euro, with the average being 4.68 (4.92) euro. The 
closing quotation for the period was 4.83 (4.82) euro. At 
the end of the period, the market capitalisation amounted 
to 83.5 (83.3) million euro.
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Shareholders by group

Groups
31 Dec 2014
shares, pcs

Share,
 %

31 Dec 2013
shares, pcs

Share,
 %

Corporations 3,373,168 19.5 3,374,889 19.5

Financial and insurance institutions 1,942,960 11.2 1,811,506 10.5
Public organisations 2,085,368 12.1 2,627,160 15.2

Non-profit organisations 221,449 1.3 127,540 0.7
Households 6,827,966 39.5 6,464,039 37.4

Foreign investors and nominee accounts held by 
custodian banks 2,836,589 16.4 2,882,366 16.7

Total 17,287,500 100.0 17,287,500 100.0

 
Distribution of shareholdings on 31 December 2014

Shares, pcs
Number of

shareholders
% of

shareholders
Shares,

 pcs
% of

share capital

1–100 1,403 17.4 98,907 0.6
101–500 3,695 45.7 1,084,664 6.3
501–1,000 1,513 18.7 1,243,136 7.2
1,001–5,000 1,258 15.6 2,612,129 15.1
5,001–10,000 109 1.3 777,599 4.5
10,001–50,000 87 1.1 1,969,989 11.4
50,001–100,000 5 0.1 349,520 2.0
100,001–500,000 9 0.1 2,553,208 14.8
500,001– 6 0.1 6,598,348 38.2
Total 8,085 100.0 17,287,500 100.0

 
Distribution of shareholdings on 31 December 2013

Shares, pcs
Number of

shareholders
% of

shareholders
Shares,

 pcs
% of

share capital

1–100 1,501 18.0 105,972 0.6
101–500 3,859 46.4 1,130,194 6.5

501–1 000 1,530 18.4 1,251,936 7.2
1,001–5,000 1,217 14.6 2,561,003 14.8

5,001–10,000 105 1.3 766,811 4.4
10,001–50,000 86 1.0 1,885,655 10.9

50,001–100,000 3 0.0 181,903 1.1

100,001–500,000 9 0.1 2,256,120 13.1
500,001– 6 0.1 7,147,906 41.3

Total 8,316 100.0 17,287,500 100.0
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

1,000 euro Note 1 Jan–31 Dec 2014 1 Jan–31 Dec 2013

Net sales 1 74,104.5 68,516.4

Cost of sales 2 -58,909.5 -54,917.9

Gross profit 15,195.0 13,598.5

Other operating income 3 548.0 68.6
Sales and marketing expenses 2 -3,887.2 -3,697.3
Administrative expenses 2 -5,131.1 -4,507.7
Other operating expenses 4 -323.9 -430.8

Operating profit 6,400.8 5,031.4

Financial income 8 218.6 38.8
Financial expenses 8 -568.2 -669.1

Profit before tax 6,051.2 4,401.0

Income tax 9 -1,219.0 -559.1

Profit for the period 4,832.2 3,841.9

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Cash flow hedges 10 -10.9 -58.5
Translation differences 10 891.0 -59.6
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 880.0 -118.1

Total comprehensive income for the period 5,712.2 3,723.9

Profit for the period attributable to
Equity holders of the parent company 4,832.2 3,841.9

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to
Equity holders of the parent company 5,712.2 3,723.9

Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company
Basic earnings per share, euro 11 0.29 0.23
Diluted earnings per share, euro 11 0.29 0.22

The notes on pages 37-67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet

1,000 euro Note 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and 
equipment 12 42,537.8 45,295.1
Intangible assets 13 657.5 896.5

Deferred tax assets 14 270.5 270.5

Other receivables 16 524.0 1,149.0

Total non-current assets 43,989.7 47,611.1

Current assets
Inventories 17 17,889.9 16,634.4

Trade and other receivables 16 14,346.9 14,399.5
Current income tax 
receivables - 172.1

Cash and cash equivalents 18 14,435.6 5,214.2

Total current assets 46,672.4 36,420.2

Total assets 90,662.1 84,031.3

1,000 euro Note 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity attributable to equity 
holders of the parent company
Share capital 11,821.3 11,821.3

Share premium 20,045.3 20,045.3

Reserve for invested 
unrestricted equity 753.0 3.5
Hedge reserve -118.4 -107.5

Translation differences 2,754.1 1,863.1

Retained earnings 23,539.2 19,805.2
Profit for the period 4,832.2 3,841.9

Total equity 19 63,626.6 57,272.7

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 10,705.9 8,182.6

Deferred tax liabilities 14 2,691.8 2,051.7

Other liabilities 23 162.8 298.5
13,560.6 10,532.8

Current liabilities
Borrowings 21 2,619.3 3,561.5

Current income tax liabilities 473.0 1.4
Trade and other payables 23 10,382.7 12,662.8

13,474.9 16,225.7

Total liabilities 27,035.5 26,758.6

Total equity and liabilities 90,662.1 84,031.3

The notes on pages 37-67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 
statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

1,000 euro Note
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2014
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 6,051.2 4,401.0
Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation 5 6,584.1 5,873.6
Financial income and expenses 8 349.6 630.3

Fair value gains/losses on derivative financial instruments -120.4 53.2

Other adjustments -319.2 8.7
Changes in working capital

Change in trade and other receivables 1,095.6 3,799.1

Change in inventories -940.2 -3,217.8
Change in trade and other payables 196.4 -2,672.0
Interest received 6.0 7.0

Interest paid -186.8 -138.4

Other financial items -305.1 5.1
Income tax paid 67.2 975.7

Net cash from operating activities 12,478.5 9,725.6

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 12 -4,345.4 -9,088.5

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 710.3 -
Net cash used in investing activities -3,635.1 -9,088.5

1,000 euro Note
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2014
1 Jan–31 Dec 

2013

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 5,000.0 10,000.0
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 4,000.0 1,024.0

Repayments of long-term borrowings -3,000.0 -1,000.0
Repayments of short-term borrowings -4,024.0 -4,043.0

Payments of finance lease liabilities -594.5 -478.2

Other items 36.3 10.0
Dividends paid -578.3 -6,763.0

Capital repayment - -1,168.5

Share issue 19 749.5 -
Acquisition of Okmetic Management Oy's share capital 20 -1,539.5 -
Net cash from/used in financing activities 49.5 -2,418.7

Net increase (+), decrease (-) in cash and cash equivalents 8,892.9 -1,781.7
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,214.2 7,288.3

Exchange gains/losses on cash and cash equivalents 328.5 -292.4

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 18 14,435.6 5,214.2

The notes on pages 37-67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

1,000 euro Note Share capital Share premium

Reserve for 
invested 

unrestricted equity Hedge reserve
Translation 
differences Retained earnings Total equity

Equity on 31 December 2012 11,821.3 20,045.3 1,200.0 -49.0 1,922.7 26,919.4 61,859.7

Comprehensive income 
Profit for the period 3,841.9 3,841.9

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 10

Cash flow hedges -58.5 -58.5
Translation differences -59.6 -59.6

Total comprehensive income for the period - - - -58.5 -59.6 3,841.9 3,723.9

Transactions with equity holders
Share-based payments 20 198.9 198.9

Dividend distribution 19 -7,341.3 -7,341.3

Capital repayment 19 -1,196.5 28.0 -1,168.5
Total transactions with equity holders - - -1,196.5 - - -7,114.3 -8,310.9

Equity on 31 December 2013 11,821.3 20,045.3 3.5 -107.5 1,863.1 23,647.1 57,272.7

Comprehensive income 
Profit for the period 4,832.2 4,832.2
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 10

Cash flow hedges -10.9 -10.9
Translation differences 891.0 891.0

Total comprehensive income for the period - - - -10.9 891.0 4,832.2 5,712.2

Transactions with equity holders
Share issue 19 749.5 749.5
Share-based payments 20 248.8 248.8

Total transactions with equity holders - - 749.5 - - 248.8 998.3

Changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries
Acquisition of non-controlling interest that did not result 
in a change in control 20 -356.6 -356.6

Equity on 31 December 2014 11,821.3 20,045.3 753.0 -118.4 2,754.1 28,371.5 63,626.6

The notes on pages 37-67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information
Okmetic Oyj, the parent company of Okmetic group, is a 
Finnish public limited company. Its registered office is at 
Piitie 2, 01510 Vantaa, Finland. 

Okmetic is a technology company, which supplies tailor-
made silicon wafers for sensor and semiconductor indus-
tries. Okmetic’s wafers are used, among others, in automo-
tive, aviation, and medical as well as consumer electronics 
applications.

Copies of the consolidated financial statements can be 
obtained via Internet at www.okmetic.com or from the 
head office of the group’s parent company at the above 
mentioned address.

The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj authorised these 
financial statements for issue at its meeting held on 24 
February 2015. As per the Finnish Limited Liability Compa-
nies Act, shareholders have the right to either approve or 
reject the financial statements in the annual general meet-
ing held after their issue. The annual general meeting is 
also entitled to make a decision on amending the financial 
statements.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of Okmetic have 
been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting 
Standards (IAS) together with SIC and IFRIC interpretations 
valid at 31 December 2014.

Under the Finnish Accounting Act and its regulations, 
International Financial Reporting Standards refer to the 
standards and their interpretations adopted in accordance 
with the procedure laid down in Regulation (EC) No 
1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council. 
The notes to the consolidated financial statements also 
comply with the supplementary disclosure requirements of 
Finnish accounting and company legislation.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in 
thousands of euros and prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise specified in the accounting 
policies.

New standards, interpretations, and amendments to 
existing standards and interpretations adopted by the 
group
The group has adopted the following new standards, inter-
pretations, and amendments to existing standards on 1 
January 2014:
•	 IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. The objec-

tive of the standard is to establish principles for the 
presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 
statements when an entity controls one or more other 
entity. It defines the principle of control, and estab-
lishes control as the basis for consolidation. It sets out 
how to apply the principle of control to identify whether 
an investor controls an investee and therefore must 
consolidate the investee. It also sets out the account-
ing requirements for the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements. The standard has not had a mate-
rial effect on the consolidated financial statements.

•	 IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements. As a result of the stand-
ard, the accounting for joint arrangements focuses on 
the rights and obligations of the arrangement rather 
than its legal form. The standard has not had an effect 
on the consolidated financial statements.

•	 IFRS 12, Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities. The 
standard includes the disclosure requirements for all 
forms of interests in other entities, including joint 
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles, and 
other off balance sheet vehicles. The standard has not 
had a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements.

•	 Amendment to IFRSs 10, 11, and 12 on transition guid-
ance. These amendments provide additional transition 
relief to IFRSs 10, 11, and 12, limiting the requirement to 
provide adjusted comparative information to only the 
preceding comparative period. For disclosures related to 
unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments 
will remove the requirement to present comparative 
information for periods before IFRS 12 is first applied. 
The amendment has not had an effect on the consoli-
dated financial statements.

•	 IAS 28 (revised 2011), Associates and Joint Ventures. 
The revised standard includes the accounting require-
ments for joint ventures as well as associates. The 
revision has not had an effect on the consolidated 
financial statements.

•	 Amendment to IFRSs 10, 12 and IAS 27 on consolida-
tion for investment entities. The amendment has not 
had an effect on the consolidated financial statements.

•	 Amendment to IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presenta-
tion on asset and liability offsetting. These amend-
ments are to the application guidance in IAS 32, and 
clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial 
assets and financial liabilities in the balance sheet. The 
amendments have not had an effect on the consoli-
dated financial statements.

•	 Amendment to IAS 36, Impairment of Assets on recov-
erable amount disclosures. This amendment addresses 
the disclosure of information about the recoverable 
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on 
fair value less costs of disposal. The amendment has 
not had an effect on the consolidated financial state-
ments.

•	 Amendment to IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recogni-
tion and Measurement on novation of derivatives. This 
amendment provides relief from discontinuing hedge 
accounting when novation of a hedging instrument to a 
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central counterparty meets specified criteria. The 
amendment has not had an effect on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Accounting policies involving management judgement 
and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in 
conformity with IFRS requires management to make cer-
tain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts in the balance sheet and income and expenses for 
the reporting period. Accounting estimates have been used 
in determining, for example, the realisability of assets, the 
useful lives of tangible and intangible assets, the capitali-
sation of development costs, the parameters applied in 
impairment testing and deferred income tax. Although 
these estimates are based on the latest available informa-
tion, actual results may differ from the estimates.

The areas where assumptions and estimates are sig-
nificant to the consolidated financial statements of Okmetic 
are addressed below:

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The group tests the relevant carrying values of tangible 
and intangible assets for potential impairment in accord-
ance with the methods stated in the accounting policies. 
The group has not recognised any impairment losses, or 
reversals of impairment losses, during the year 2014.

Deferred income tax 
The recognition of deferred tax assets for tax losses car-
ried forward requires evidence that sufficient future taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be uti-
lised. Management exercises its judgement in assessing 
unrecognised tax assets and the criteria for recognition at 
each reporting date. Deferred income tax is discussed in 
section 14 of the notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments.

Accounting policies for the consolidated 
financial statements

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the parent 
company Okmetic Oyj and all entities over which the group 
has control. The group controls an entity when the group is 
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its 
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiar-
ies acquired are consolidated from the date on which con-
trol is obtained by the group, and subsidiaries sold are 
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

At the time of preparing the consolidated financial 
statements, the group includes the following subsidiaries, 
which are fully owned by the parent company: Okmetic Inc., 
Okmetic K.K., and Okmetic Limited.

Subsidiaries are consolidated using the acquisition 
method of accounting. According to the acquisition method, 
the consideration transferred as well as identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination 
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
date.

On consolidation, the group companies’ separate finan-
cial statements are adjusted to comply with the accounting 
policies adopted by the group. All inter-company transac-
tions, balances, unrealised gains, and internal distribution of 
profits are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements. Unrealised losses are not eliminated if the loss 
indicates impairment of the asset transferred.

Okmetic Management Oy, which was established as a 
part of the top management’s share-based incentive 
scheme, was consolidated as a subsidiary as from the 
inception of the arrangement. On the basis of the share-
holders’ agreement and the loan agreement, Okmetic Oyj 
had control over the Management company. The Okmetic 
shares held by Okmetic Management Oy were accounted 
for as own shares (treasury shares) in the consolidated 
financial statements and presented as a deduction of 
equity. The shareholders of Okmetic Management Oy were 

granted the right, on dissolution of the arrangement, to 
choose whether the share-based transaction is settled in 
cash or by issuing equity instruments. In the consolidated 
financial statements the arrangement was therefore 
accounted for as a cash-settled share-based payment. The 
management’s investment in the Management company 
was treated as a financial liability.

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to 
dissolve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Manage-
ment Oy, owned by President Kai Seikku and Deputy to the 
President of that time, Mikko Montonen, with an arrange-
ment in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital 
of Okmetic Management Oy. Okmetic Management Oy was 
merged in the parent company on 30 November 2014.

Segment reporting
Operating segment reporting is consistent with the inter-
nal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is respon-
sible for allocating resources and assessing performance of 
the operating segments, has been identified as the board 
of directors. The group has a single operating segment.

Foreign currencies
The results and financial position of group entities are 
measured using the currency of the primary economic envi-
ronment in which the entity operates. The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in euro, which is the 
functional and presentation currency of the parent com-
pany.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated into the functional cur-
rency at the average exchange rates quoted by the Euro-
pean Central Bank at the reporting date. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency using the exchange 
rates prevailing at the measurement date. Otherwise, non-
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monetary items are measured at the exchange rates pre-
vailing at the transaction date.

Exchange differences arising from trade receivables and 
payables are charged to sales and purchases in the income 
statement. Exchange differences from the translation of 
other receivables and liabilities as well as financing activi-
ties are disclosed within financial items.

Income and expense items of group entities, which 
have a functional currency other than the euro, are trans-
lated into the presentation currency at the average 
exchange rate and assets and liabilities at the closing rate 
of the reporting date. The exchange difference arising on 
the translation of income statements and balance sheets 
at different exchange rates is recognised as other compre-
hensive income.

Translation differences relating to items of equity of 
foreign subsidiaries are recorded as other comprehensive 
income. On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, in part or in 
full, the cumulative translation differences are reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on 
sale.

Net sales and revenue recognition
Okmetic supplies tailor-made silicon wafers for sensor and 
semiconductor industries. Revenue from the sale of goods 
is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, and the 
group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to 
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective 
control over the goods sold. Generally, revenue recognition 
takes place in connection with the contractual transfer of 
the goods. Net sales are shown net of indirect taxes and 
discounts and adjusted by exchange differences of foreign 
currency sales.

Interest income is recognised using the effective inter-
est method.

Research and development 
Research and development costs are charged to profit or 
loss in full as incurred. The development costs of new 

products and processes have not been capitalised as the 
future economic benefits cannot be established until the 
product is launched, which means that the development 
phase can be distinguished in such an advanced phase that 
the amount of costs qualifying for recognition would not be 
material. Research and development costs are disclosed 
within cost of sales.

The costs of the development phase are capitalised as 
intangible assets only when the product is technically and 
commercially feasible, it is expected to generate future 
economic benefits, and the costs can be measured reliably.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs. 
Government grants for compensating the costs of speci-
fied research and development projects are entered as 
adjustments to cost of sales. Grants are recognised where 
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and the group will comply with all attached condi-
tions.

Other operating income and expenses
Other operating income and expenses include items not 
associated with the production of goods and services, such 
as gains and losses from the disposal of property, plant 
and equipment, costs of business reorganisation as well as 
credit losses. In addition, changes in the fair value of elec-
tricity derivatives classified as held for trading and fair 
value gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion of 
electricity derivatives designated as hedges are included in 
other operating income and expenses.

Income tax
The group’s income tax expense includes income tax of the 
group companies based on taxable profit for the period, 
together with tax adjustments for previous periods, and 
changes in deferred tax. Tax on items recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity is, correspond-
ingly, recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 

in equity. Current tax based on the taxable profit for the 
period is calculated on the basis of the tax rate effective in 
each country.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differ-
ences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabili-
ties and their carrying amounts. The main temporary dif-
ferences arise from the depreciation differences on prop-
erty, plant and equipment, measurement of inventories, 
measurement at fair value of derivative financial instru-
ments, and unused tax losses carried forward. Deferred 
income tax is determined using tax rates that that have 
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in full and deferred 
tax assets to the extent that is probable that future taxa-
ble profit will be available against which the temporary 
difference can be utilised. The conditions for recognising a 
deferred tax asset are assessed in this respect at each 
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset 
in case they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

When the asset comprises more than one part with 
different useful lives, each part is entered as a separate 
asset. In this case, the costs of replacing the part are 
capitalised and any existing carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognised. Otherwise, subsequent costs are 
included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 
their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The 
estimated useful lives for the asset classes are:
•	 Buildings� 20–25 years
•	 Machinery and equipment� 3–15 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period and adjusted, if appropri-
ate, to reflect the changes in expected future economic 
benefits.

Depreciation on tangible assets ceases when the asset 
is classified as held for sale in accordance with the IFRS 5 
standard. Gains and losses on disposals of assets are 
included in other operating income and expenses.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets, which can be measured reliably and from 
which future economic benefits are probable, are stated at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life for the 
asset class is:
•	 Software� 3–5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period and adjusted, if appropri-
ate, to reflect the changes in expected future economic 
benefits.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The company’s balance sheet does not include assets with 
indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, which would be 
subject to annual impairment testing.

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation 
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for 
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value 
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets 
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are sepa-
rately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other 
than goodwill that suffered an impairment loss are 
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each 
reporting date.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realis-
able value. The cost of materials is determined using the 
weighted average cost method. The cost of finished goods 
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct 
labour, and other direct costs as well as a proportion of 
fixed and variable production overheads based on normal 
capacity. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 
costs of completion, and the estimated costs necessary to 
make the sale.

Financial instruments
The group classifies its financial instruments in the follow-
ing categories: financial assets and liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and financial 
liabilities. The classification is based on the purpose for 
which the financial instruments were acquired, and they 
are classified at initial recognition. Transaction costs are 
included in the initial carrying amount of the financial 
instrument in the case of a financial instrument not meas-
ured at fair value through profit or loss. All purchases and 
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised 
on the trade date, which is the date on which the group 
commits itself to purchase or sell an asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when the group’s 
contractual right to the financial asset expires. Financial 
liabilities are removed from the balance sheet when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are financial assets and liabilities held for 
trading. All derivative contracts have been made for hedg-
ing purposes in accordance with the group’s risk manage-
ment policy. Derivative contracts, for which hedge account-
ing as defined in IAS 39 is not applied, are classified in this 
category.

Instruments in this category are stated at fair value. 
The methods applied in determining fair values are dis-
closed in note 15, Financial instruments by category. Gains 
and losses arising from changes in the fair values are rec-

ognised in profit or loss as incurred. The changes in the 
fair values of currency derivatives and their realised gains 
and losses are presented within financial items. The 
changes in the fair values of electricity derivatives are pre-
sented in other income and expenses.

Instruments in this category are disclosed within non-
current receivables or payables in case they mature after 
12 months after the reporting date.

Loans and receivables, classified as trade and other 
receivables and cash and cash equivalents, are non-deriva-
tive financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included 
in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 
months after the reporting date. Loans and receivables are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and 
in bank.

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objec-
tive evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receiva-
bles carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the loss 
is recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, 
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease 
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, the reversal of the previously 
recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are initially stated at fair value based 
on the original invoice value. Subsequent to initial recogni-
tion such assets are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 
Impairment on trade receivables is recorded when justifia-
ble evidence of impairment has incurred. Significant finan-
cial difficulties of the debtor, probability of bankruptcy, and 
default or delinquency in payments for a period of more 
than 100 days are considered indicators that the trade 
receivable is impaired.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value 
based on net proceeds. Transaction costs are included in 
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the initial carrying amount in the case of a financial liability 
measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities, except for 
derivative financial liabilities, are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Finan-
cial liabilities are presented within non-current and current 
liabilities.

Hedge accounting
Okmetic has applied hedge accounting as defined in IAS 39 
to electricity derivative contracts hedging highly probable 
forecast cash flows associated with electricity purchases. 
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of deriva-
tives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 
is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented 
in hedge reserve in equity. Such accumulated fair value 
changes in equity are reclassified to the income statement 
as adjustments to electricity purchases in the periods 
when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain or 
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised imme-
diately in profit or loss and presented within other operat-
ing income and expenses.

The group documents at the inception of hedge 
accounting the relationship between hedging instruments 
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objec-
tives and strategy for undertaking hedging transactions. 
The group also documents and assesses both at hedge 
inception and at least on a quarterly basis thereafter, 
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transac-
tions are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash 
flows of hedged items.

When a hedging instrument acquired to hedge a cash 
flow expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or 
loss existing in equity remains in equity until the forecast 
transaction is recognised. However, when a forecast trans-
action is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain 
or loss in equity is immediately transferred to profit or 
loss.

Leases
Leases of tangible and intangible assets, where the group 
as a lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership, are classified as finance leases and recognised 
in the balance sheet as tangible and intangible assets. 
Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the 
lease term at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations are 
included in borrowings. During the lease term, lease pay-
ments are allocated between the finance charge and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability in order to achieve a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability for each period. Assets acquired under 
finance leases are depreciated or amortised over the 
shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. 

Leases in which the lessor retains the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, 
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and the amount is reliably 
estimated.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations
The group’s pension schemes in different countries are 
arranged in accordance with the local practices. These 
schemes are classified as defined contribution plans. Under 
a defined contribution plan the group pays fixed contribu-
tions into a separate entity. The group has no legal or 
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the 
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay the benefits. 
Payments under contribution-based pension plans are rec-

ognised in profit or loss in the financial period that they 
relate to. The Finnish personnel pension is based on the 
Finnish TyEL insurance policy.

Share-based payments
The group has established share-based payment arrange-
ments with payments either in cash or in equity instru-
ments. For cash-settled transactions, the liability is meas-
ured at fair value at each reporting date and at the date of 
settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in 
profit or loss over the vesting period. Equity-settled trans-
actions are measured at fair value at the grant date and 
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period. The fair value of share-based payments 
settled in shares is measured by reference to the market 
value of the share on the grant date. The total amount to 
be expensed is based on the management’s estimate of 
the number of shares expected to vest at the end of the 
vesting period. The estimate is adjusted at each reporting 
date, with any changes recognised in profit or loss. For 
transactions settled in equity, an increase corresponding to 
the expense in the income statement is entered in equity.

Share options are measured at fair value at the grant 
date and expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting 
period. The total amount to be expensed is based on the 
management’s estimate of the number of options expected 
to vest at the end of the vesting period. The estimate is 
adjusted at each reporting date, with any changes recog-
nised in profit or loss. The fair value of options is measured 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. When share 
options are exercised, the proceeds received from share 
subscriptions, adjusted for possible transaction costs, are 
recognised in reserve for invested unrestricted equity.

Expenses recognised for share-based payments are 
shown within employee benefit expenses. 

Equity
Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue or 
acquisition of the company’s own equity instruments 
(treasury shares) are shown as a deduction in equity. In 

Consolidated financial statements, IFRS  o  kmetic annual report 2014 / 41 Consolidated financial statements, IFRS  o  kmetic annual report 2014 / 41 



case the company repurchases its own equity instruments, 
the consideration paid is deducted from equity.

Operating profit
The concept of operating profit is not clarified in IAS 1, 
Presentation of Financial Statements. Okmetic defines 
operating profit as net sales plus other operating income, 
less the following items: acquisition costs adjusted with 
inventory changes, employee benefit expenses, deprecia-
tion, amortisation and potential impairment losses, and 
other operating expenses. All other items are entered after 
operating profit. Exchange differences arising from items 
related to business operations, as well as changes in the 
fair value of electricity derivatives that are charged to 
profit or loss, are included in operating profit; otherwise 
exchange differences and changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are entered in financial items.

Adoption of new or amended standards and 
interpretations
The following published standards, interpretations, and 
amendments to existing standards and interpretations will 
be adopted by the group in annual periods beginning after 1 
January 2014:
•	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs, 2010-2012 and 2011-

2013. The improvements include changes to the follow-
ing standards, among others: IFRS 2 Share-based Pay-
ments, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operat-
ing Segments, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, IAS 16 
Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible 
Assets, and IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The 
changes are effective for accounting periods beginning 
on or after 1 July 2014.

•	 Annual Improvements to IFRSs, 2012-2014. The 
improvements include changes to the following stand-
ards: IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures, IAS 19 Employee Benefits and IAS 34 
Interim Financial Reporting. The changes are effective 

for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016. 
The changes are still subject to EU endorsement.

•	 IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This 
is the converged standard on revenue recognition. It 
replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue 
and related interpretations. Revenue is recognised when 
a customer obtains control of a good or service. A cus-
tomer obtains control when it has the ability to direct 
the use of and obtain the benefits from the good or 
service. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity 
recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects 
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
IFRS 15 also includes a cohesive set of disclosure 
requirements that will result in an entity providing 
users of financial statements with comprehensive 
information about the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the 
entity’s contracts with customers. The standard is 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2017. The standard is still subject to EU 
endorsement.

•	 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments. The complete version of 
IFRS 9 replaces most of the guidance in IAS 39. IFRS 9 
retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model 
and establishes three primary measurement categories 
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through 
OCI and fair value through P&L. The basis of classifica-
tion depends on the entity’s business model and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset. Investments in equity instruments are required 
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with 
the irrevocable option at inception to present changes 
in fair value in OCI. There is now a new expected credit 
losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment 
model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were 
no changes to classification and measurement except 
for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in 
other comprehensive income, for liabilities designated 

at fair value through profit or loss. IFRS 9 relaxes the 
requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the 
bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an 
economic relationship between the hedged item and 
hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the 
same as the one management actually use for risk 
management purposes. Contemporaneous documenta-
tion is still required but is different to that currently 
prepared under IAS 39. The standard is effective for 
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018. The standard is still subject to EU endorsement.

The group is yet to assess the impact of the new stand-
ards and amendments to the standards. There are no other 
IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective 
that would be expected to have an impact on the group.
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2014 2013

1,000 euro Net sales
Non-current 

assets 1 Net sales
Non-current 

assets 1

Finland 7,693.1 40,847.8 5,602.8 43,947.8

United States 23,643.2 2,830.3 26,690.5 3,350.9
Japan 4,748.2 4.2 5,254.2 5.6

Germany 13,072.9 - 10,363.8 -
Other countries 24,947.1 - 20,605.1 -

Total 74,104.5 43,682.3 68,516.4 47,304.3
1	T he total of non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets

The company has no individual customers, from which received proceeds would exceed 10 percent of total revenues.

Net sales per market area

1,000 euro North America Europe Asia Group

2014 26,559.8 31,748.7 15,795.9 74,104.5
2013 28,581.1 27,532.9 12,402.4 68,516.4

Net sales per customer area

1,000 euro Sensor wafers
Semiconductor 

wafers Other business Group

2014 46,762.8 24,747.7 2,594.0 74,104.5
2013 40,455.9 25,609.5 2,451.0 68,516.4

The group has a single operating segment. The company’s 
reporting is based on the fact that the products in line  
with the strategy are largely manufactured on the same 
machines and resources, and sold by uniform sales meth-
ods  to the same or similar customers sharing a common 
risk profile. The in-house division of wafer  types into two 
customer areas is mainly used to bring clarity to the com-
pany’s strategic basis. This division is   not applied to regu-
lar profitability reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker (CODM) of the group, the board of direc-
tors. Other business is mainly solar material sales.

In addition to net sales, the company management has 
no other figures to describe profitability at the level of its 
customer industries. The operating profit and operating 
profit percentage are the key indicators of profitability 
used by the chief operating decision-maker.

Information on geographical areas
Net sales are based on the geographical location of the 
customers and assets on the location of the assets. Net 
sales from external customers are measured in a manner 
consistent with that in the income statement.

1. Segment information
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2. Expenses by nature

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Materials 27,261.9 24,775.1
Water and energy 3,525.2 3,388.0

Maintenance and spare parts 3,404.9 3,227.0

Employee benefit expenses 1 21,667.5 20,332.5
Change in inventories 20.9 106.1

Depreciation and amortisation 2 6,584.1 5,873.6
Other 5,463.4 5,420.6

Total 67,927.9 63,122.9

1	N ote 6
2	N ote 5

Expenses by nature cover cost of sales, sales and marketing expenses, and 
administrative expenses.

Auditor’s fees

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Audit fees 104.9 90.5
Tax assignments 38.0 23.1

Other assignments 17.2 5.6

Total 160.1 119.2

Fees to member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers amounted to 147.6 
thousand euro (2013: 105.7 thousand euro).

3. Other operating income

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Gains on sale of property, plant and 
equipment 245.9 -
Insurance claims 155.6 -

Changes in the fair value of financial 
assets and liabilities held for trading

Electricity derivatives 138.7 -
Cash flow hedges, ineffective portion 1 - 44.9

Other income 7.9 23.7
Total 548.0 68.6

1	N ote 25

4. Other operating expenses

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Impairment losses on trade receivables 19.6 89.3
Reversals of impairment losses on trade 
receivables -31.2 -

Changes in the fair value of financial 
assets and liabilities held for trading

Electricity derivatives - 98.1

Cash flow hedges, ineffective portion 1 18.3 -
Other expenses 317.2 243.4

Total 323.9 430.8

1	N ote 25

5. Depreciation and amortisation

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Depreciation and amortisation by asset 
class
Buildings 1,259.4 1,119.7

Machinery and equipment 4,998.1 4,503.3

Intangible assets 326.6 250.6
Total 6,584.1 5,873.6

Depreciation and amortisation by 
function

Cost of sales 6,168.3 5,538.4
Administration 415.8 335.2

Total 6,584.1 5,873.6

6. Employee benefit expenses

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Wages and salaries 16,976.1 16,146.5
Pension costs, defined contribution plans 2,751.7 2,629.2

Share-based payments

Equity-settled 248.8 198.9
Cash-settled 221.9 111.6

Other social security costs 1,469.0 1,246.3
Total 21,667.5 20,332.5

Details of key management compensation are disclosed in note 26, Related 
party transactions. Information on share reward schemes is given in note 
20, Share-based payments.

Number of personnel 2014 2013

White-collar employees 138 137
Blue-collar employees 232 226

Average 370 363

On 31 December 367 355
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7. Research and development expenses

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Research and development expenses 2,471.7 2,779.0

Research and development expenses are disclosed within cost of sales..

8. Financial income and expenses

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Financial income
Interest income on loans and receivables 1.8 3.1

Gains on financial assets and liabilities 
held for trading

Currency derivatives - 35.6

Exchange gains, net 1 216.7 -
Total 218.6 38.8

Financial expenses
Interest expenses on financial liabilities 
measured at amortised cost -231.2 -189.4

Exchange losses, net 1 - -473.6
Losses on financial assets and liabilities 
held for trading

Currency derivatives -304.1 -

Other financial expenses -32.8 -6.2
Total -568.2 -669.1

1	 Exchange differences include exchange gains of 200.5 thousand euro on 
loans and receivables (2013: exchange losses of 184.2 thousand euro) and 
exchange losses of 1.2 thousand euro on financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost (2013: exchange gains of 49.6 thousand euro). Exchange 
gains of 17.4 thousand euro were recognised on the group’s internal 
loans (2013: exchange losses of 338.9 thousand euro).

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Exchange gains/losses recognised in 
operating profit
On loans and receivables 789.5 -398.2

On financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost -195.8 148.1

Total 593.8 -250.2

9. Income tax

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Income tax expense 
Current tax -571.3 17.6

Tax adjustments of prior periods -7.6 10.7

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary 
differences -640.1 -1,051.1

Impact of change in the Finnish 
corporate income tax rate in 2014 - 463.7
Total -1,219.0 -559.1

Reconciliation of income tax expense recognised in the consolidated income 
statement and income tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of 20.0 
percent (2013: 24.5%):

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Profit before tax 6,051.2 4,401.0

Tax calculated at domestic tax rate -1,210.2 -1,078.2

Different tax rates in foreign subsidiaries 871.5 984.1
Tax losses for which no deferred tax 
asset was recognised -500.8 -923.7

Impact of change in the Finnish 
corporate income tax rate in 2014 - 463.7

Expenses not deductible for tax 
purposes -498.7 -15.7
Tax adjustments of prior periods -7.6 10.7

Use of previously unrecognised tax 
losses 126.9 -
Income tax expense -1,219.0 -559.1

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the parent company decreased 
to 20.0 percent in 2014. The domestic tax rates of the subsidiaries have 
not changed in 2014 or 2013.

Tax relating to the components of other comprehensive income is presented 
in note 14, Deferred income tax.

10. Other comprehensive income

Components of other comprehensive income and reclassification 
adjustments:

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Cash flow hedges 1 -10.9 -128.5
Transfer to profit or loss - 70.1

Translation differences 891.0 -59.6

Total 880.0 -118.1

1	N ote 14
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11. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent 
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. When calculating the weighted 
average, Okmetic’s own shares and the Okmetic shares owned by Okmetic Management Oy are deducted from the total 
number of shares 1.

2014 2013

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company, 1,000 euro 4,832.2 3,841.9
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period, 1,000 shares 16,857.3 16,685.8

Basic earnings per share, euro/share 0.29 0.23

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to 
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. In the comparative period, the company has dilutive potential 
shares in respect of share reward schemes, which include executive management group’s share reward scheme and top 
management’s incentive scheme.

Share options have a dilutive effect when the exercise price of an option is lower than the fair value of the share. The 
dilutive effect is the number of shares deemed to be issued at no consideration since the assumed proceeds from the 
exercise of the options are not sufficient for issuing a corresponding number of shares at fair value. The fair value of a 
share is based on the average share price for the period. The share options are not dilutive.

2014 2013

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company, 1,000 euro 4,832.2 3,841.9
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period, 1,000 shares 16,857.3 16,685.8

Effect of the share reward schemes, 1,000 shares 17.5 405.3

Weighted average number of shares during the period, diluted, 1,000 shares 16,874.9 17,091.1
Diluted earnings per share, euro/share 0.29 0.22

1	N ote 19. Okmetic Management Oy was merged in the parent company on 30 November 2014.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

1,000 euro Land Buildings
Machinery and

 equipment
Construction
in progress 1 Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2014 812.1 28,646.9 124,197.1 2,706.6 156,362.7
Additions - 99.4 1,851.9 1,675.7 3,627.0
Disposals -519.7 - -1,452.6 - -1,972.3
Transfers between items - -79.1 2,284.1 -2,205.0 0.0
Exchange differences 110.4 366.3 1,617.3 - 2,094.0
Acquisition cost on 31 December 2014 402.8 29,033.5 128,497.8 2,177.3 160,111.4

Accumulated depreciation and impairment on 1 January 2014 - -15,028.6 -96,039.0 - -111,067.6
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers - 79.2 1,373.4 - 1,452.6
Depreciation for the period - -1,259.4 -4,998.1 - -6,257.5
Exchange differences - -225.4 -1,475.7 - -1,701.1
Accumulated depreciation and impairment on 31 December 2014 - -16,434.2 -101,139.4 - -117,573.6

Carrying amount on 1 January 2014 812.1 13,618.3 28,158.1 2,706.6 45,295.1
Carrying amount on 31 December 2014 402.8 12,599.3 27,358.4 2,177.3 42,537.8

1,000 euro Land Buildings
Machinery and

 equipment
Construction
in progress 1 Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2013 848.9 23,377.6 116,158.6 9,786.9 150,172.0
Additions - 1,154.3 4,268.3 2,225.5 7,648.1

Disposals - - -755.2 - -755.2

Transfers between items - 4,236.5 5,069.1 -9,305.6 0.0
Exchange differences -36.8 -121.5 -543.7 -0.2 -702.2

Acquisition cost on 31 December 2013 812.1 28,646.9 124,197.1 2,706.6 156,362.7

Accumulated depreciation and impairment on 1 January 2013 - -13,979.6 -92,759.3 - -106,738.9
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers - - 746.0 - 746.0

Depreciation for the period - -1,119.7 -4,503.3 - -5,623.0

Exchange differences - 70.7 477.6 - 548.3
Accumulated depreciation and impairment on 31 December 2013 - -15,028.6 -96,039.0 - -111,067.6

Carrying amount on 1 January 2013 848.9 9,398.0 23,399.3 9,786.9 43,433.1
Carrying amount on 31 December 2013 812.1 13,618.3 28,158.1 2,706.6 45,295.1

1	I n 2014, construction in progress consists of Machinery and equipment of 2.2 million euro (2013: 2.7 million euro).

In 2014, additions to property, plant and equipment include assets acquired under finance leases for 0.1 million euro (2013: -).
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13. Intangible assets

1,000 euro Software Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2014 1,253.9 1,253.9
Additions 87.6 87.6
Disposals - -
Transfers between items - -
Exchange differences - -
Acquisition cost on 31 December 2014 1 ,341.5 1,341.5

Accumulated amortisation and impairment on 1 January 2014 -357.4 -357.4
Accumulated amortisation on disposals and transfers - -
Amortisation for the period -326.6 -326.6
Exchange differences - -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment on 31 December 2014 -684.0 -684.0

Carrying amount on 1 January 2014 896.5 896.5
Carrying amount on 31 December 2014 657.5 657.5

 
 
1,000 euro Software Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2013 743.1 743.1

Additions 510.8 510.8
Disposals - -

Transfers between items - -

Exchange differences - -
Acquisition cost on 31 December 2013 1,253.9 1,253.9

Accumulated amortisation and impairment on 1 January 2013 -106.8 -106.8
Accumulated amortisation on disposals and transfers - -

Amortisation for the period -250.6 -250.6
Exchange differences - -

Accumulated amortisation and impairment on 31 December 2013 -357.4 -357.4

Carrying amount on 1 January 2013 636.3 636.3

Carrying amount on 31 December 2013 896.5 896.5

In 2014, additions to intangible assets include assets acquired under finance leases for 0.1 million euro (2013: 0.5 million euro).
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Finance leases 

The carrying amount of tangible and intangible assets includes assets acquired under finance leases as follows:

 
 
1,000 euro

Machinery and
 equipment Software Total

31 December 2014
Acquisition cost 1,391.0 1,341.5 2,732.5
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation -706.4 -684.0 -1,390.5
Carrying amount 684.5 657.5 1,342.0

31 December 2013
Acquisition cost 2,368.9 1,253.9 3,622.8

Accumulated depreciation and amortisation -1,568.4 -357.4 -1,925.8
Carrying amount 800.5 896.5 1,697.0
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14. Deferred income tax

Movements in deferred income tax during the financial year

1,000 euro 1 Jan 2014
Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised
in other

comprehensive
income

Recognised
in equity 31 Dec 2014

Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward 270.5 - - - 270.5
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments 63.8 -1.9 2.7 - 64.6
Finance leases 4.4 1.0 - - 5.4
Total 338.7 -0.9 2.7 - 340.5
Offset against deferred tax liabilities -68.2 0.9 -2.7 - -70.0
Deferred tax assets, net 270.5 0.0 0.0 - 270.5

Deferred tax liabilities
Accumulated depreciation differences 1,897.5 597.4 - - 2,494.8
Share-based payments -2.3 6.3 - - 4.0
Fixed costs included in the cost of inventories 224.8 27.5 - - 252.3
Other items 0.0 10.8 - - 10.8
Total 2,120.0 642.0 - - 2,761.9
Offset against deferred tax assets -68.2 0.9 -2.7 - -70.0
Deferred tax liabilities, net 2,051.7 642.9 -2.7 - 2,691.8

Deferred tax assets (+) / liabilities (-), net -1,781.2 -2,421.3
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1,000 euro 1 Jan 2013
Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised
in other

comprehensive
income

Recognised
in equity 31 Dec 2013

Deferred tax assets
Tax losses carried forward 270.5 - - - 270.5
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments 43.6 9.2 11.0 - 63.8

Finance leases - 4.4 - - 4.4

Total 314.1 13.6 11.0 - 338.7
Offset against deferred tax liabilities -43.6 -13.6 -11.0 - -68.2

Deferred tax assets, net 270.5 0.0 0.0 - 270.5

Deferred tax liabilities
Accumulated depreciation differences 1,103.1 794.5 - - 1,897.5
Share-based payments 3.1 -5.4 - - -2.3

Fixed costs included in the cost of inventories 254.4 -29.6 - - 224.8

Other items 158.4 -158.4 - - 0.0
Total 1,519.0 601.0 - - 2,120.0

Offset against deferred tax assets -43.6 -13.6 -11.0 - -68.2
Deferred tax liabilities, net 1,475.4 587.4 -11.0 - 2,051.7

Deferred tax assets (+) / liabilities (-), net -1,204.9 -1,781.2

Deferred income tax is presented net in respect of group companies between which income equalisation option exists.

The group has not recognised deferred tax assets in the period for the cumulative tax losses of 4.8 million euro (2013: 4.3 million euro) of the foreign subsidi-
aries. Losses amounting to 0.1 million euro expire in 2017, the rest during 2018-2032.

Tax related to the components of other comprehensive income

1,000 euro Before tax Tax
2014

after tax Before tax Tax
2013

after tax

Cash flow hedges -13.6 2.7 -10.9 -69.5 11.0 -58.5
Translation differences 891.0 - 891.0 -59.6 - -59.6

Total 877.4 2.7 880.0 -129.1 11.0 -118.1
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Principles for determining fair values

Trade and other receivables
The carrying amounts of current receivables, other than 
those relating to derivative contracts, are assumed to be a 
reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Derivative financial instruments
The fair value of electricity derivatives is based on quoted 
market prices. The fair value of currency forwards and 
options is determined on the basis of market and contract 
prices of the agreements at the reporting date by applying 
commonly used valuation techniques.

Loans 
Loans are stated at amortised cost. The fair value of loans 
is measured on the basis of discounted cash flows. The 
discount rate used is based on the interest rate at which 
the group could obtain a similar loan from an external party 
at the reporting date. The total interest comprises risk-
free interest and a company-specific risk premium of 1.08 
percent (2013: 1.08%).

Finance lease liabilities
The fair value of finance lease liabilities is calculated by 
discounting future cash flows at a rate with which the 
group could enter into an equivalent lease contract at the 
reporting date.

Trade and other payables
The carrying amounts of current payables, other than 
those relating to derivative contracts, are assumed to be a 
reasonable approximation of their fair value.

15. Financial instruments by category

2014
1,000 euro Note

Financial 
assets/

liabilities at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Derivative 
financial 

instruments 
under hedge 

accounting
Loans and 
receivables

Financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised 

cost
Carrying
amount Fair value

Fair value 
hierarchy 

level

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 1 16 12,438.3 12,438.3
Derivative financial instruments 16,25 5.5 - 5.5 5.5 2
Cash and cash equivalents 18 14,435.6 14,435.6
Total 5.5 - 26,873.9 - 26,879.4

Financial liabilities
Loans from financial institutions 21 6,995.7 6,995.7 7,034.5 2
Multi-issuer bond 21 4,950.2 4,950.2 5,292.6 2
Finance lease liabilities 21 1,379.3 1,379.3 1,397.4 2
Trade and other payables 2 23 5,454.9 5,454.9
Derivative financial instruments 23,25 195.8 132.9 328.7 328.7 1, 2
Total 195.8 132.9 - 18,780.2 19,108.9

2013
1,000 euro Note

Financial 
assets/

liabilities at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss

Derivative 
financial 

instruments 
under hedge 

accounting
Loans and 
receivables

Financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised 

cost
Carrying
amount Fair value

Fair value 
hierarchy 

level

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 1 16 11,276.6 11,276.6

Derivative financial instruments 16,25 122.2 - 122.2 122.2 1, 2
Cash and cash equivalents 18 5,214.2 5,214.2

Total 122.2 - 16,490.8 - 16,613.0

Financial liabilities
Loans from financial institutions 21 10,017.3 10,017.3 9,973.4 2
Finance lease liabilities 21 1,726.8 1,726.8 1,742.7 2

Trade and other payables 2 23 6,894.1 6,894.1

Derivative financial instruments 23,25 340.5 100.9 441.5 441.5 1
Total 340.5 100.9 - 18,638.2 19,079.7

1	T rade and other receivables do not include prepayments or other items than financial assets.
2	T rade and other payables do not include other items than financial liabilities.
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16. Trade and other receivables

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Non-current
Other receivables 36.9 36.3

Prepayments 487.1 1,112.7

Total 524.0 1,149.0

Current
Trade receivables 12,401.3 11,054.2

Other receivables - 149.9
Derivative financial instruments, not under hedge accounting 1 5.5 122.2
Receivables from related parties 2 - 37.2

Prepayments 978.3 1,823.4

VAT receivables 346.4 275.7
Other current receivables 520.7 706.2
Other prepayments and accrued income 94.8 230.8

Total 14,346.9 14,399.5
1	N ote 25
2	N ote 26

Balance sheet values are the best representation of the amount that is the maximum credit risk exposure in the event of other parties failing to perform their 
obligations under financial instruments. The receivables are not collateralised, and they do not represent any significant concentrations of credit risk.

Analysis of trade receivables by age and recognised impairment losses

1,000 euro 2014
Impairment  

losses 2014 net 2013
Impairment 

losses 2013 net

Not past due 7,712.4 - 7,712.4 8,048.2 - 8,048.2
Past due

–30 days 2,221.7 - 2,221.7 1,755.1 - 1,755.1

31–60 days 981.8 - 981.8 558.5 - 558.5
over 60 days 1,505.0 -19.6 1,485.4 781.7 -89.3 692.4

Total 12,420.9 -19.6 12,401.3 11,143.5 -89.3 11,054.2

Fair value hierarchy
The group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair 
value comprise derivatives used for hedging and held for 
trading.

Fair values of level 1 instruments are based on quoted 
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.

Fair values of level 2 instruments are based on other 
data than quoted prices in active markets, but on the data 
from which the asset is observable, either directly (i.e. 
price) or indirectly (i.e. derived from the prices). 

Electricity derivatives are classified as level 1, currency 
derivatives as level 2. Details of derivative contracts are 
disclosed in note 25.
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17. Inventories

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Raw materials and supplies 12,391.6 11,106.1
Work in progress 2,004.3 2,147.7

Finished goods 3,494.0 3,380.6

Total 17,889.9 16,634.4

The carrying amount of inventories has been reduced to net realisable value through recognition of a write-down amounting to 46.4 thousand euro in the period 
(2013: -). The carrying amount of inventories stated at net realisable value totaled 243.7 thousand euro (2013: -).

18. Cash and cash equivalents

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Cash in hand and bank accounts 14,435.6 5,214.2

19. Equity

Shares, pcs 2014 2013

Number of outstanding shares on 1 January 16,693,377 16,659,554
Share issue 150,000 -

Shares transferred based on executive management group's share reward scheme 11,919 18,540

Shares transferred as board members' annual remuneration 15,441 15,283
Number of outstanding shares on 31 December 16,870,737 16,693,377
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Share capital
On 31 December 2014, Okmetic Oyj’s paid-up share capital, 
as entered in the Finnish Trade Register, was 11,821,250.00 
euro (2013: 11,821,250.00 euro).

The number of shares was 17,287,500. The shares have 
no nominal value attached, and there is no maximum to the 
number of the shares. The company has one class of 
shares. All issued shares have been paid for in full.

Share premium
According to the Finnish Companies Act of 1978 (734/78), 
which was effective until 1 September 2006, share pre-
mium comprises the difference between the equivalent 
book value and the subscription price of shares issued.

Reserve for invested unrestricted equity
Reserve for invested unrestricted equity comprises the 
subscription price of the shares that according to the share 
issue decision is not to be credited to share capital.

Hedge reserve
Hedge reserve consists of the effective portion of fair 
value changes of cash flow hedges.

Translation differences
Translation differences arise from the conversion of the 
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. 

Own shares
On 16 January 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred in total 
150,000 own shares held by the company to President Kai 
Seikku (140,000 shares) and Deputy to the President of 
that time Mikko Montonen (10,000 shares).  Subscription 
price per share was determined using the average trading 
price of the company’s share weighted by trading volume in 
Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, which was 4.9969 
euro.

In 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred 27,360 own shares 
(2013: 33,823 shares) as a part of the executive manage-
ment group’s 2013 share reward scheme and the board’s 
annual remuneration.

Okmetic Management Oy held 400,000 of Okmetic 
Oyj’s shares on 31 December 2013. In the consolidated bal-
ance sheet, the acquisition cost of 1,200.0 thousand euro 
has been deducted from retained earnings within equity. 
On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dis-
solve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management 
Oy with an arrangement in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the 
entire share capital of Okmetic Management Oy. Also 
400,000 shares of Okmetic Oyj were transferred to the 
group via Okmetic Management Oy. Okmetic Management 
Oy was merged in the parent company on 30 November 
2014.

At the end of the year, the parent company held a total 
of 416,763 own shares (2013: 194,123 shares).

Dividends and other profit distribution
The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj proposes to the 
annual general meeting that the company will distribute a 
dividend of 0.15 euro per share, in total 2.5 million euro, for 
the financial year 2014. 

According to the decision of the extraordinary general 
meeting held on 12 January 2015, a dividend of 0.30 euro 
per share was paid in January 2015.

During 2014, there were no dividend payments. A divi-
dend of 0.44 euro per share was paid in 2013 including the 
additional dividend of 0.19 euro per share paid in December 
2013. A capital repayment of 0.07 euro per share was paid 
in 2013.
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20. Share-based payments

Executive management group’s share reward scheme
On 11 February 2013, the board of directors decided on a 
share reward programme for the executive management 
group for year 2013. The reward payment was based on 
common performance criteria set by the board of directors, 
which were, among other things, operating profit and cash 
flow, as well as on individual performance criteria which 
were, for the president, increasing sales and improving 
profitability. The individual performance criteria for the 
other executive management group members were pre-
pared by the president and confirmed by the board of 
directors. The purpose of the programme was to commit 
and incentivise the executive management group to grow 
shareholder value in the long run. The amount of the 
rewards corresponded to a maximum of 150,000 shares for 
year 2013. In addition, a monetary amount covering taxes 
was paid.

The rewards of the share reward programme were paid 
in accordance with reaching the targets that had been set 
by the board of directors and the president. The board of 
directors evaluated the realisation of the set targets and 
decided on the rewards. The rewards and the monetary 
amount covering the taxes were paid to the persons in the 
programme after the the reward period had ended. For 
year 2013, the share rewards and the monetary amount 
covering taxes were paid in February 2014.

The shares earned based on the share reward pro-
gramme must be held for at least two years after the 
reward disbursement. If a person participating in the pro-
gramme ceases to be in the service of the company during 
the two years period, he or she may keep half of the 
shares received as a reward. The president is obligated to 
hold half of the shares received as share reward as long as 
he is working for the company. 

In the programme for 2013, the maximum reward for 
the common targets was 120,000 shares and for the per-

sonal targets 30,000 shares. In addition, a monetary 
amount covering taxes was paid. The president’s proportion 
of both targets was 25.0 percent and the deputy to the 
president’s proportion 15.0 percent.

50.0 percent of the expenses arising from the 2012 and 
2013 share reward schemes are recognised over a vesting 
period of one year and the other 50.0 percent over a period 
of three years.

Based on the 2013 programme, 59.9 thousand euro was 
accrued as cost in the financial statements for 2014. The 
settlement of the 2013 share reward scheme was defined 
based on the achieved financial results. Based on the 
results, altogether 11,919 shares were transferred to the 
executive management group in February 2014. In addition, 
a monetary amount covering taxes was paid. The presi-
dent’s proportion of the 2013 share reward was 1,310 
shares, and the monetary amount covering taxes. The cor-
responding proportion of the deputy to the president of 
that time was 786 shares, and the monetary amount cov-
ering taxes. The grant day for the 2013 programme was 13 
February 2014. The closing quotation 4.77 euro of the 
share on the handover date was regarded as the fair value 
of the shares.

Based on the 2012 programme, expenses of 29.4 thou-
sand euro were recorded in the financial statements for 
year 2014. The settlement of the 2012 share reward 
scheme was defined based on the achieved financial 
results. Based on the results, altogether 18,540 shares 
were transferred for the executive management group in 
February 2013. In addition, a monetary amount covering 
taxes was paid. The president’s proportion of the 2012 
share reward was 2,304 shares, and the monetary amount 
covering taxes. The corresponding proportion of the deputy 
to the president of that time was 1,405 shares, and the 
monetary amount covering taxes. The grant day for the 
2012 programme was 11 February 2013. The closing quota-

tion 4.55 euro of the share on the handover date was 
regarded as the fair value of the shares. 

The equity-settled portion of the programme is meas-
ured at fair value at the grant date. Expenses for the 
equity-settled portion are recognised over the vesting 
period as employee benefit expenses with a corresponding 
increase in equity. 

The cash-settled portion of the share reward scheme 
covers taxes incurred. The cash-settled portion is recog-
nised under employee benefit expenses, with a correspond-
ing increase in liabilities, and deferred over the vesting 
period.

Top management’s incentive scheme
In 2010, the top management was granted a share-based 
incentive scheme, which was arranged by establishing a 
Management company. The company was consolidated in 
the financial statements. 

On 25 January 2010, a company, Okmetic Management 
Oy, founded by the president and deputy to the president 
of that time was directed a share issue against payment of 
400,000 shares at prevailing market price (3.00 euro). The 
acquisition was financed by capital investments of 400.0 
thousand euro in total in the new company by President 
Kai Seikku and Deputy to the President of that time Mikko 
Montonen, and by an 800.0 thousand euro loan granted by 
Okmetic Oyj. The share ownership programme was meant 
to be in force approximately three years, after which time 
it was intended to be dissolved in a manner to be deter-
mined later. It was possible to extend the programme by 
one year.

In December 2012, the company’s board of directors 
decided to extend the ownership arrangement, originally 
planned approximately for a three-year period, of Okmetic 
Management Oy, owned by Kai Seikku and Mikko Mon-
tonen, by a maximum of one year. The company was sup-
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posed to be dissolved by means of a merger or another 
method no later than in the beginning of 2014. The share-
holders of Okmetic Management Oy were granted the 
right, on dissolution of the arrangement, to choose whether 
the share-based transaction is settled in cash or by issuing 
equity instruments. In the consolidated financial state-
ments the arrangement was accounted for as a cash-set-
tled share-based payment. The participants were required 
to render service until 31 March 2014. 

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to 
dissolve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Manage-
ment Oy with an arrangement in which Okmetic Oyj 
acquired the entire share capital of Okmetic Management 
Oy. Also 400,000 shares of Okmetic Oyj were transferred 
to the group via Okmetic Management Oy, as well as a loan 
receivable of Okmetic Oyj from Okmetic Management Oy, 
498.8 thousand euro. There were no shareholders of 
Okmetic Management Oy in the board of directors of 
Okmetic Oyj.

The value of the arrangement for the part of shares 
owned by Okmetic Management Oy was determined using 
the average trading price weighted by trading volume of 
the company’s share in Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 
2014, 4.9969 euro.

In 2014, the group recognised expenses of 112.5 thou-
sand euro (2013: income 89.6 thousand euro) for the top 
management’s incentive scheme. Following the dissolve-
ment of Okmetic Management Oy, the group’s equity was 
reduced by 356.6 thousand euro. 

The decision to repurchase company’s own shares was 
based on authorisation of the board of directors given by 
the annual general meeting on 10 April 2013. Prior to the 
dissolving arrangement, Okmetic Oyj had 17,287,500 issued 
shares. Following the arrangement the number of issued 
shares remained unchanged. The number of shares held by 
the company increased indirectly via Okmetic Management 
Oy by 400,000 shares. Okmetic Management Oy was 
merged in the parent company on 30 November 2014.

Own-investment based share option plan for 
management
Based on the authorisation given by the annual general 
meeting on 10 April 2013, Okmetic’s board of directors 
decided on 17 December 2013 to grant share options to the 
key managers of Okmetic. In addition to the executive 
management group, key managers include also other man-
agers of Okmetic.

As a precondition for being eligible to receive the share 
options, the key managers were required to invest in 
Okmetic shares. According to the investment requirement, 
the key managers were required to hold in the aggregate 
262,600 Okmetic shares to be eligible to receive all of the 
share options.

The share options were, in deviation from the share-
holders’ pre-emptive subscription right, offered to the key 
managers of Okmetic. The maximum total number of share 
options offered was 870,000, which entitle participants to 
subscribe for a maximum number of 870,000 Okmetic 
shares (4.8% of the company’s shares on a fully diluted 
basis). Each share option entitles participants to subscribe 
for one share. The shares subscribed with the share 
options may either be new shares issued by the company 
or existing shares held by the company. Of the share 
options, 320,000 were marked with the symbol 2013 A and 
550,000 with the symbol 2013 B. The share options were 
issued free of charge.

The share subscription price for the share options 2013 
A is 5.75 euro and for the share options 2013 B 6.00 euro. 
Future dividends and capital repayments from the invested 
unrestricted equity reserve distributed before the share 
subscription shall be deducted from the share subscription 
price.

The share subscription period for 25 percent of the 
share options 2013 A and 2013 B (A1 and B1) will com-
mence on or about 1 February 2016 and for 75 percent of 
the share options 2013 A and 2013 B (A2 and B2) on or 

about 1 February 2017. The share subscription period for all 
the share options ends on 31 March 2018. 

Should an award holder’s employment in a group com-
pany terminate prior to the share subscription period, his 
or her share option awards will be forfeited. A failure to 
fulfil the investment requirements set forth by the board 
of directors will result in the forfeiture of share option 
awards.

On 31 December 2014, the total number of share 
options issued to the key managers at Okmetic was 
604,250. In keeping with the investment requirement, 
members of the key management hold in the aggregate 
192,900 Okmetic shares pursuant to the share option plan. 
The total value of the share option plan is 261.1 thousand 
euro of which a total of 137.8 thousand euro was accrued 
as share option related cost in the financial statements for 
2014. The fair values of the share options have been 
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. 
The key factors and assumptions used to determine the 
fair value for the options granted are as follows:
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2013 A1 2013 A2 2013 B1 2013 B2

Fair value of option at grant date, euro 0.51 0.52 0.45 0.46
Grant date 3 Mar 2014 3 Mar 2014 3 Mar 2014 3 Mar 2014
Exercise price, euro 5.75 5.75 6.00 6.00

Share price at grant date, euro 4.64 4.64 4.64 4.64

Expected option life, years 4.08 4.08 4.08 4.08
Expected volatility, % 24.40 24.40 24.40 24.40

Risk-free interest rate, % 0.67 0.67 0.67 0.67

The expected volatility is determined based on historical volatility of the share price.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices

2014 
Options, pcs 2013 A1 2013 A2 2013 B1 2013 B2 Total

Weighted 
average 

exercise price, 
euro

Number of outstanding options  
on 1 January - - - - - -
Granted options 80,000 240,000 137,500 412,500 870,000 5.91

Forfeited options 17,000 51,000 49,438 148,313 265,750 5.94

Exercised options - - - - - -
Expired options - - - - - -

Number of outstanding options  
on 31 December 63,000 189,000 88,063 264,188 604,250 5.90
Exercisable options on 31 December - - - - - -
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21. Borrowings

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Non-current
Loans from financial institutions 4,995.7 6,993.3

Multi-issuer bond 4,950.2 -

Finance lease liabilities 760.1 1,189.3
Total 10,705.9 8,182.6

Current
Loans from financial institutions 2,000.0 3,024.0
Finance lease liabilities 619.3 537.5

Total 2,619.3 3,561.5

Finance lease liabilities

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Gross finance lease liabilities - minimum 
lease payments, by maturity date
No later than one year 645.2 572.6

Later than one year and no later than 
five years 772.6 1,218.0

Later than five years - -
Total 1,417.8 1,790.6

Future finance charges on finance leases -38.5 -63.8

Present value of finance lease liabilities 1,379.3 1,726.8

Present value of finance lease liabilities, 
by maturity date
No later than one year 619.3 537.5

Later than one year and no later than 
five years 760.1 1,189.3
Later than five years - -

Total 1,379.3 1,726.8

The group’s finance lease agreements relate to IT equipment and software 
as well as production machinery. The term of the finance leases is five years. 
Some of the agreements involve conventional purchase options. 

22. Commitments and contingencies

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Own debts secured with collaterals
Loans from financial institutions and 
other liabilities 7,000.0 10,000.0

Collaterals

Floating charges 15,109.5 17,127.8

Capital commitments 2,689.2 1,910.1

Future minimum lease payments under 
non-cancellable operating leases
No later than one year 168.9 187.0

Later than one year and no later than 
five years 139.1 208.3

Total 308.0 395.3

The group’s operating lease agreements principally relate to production 
machinery, office facilities, and company cars. The terms of the leases vary 
from three to ten years. Some of the agreements involve conventional 
purchase options.

In 2014, lease payments recognised in profit or loss in respect of operating 
leases totaled 450.7 thousand euro (2013: 440.1 thousand euro).
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23. Trade and other payables

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Non-current
Other liabilities 69.2 111.6

Derivative financial instruments, not under hedge accounting 1 - 85.9

Derivative financial instruments, under hedge accounting 1 93.6 100.9
Total 162.8 298.5

Current
Trade payables 5,353.7 6,741.8

Other liabilities 46.4 46.6
Derivative financial instruments, not under hedge accounting 1 195.8 254.6

Derivative financial instruments, under hedge accounting 1 39.3 -

Prepayments received 409.4 28.4
Liabilities from share reward schemes - 1,090.8

Accruals and other current liabilities 4,338.0 4,500.8
Total 10,382.7 12,662.8

1	N ote 25

The significant items of accruals and deferred income consist of accrued personnel expenses.
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24. Financial risk management

The objective of Okmetic’s financial risk management is to 
ensure liquidity and to reduce the effect of unfavourable 
fluctuation and uncertainty in the financial markets on 
earnings, balance sheet, and cash flow.

Financial risk management is based on the risk man-
agement policy defined and supervised by the parent com-
pany’s board of directors. The policy defines the guidelines 
for risk management. The company’s operative manage-
ment is responsible for the practical measures set out in 
the risk management policy according to the authorisations 
given. Hedging is coordinated by the parent company, which 
also manages the external financing of the group.

The group uses derivative financial instruments to 
reduce the adverse effects of changes in exchange rates 
and energy prices. The main risk the group is exposed to is 
currency risk.

Currency risk
The group operates internationally and is therefore exposed 
to risks resulting from different currencies. Currency risks 
arise from exchange rate fluctuations related to currency 
flows from revenues and expenses (transaction risk) and 
from the translation of income statement and balance 
sheet items of foreign subsidiaries into euro (translation 
risk).

The group uses several currencies in its sales and pur-
chases. The majority of trading is denominated in the US 
dollar (54% of net sales) and the euro (39%). The Japanese 
yen (5%) is the most important of the other less-used cur-
rencies. The currency distribution has slightly changed in 
2014, while the share of sales denominated in the euro 
grew and correspondingly the share of sales denominated 
in the US dollar decreased. In the normal course of busi-
ness, hedging requirements arise from the US dollar, in 
relation to which the group’s sales income exceeds the 
amount of currency required for purchases. In terms of the 
dollar, the forecasted cash flow for the near future (1–12 

months) is hedged with currency derivatives. The condition 
is that the level of hedging exceeds 50 percent of the 
anticipated net cash flows for the subsequent 1–6 months 
and 30 percent for the subsequent 7–12 months. Foreign 
currency surplus is sold as soon as it arises. The currency 

Foreign currency assets and liabilities translated into euro at the rate of the reporting date

Nominal values
1,000 euro

2014
USD

2014
JPY

2013 
USD

2013 
JPY

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,469.0 1,213.2 1,386.2 398.3

Trade and other receivables 6,533.8 4.1 5,748.8 65.3

Non-current liabilities
Other liabilities - 54.8 - 105.8

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2,067.7 181.9 2,651.0 126.0

Group's internal receivables, net 1 260.6 246.9 541.1 1,564.8
Hedging position 4,283.3 888.3 1,144.3 -

Open position 3,912.4 339.3 3,880.7 1,796.6

1,000 euro
2014
USD

2014
JPY

2013
USD

2013
JPY

Change in exchange rate based on volatility of the 
currency 2 6.28 7.51 7.38 13.18

Effect on profit before tax +253.9/-223.9 +27.0/-23.2 +310.8/-268.1 +272.7/-209.2
1	T he effect on profit or loss of the revaluation under IAS 21 is not eliminated.
2	T he change in the exchange rate represents average volatility of the currency during the last 12-month period. 

The calculation does not include forecast future currency-denominated cash flows.

distribution of cash and cash equivalents can be monitored 
continuously, and a closer examination is performed on a 
weekly basis. Forecasted net positions are monitored on a 
monthly basis.

The parent company operates in the euro.
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The equity of the US-based subsidiary totaled 8.7 million 
US dollar on 31 December 2014 (2013: USD 9.1 million). The 
equity of the Japan-based subsidiary amounted to 10.6 mil-
lion Japanese yen on 31 December 2014 (2013: JPY -153.5 
million). The equity of the Hong Kong-based subsidiary 
totaled 0.4 million Hong Kong dollar on 31 December 2014 
(2013: HKD -0.3 million). The translation risk related to 
equity is not hedged. The group has no loans in foreign 
currencies.

Derivatives are discussed in section 25 of the notes.

Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to cash flow as well as fair value 
interest rate risk. On the reporting date, the group’s inter-
est-bearing liabilities amounted to 13.3 million euro (2013: 
11.7 million euro). In January 2013, Okmetic signed a five-
year loan agreement for 10 million euro. On the reporting 
date, the amount of the loan outstanding was seven million 
euro. The loan has a variable interest and is not hedged 
against interest rate risk. In June 2014, Okmetic was one of 
the issuer companies in a multi-issuer bond by the allo-
cated amount totaling five million euro. The maturity of 
this guaranteed, fixed rate (coupon at 1.85%), bullet multi-
issuer bond is five years. 

The group’s interest rate risk relates mainly to loans. If 
the interest rate level changed by +/-0.3 percentage 
points, the effect on profit before tax would be +/-21.0 
thousand euro (2013: +/-27.0 thousand euro). 

Relating to the loan agreement for 10 million euro, 
signed in January 2013 and of which seven million euro was 
outstanding on the reporting date, the following covenants 

are applied. Requirement for the group’s equity ratio is 
minimum 30 percent. If the equity ratio fell below 30 per-
cent, the creditor would be entitled to terminate the loan. 
Requirement for group’s return on equity is minimum five 
percent. If annual return on equity fell below five percent, 
the interest rate would be increased by 0.4 percentage 
points.  

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from trade and other receivables. The 
maximum potential loss is the entire nominal value 
recorded. Receivables do not involve collaterals.

The group’s trade receivables are generated by a large 
number of customers of which, in terms of credit risk, a 
single customer or a customer group is not individually 
significant. The customers are dispersed in different geo-
graphical areas. Credit risk is reduced by targeting sales to 
customers that are assessed to have good credit quality or 
that are generally regarded as financially sound. Customers’ 
payment behaviour is monitored continuously. Where nec-
essary, risks relating to specific customers are reduced by 
means of payment and delivery terms. Trade receivables 
amounted to 12.4 million euro on 31 December 2014 (2013: 
11.1 million euro). Of these, 4.7 million euro was matured on 
31 December 2014 (2013: 3.1 million euro).

The group uses well-known, solvent, and well-regarded 
financial institutions in cash transactions, credit arrange-
ments, and investments of liquid assets.

The distribution of trade receivables by due date is 
shown in section 16, Trade and other receivables of the 
notes.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is managed by means of regular long-term 
financial planning, weekly cash flow forecasts for one 
month at a time, efficient day-to-day cash flow manage-
ment, and by carrying out the necessary financing activities 
based on these assessments. Sources and forms of fund-
ing are diversified. The group’s liquidity has been good dur-
ing 2014. At the end of the year, cash and cash equivalents 
amounted to 14.4 million euro (2013: 5.2 million euro). The 
group has ensured the sufficiency of cash funds with com-
mitted credit facilities of 6.0 million euro. On 31 December 
2014, the committed credit facilities were unused.

The following table presents the remaining contractual 
maturities of the group’s financial liabilities. The figures 
shown are undiscounted cash flows, including both princi-
pal and interest payments.
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2014
1,000 euro

Carrying
 amount Cash flow 0–6 months 6–12 months 1–2 years 2–5 years

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Loans from financial institutions 6,995.7 7,180.4 1,050.1 1,036.9 2,056.0 3,037.4
Multi-issuer bond 4,950.2 5,632.5 135.0 - 135.0 5,362.5
Finance lease liabilities 1,379.3 1,417.8 322.6 322.6 645.2 127.4
Trade and other payables 5,454.9 5,454.9 5,376.9 23.2 54.8 -
Total 18,780.2 19,685.6 6,884.6 1,382.7 2,891.0 8,527.3

Contractual maturities of derivative financial 
liabilities
Electricity derivatives

Not under hedge accounting 110.6 110.7 55.4 55.4 - -
Under hedge accounting 132.9 133.3 19.7 19.7 94.0 -

Currency derivatives, not under hedge accounting
Currency forwards 85.2 87.2 81.0 6.2 - -

2013
1,000 euro

Carrying
 amount Cash flow 0–6 months 6–12 months 1–2 years 2–5 years

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Loans from financial institutions 10,017.3 10,357.1 1,093.8 2,061.7 2,093.4 5,108.1

Finance lease liabilities 1,726.8 1,790.6 286.3 286.3 572.6 645.4
Trade and other payables 6,894.1 6,894.1 6,765.0 23.3 50.8 55.0

Total 18,638.2 19,041.8 8,145.2 2,371.3 2,716.8 5,808.6

Contractual maturities of derivative financial 
liabilities

Electricity derivatives
Not under hedge accounting 340.5 341.7 127.5 127.5 86.6 -

Under hedge accounting 100.9 102.3 - - 27.7 74.7

Currency derivatives, not under hedge accounting

Currency options, put 1 1.2 1.2 1.2 - - -
1	I ncluded at fair value
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Commodity risk
The group is exposed to commodity risk related to availa-
bility and price fluctuations.

The group’s main raw material is polycrystalline silicon. 
A price risk arises from the timing differences between 
purchasing and using the commodity. Polycrystalline silicon 
is not a listed commodity. Hedging against price changes 
mainly comprises long-term purchase agreements for the 
commodity and, when possible, pricing of the end products. 
Okmetic has existing polysilicon purchasing obligations 
partly until 2016. Since the price level of the solar cell mar-
ket has dropped, the validity of long-term polysilicon pur-
chase contracts typical of the industry may cause a price 
risk.

The group’s production processes use a significant 
amount of electricity. Electricity is purchased locally in each 
country. The majority of the group’s electricity consump-
tion takes place in Finland where the electricity price risk is 
reduced with electricity derivatives. The electricity deriva-
tives are, at most, five years in duration. Okmetic has 
applied hedge accounting as defined in IAS 39 to the elec-
tricity derivative contracts entered into after 1 April 2011 
hedging highly probable forecast cash flows associated 
with electricity purchases. The hedged highly probable 
forecast purchases are expected to occur at various dates 
during the next 60 months. The effective portion of 
changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated 
and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other 
comprehensive income and presented in hedge reserve in 
equity. Such accumulated fair value changes in equity are 
reclassified to the income statement as adjustments to 
electricity purchases in the periods when the hedged item 
affects profit or loss. The gain or loss relating to the inef-
fective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss 
and presented within other operating income and expenses.

As of the beginning of October 2013, hedging against 
electricity price risk is based on physical supply of electric-
ity instead of electricity derivatives. According to the pro-
curement model, electricity supply is based on advance 
orders where the difference between order and electricity 
consumption is balanced by purchasing or selling electricity 
at current market price. 

The table below presents the effect that a 10 percent 
strengthening or weakening of the prices of the outstand-
ing commodity derivatives would have on profit before tax 
at the reporting date, assuming all other variables constant.

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Electricity derivatives +/-107.6 +/-148.4

On 31 December 2014, the group’s publicly traded electric-
ity derivatives amounted to 26.3 GWh (2013: 52.6 GWh).

Derivatives are discussed in section 25 of the notes.

Capital management
The group’s capital management aims to ensure the conti-
nuity of the group’s operations (going concern) and to 
increase shareholder value. The capital managed is the 
equity reported in the group’s balance sheet. In order to 
adjust the capital structure, the board of directors may, 
based on the authorisation granted, issue new shares or 
repurchase or transfer rights to the company’s own shares. 
The amount of dividends paid to shareholders may be 
adjusted. 

The group monitors the capital structure on the basis 
of equity ratio and net gearing ratio. At the end of the 
year, the group’s equity ratio amounted to 70.5 percent 
(2013: 68.2%). The group’s net interest-bearing liabilities 

totaled -1.1 million euro (2013: 6.5 million euro) and net 
gearing ratio was -1.7 percent (2013: 11.4%).

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Equity 63,626.6 57,272.7
Balance sheet total - 
advances received 90,252.7 84,002.9

Equity ratio, % 70.5 68.2

Borrowings 13,325.2 11,744.1

Cash and cash equivalents 14,435.6 5,214.2
Net interest-bearing 
liabilities -1,110.4 6,529.9

Net gearing ratio, % -1.7 11.4

Consolidated financial statements, IFRS  o  kmetic annual report 2014 / 64 Consolidated financial statements, IFRS  o  kmetic annual report 2014 / 64 



25. Derivative financial instruments

1,000 euro
Fair value, 

assets
Fair value,

liabilities
2014

nominal value
Fair value,

assets
Fair value,

liabilities
2013

nominal value

Currency derivatives

Currency forwards - -85.2 3,979.0 20.4 - 1,144.3
Currency options, call 5.5 - 1,192.6 11.9 - 948.3

Currency options, put - - - - -1.2 182.3

Electricity derivatives
Under hedge accounting - -132.9 708.3 - -100.9 708.3

Not under hedge accounting - -110.6 367.5 91.2 -340.5 1,139.1
Total 5.5 -328.7 6,247.4 123.5 -442.6 4,122.3

The contract price of the derivatives has been used as the nominal value of the underlying asset.

The fair values of derivatives are presented as gross amounts. Okmetic has not entered into netting arrangements under ISDA contracts with the counterpar-
ties engaging in trading in derivatives.

26. Related party transactions

Group companies on 31 December 2014

Name of organisation Registered office
Ownership share

parent, %

Okmetic Oyj, parent company Vantaa, Finland
Okmetic Inc. Allen, TX, United States 100

Okmetic K.K. Tokyo, Japan 100
Okmetic Limited Hong Kong, P.R.China 100

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dissolve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management Oy, owned by President Kai Seikku and 
Deputy to the President of that time, Mikko Montonen, with an arrangement in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital of Okmetic Management Oy. 

Okmetic Management Oy and Okmetic Invest Oy were merged in the parent company on 30 November 2014.
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Key management compensation

1,000 euro 2014 2013

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 1,218.8 1,213.8
Post-employment benefits 208.9 206.5

Share-based payments 1 450.1 310.6

Total 1,877.9 1,730.8

Key management comprises the board of directors and the executive management group.

Details of the salaries and remuneration of the board of directors, the president, and the deputy to the president

1,000 euro 2014 2013

President
Salary including fringe benefits 314.5 314.5

Statutory pension 55.2 54.8

Share reward 1 - 12.6
Total 369.6 381.9

Deputy to the president (until 6 April 2014)

Salary including fringe benefits 86.4 173.1
Statutory pension 15.2 30.2

Share reward 1 - 7.6
Total 101.5 210.9

Total remuneration, 
1,000 euro, 2014

Of which as 
shares, pcs, 2014

Total remuneration, 
1,000 euro, 2013

Of which as 
shares, pcs, 2013

Members of the board of directors
Järvinen Tapani 1.5 - 35.5 3,154

Lång Jan 33.5 3,221 - -
Martola Hannu 25.0 2,205 25.5 2,285

Paulasto-Kröckel Mervi 25.0 2,082 25.0 2,260

Puolakka Mikko 25.0 2,163 24.0 2,081
Österlund Henri 47.5 5,770 48.3 5,503

Total 157.5 15,441 158.3 15,283

Total 628.7 751.0

1	T he terms and conditions of the share reward schemes are described under note 20, Share-based payments. Based on the share reward programme of 2013 
the president was granted 1,310 pcs and deputy to the president 786 pcs of the company’s own shares. The euro value of the president’s and deputy to the 
president’s share reward consisted of the value of the granted shares and the monetary amount payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
share reward programme to cover taxes. Share reward based on the share reward programme of 2013 was paid in February 2014.

Members of the board of directors have not been paid pension-related benefits or fringe benefits. The president and the executive management group are not 
paid separate remuneration for their membership on the boards of subsidiary companies or for acting as a president of a subsidiary. The president of Okmetic 
Oyj may retire with an old-age pension at the age of 63 according to the Finnish Employees Pensions Act; however he must retire at the age of 65. 

Information on top management’s incentive scheme and on the own-investment based share option plan for management are given in note 20, Share-based 
payments.
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Loans to key management of the company

1,000 euro 2014 2013

On 1 January 636.0 646.2
Loans advanced during the period - -

Loan repayments received -636.1 -10.0

Interest accrued 1.5 31.2
Interest received -1.3 -31.4

On 31 December 0.0 636.0

As a part of the top management’s incentive scheme arrangement, Okmetic 
granted an interest-bearing loan of 800.0 thousand euro in 2010 to 
Okmetic Management Oy established by the President Kai Seikku and 
Deputy to the President of that time Mikko Montonen for the purposes of 
financing the subscription of the Okmetic shares. The interest rate of the 
loan was 5.0 percent. In December 2012, the company’s board of directors 
decided to extend the ownership arrangement, originally planned approxima-
tely for a three-year period, of Okmetic Management Oy, by a maximum of 
one year. The loan period was extended respectively.

At the same time, Okmetic Oyj granted a loan of 66.3 thousand euro to the 
deputy to the president of that time to be used in the capitalisation of the 
company to be established. The interest rate of the loan was 5.0 percent. 

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dissolve the 
ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management Oy with an arrangement 
in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital of Okmetic 
Management Oy. Also 400,000 shares of Okmetic Oyj were transferred to 
the group via Okmetic Management Oy, as well as a loan receivable of 
Okmetic Oyj from Okmetic Management Oy.

Shares held by the key 
management

31 Dec 
2014

31 Dec 
2013 Change

Board of directors 49,118 45,467 3,651
President and deputy to the 
president 186,670 77,840 108,830

The company owned by the 
president and deputy to the 
president 0 400,000 -400,000

Other members of the 
executive management 
group 94,048 121,622 -27,574
Total 329,836 644,929 -315,093

27. Events after the reporting period

The extraordinary general meeting of Okmetic Oyj was held 
on 12 January 2015. The general meeting decided, in accord-
ance with the proposal of the board of directors, to distrib-
ute a dividend of 0.30 euro per share (in total 5,061,221.10 
euro). The dividend was paid to shareholders who were 
registered in the shareholders’ register maintained by Euro-
clear Finland Ltd. on the dividend record date, 14 January 
2015. The dividend payment took place on 21 January 2015.

As of 1 January 2015, Other business sales is reported 
as part of semiconductor sales due to the significantly 
diminished role of Other business.

Directed share issue for top management
On 16 January 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred in total 
150,000 own shares held by the company to President Kai 
Seikku (140,000 shares) and Deputy to the President of 
that time Mikko Montonen (10,000 shares). Subscription 
price per share was determined using the average trading 
price of the company’s share weighted by trading volume in 
Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, which was 4.9969 
euro. Total value of the deal was 749.5 thousand euro. 

Deputy to the President Mikko Montonen left the com-
pany on 6 April 2014.

Options held by 
the key 
management

31 Dec 
2014

2013 A

31 Dec 
2014

2013 B

31 Dec 
2013

2013 A

31 Dec 
2013

2013 B

President 180,000 180,000 - -
Other members 
of the executive 
management group 72,000 134,500 - -

Total 252,000 314,500 - -
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financial statements for the parent company, FAS

Parent company’s income statement

Euro Note 1 Jan–31 Dec 2014 1 Jan–31 Dec 2013

Net sales 1 67,068,174.69 61,735,345.54

Cost of sales 2 -52,388,815.92 -49,134,780.52

Gross profit 14,679,358.77 12,600,565.02

Sales and marketing expenses -3,262,366.30 -2,956,805.02

Administrative expenses 3 -4,369,518.35 -4,109,043.80
Other operating income 4 7,866.84 23,730.30

Other operating expenses 5 -177,137.46 -187,268.95

Operating profit 6,878,203.50 5,371,177.55

Financial income and expenses 6 -1,697,471.29 -605,392.54

Profit after financial items 5,180,732.21 4,765,785.01

Extraordinary income and expenses 7 -853,923.14 -

Profit before appropriations and tax 4,326,809.07 4,765,785.01

Depreciation differences -2,986,891.73 -4,984,878.39
Income tax 8 -558,907.39 10,705.60

Profit/loss for the period 781,009.95 -208,387.78
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Euro Note 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Assets

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 9
Buildings 11,456,361.36 12,502,196.41
Machinery and equipment 25,844,499.86 26,500,994.50
Construction in progress 2,177,267.77 2,706,577.70
 39,478,128.99 41,709,768.61
Investments
Shares in group companies 9,10 4,859,214.39 4,869,214.39
Other receivables 9 122,907.53 122,907.53

4,982,121.92 4,992,121.92

Total fixed assets 44,460,250.91 46,701,890.53

Current assets

Inventories
Raw materials and supplies 10,635,011.48 9,063,695.46
Work in progress 1,568,441.03 1,706,385.33
Finished goods 2,358,533.74 2,495,634.21

14,561,986.25 13,265,715.00

Long-term receivables
Other receivables 11 414,226.16 2,381,214.91

Short-term receivables
Trade receivables 11 10,870,144.29 9,994,000.18
Other receivables 11 1,890,884.80 3,743,312.49
Prepayments and accrued income 12 86,124.64 384,006.78

12,847,153.73 14,121,319.45
 
Cash and cash equivalents 12,694,199.50 3,749,772.36

Total current assets 40,517,565.64 33,518,021.72

Total assets 84,977,816.55 80,219,912.25

Euro Note 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013

Shareholders' equity and liabilities

Shareholders' equity 13
Share capital 11,821,250.00 11,821,250.00
Share premium 20,045,254.71 20,045,254.71
Reserve for invested unrestricted equity 2,297,990.79 1,420,417.66
Retained earnings 15,376,635.33 16,757,023.11
Profit/loss for the period 781,009.95 -208,387.78

Total shareholders' equity 50,322,140.78 49,835,557.70

Accumulated appropriations
Accumulated depreciation differences 12,474,017.91 9,487,126.18

Liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Multi-issuer bond 5,000,000.00 -
Loans from financial institutions 5,000,000.00 7,000,000.00
Other liabilities 54,826.83 105,807.77

10,054,826.83 7,105,807.77

Short-term liabilities
Loans from financial institutions 2,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
Advances received 409,443.14 28,385.78
Trade payables 5,103,656.06 6,467,367.30
Other liabilities 11 644,366.03 1,198,004.54
Accruals and deferred income 14 3,969,365.80 3,097,662.98

12,126,831.03 13,791,420.60

Total liabilities 22,181,657.86 20,897,228.37

Total shareholders' equity and liabilities 84,977,816.55 80,219,912.25

Parent company’s balance sheet
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Parent company’s cash flow statement

1,000 euro 1 Jan–31 Dec 2014 1 Jan–31 Dec 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before appropriations and tax 4,326.8 4,765.8

Adjustments for

Depreciation 5,508.2 4,830.1
Financial income and expenses 1,697.5 605.4

Other adjustments 638.0 -77.3
Change in working capital 133.6 -2,156.3

Interest received 10.3 47.0
Interest paid -143.3 -93.1

Other financial items 14.1 -181.5

Income tax paid 67.0 946.6
Net cash from operating activities 12,252.0 8,686.6

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in fixed assets -4,075.6 -8,992.2

Net cash used in investing activities -4,075.6 -8,992.2

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 5,000.0 10,000.0

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 4,000.0 1,000.0

Repayments of long-term borrowings -3,000.0 -1,000.0

Repayments of short-term borrowings -4,000.0 -4,000.0
Other 136.3 10.0

Dividends paid -578.3 -6,939.0
Capital repayment - -1,196.5

Share issue 749.5 -
Acquisition of Okmetic Management Oy's share capital -1,539.5 -

Net cash from/used in financing activities 768.0 -2,125.5

Net increase (+), decrease (-) in cash and cash equivalents 8,944.4 -2,431.1

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,749.8 6,180.8

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 12,694.2 3,749.8
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Notes to the parent company’s financial statements

Accounting policies
The financial statements of Okmetic Oyj have been pre-
pared in accordance with Finnish Accounting Standards and 
business legislation. Okmetic Oyj is the parent company of 
Okmetic group.

Foreign currencies
Business transactions denominated in foreign currencies 
are recorded at the rates prevailing on the transaction 
date. In the financial statements, receivables and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into euro 
at the average exchange rate quoted by the European Cen-
tral Bank on the balance sheet date. Advances received are 
entered in the balance sheet at the rate of the payment 
date.

Exchange differences arising from trade receivables and 
payables are charged to sales and purchases in the income 
statement. Exchange differences from the translation of 
other receivables and liabilities as well as financing activi-
ties are disclosed within financial items in the income 
statement.

Fixed assets
Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depre-
ciation and write-downs. Depreciations according to plan 
on fixed assets are based on the historical cost and the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. Assets are depreci-
ated on a straight-line basis.

The estimated useful lives for the asset classes are:
•	 Buildings� 20–25 years
•	 Machinery and equipment� 3–15 years

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less 
write-downs. Write-downs are recorded within financial 
items in the income statement.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and market 
using the weighted average cost method.

Costs of inventories include the variable costs arising 
from acquisition and manufacturing.

Financial assets and liabilities and derivative financial 
instruments
Financial assets are carried at the lower of cost and mar-
ket. Financial liabilities are stated at nominal value.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and 
in bank.

Derivative financial instruments hedging currency risk 
exposure are entered in the income statement so that 
interest is accrued and shown within interest income or 
interest expenses and, at maturity of the contracts, the 
exchange differences are offset against the hedged item 
and disclosed in either sales or purchases.

Gains or losses on derivatives used to hedge electricity 
price risk are recognised at maturity as adjustments to 
electricity costs.

Net sales
Sales of goods are recognised on delivery. Net sales are 
shown net of indirect taxes and discounts, and adjusted by 
exchange differences of foreign currency sales.

Research and development 
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. 
The costs are disclosed within cost of sales in the income 
statement.

Government grants
Government grants for compensating the costs of speci-
fied research and development projects are entered as 
adjustments to cost of sales.

Other operating income and expenses
Other operating income and expenses include items not 
associated with the production of goods and services, such 
as gains and losses from disposal of fixed assets, costs of 
business reorganisation as well as credit losses.

Provisions
Provisions are made for contingent losses that have no 
corresponding revenue, that are likely to materialise, of 
which the amount can be estimated reliably, and that are 
based on an obligation to a third party.

Provisions are shown under long-term or short-term 
liabilities in the balance sheet, depending on their nature.

Extraordinary items
Received and given group contributions and merger gains 
and losses are booked under extraordinary items.

Income tax
Income tax expense consists of accrued tax for the finan-
cial year and tax adjustments for prior years. Deferred 
income tax is recognised for temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts using the tax rates that have been 
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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1. Net sales

Euro 2014 2013

Market area
North America 24,780,320.80 25,850,387.14

Europe 28,843,585.66 25,257,824.19

Asia 13,444,268.23 10,627,134.22
Total 67,068,174.69 61,735,345.54

2. Personnel expenses

Euro 2014 2013

Wages and salaries 14,988,485.65 14,223,589.77
Share rewards 1 89,257.00 270,130.20
Pension costs 2,667,916.44 2,546,892.33

Other social security costs 896,695.40 680,921.04

Total 18,642,354.49 17,721,533.34

Annual remuneration for the board of directors 131,133.36 130,000.00

Wages and salaries include wages and salaries for hours worked as well as compensation for annual leave, days off 
and sick leave, holiday pay and fees for years of service and other similar fees.

Number of personnel 2014 2013

White-collar employees 115 116
Blue-collar employees 210 205

Average 325 321
On 31 December 321 310

Details of the salaries and remuneration of the board of directors, the president, and  
the deputy to the president

Euro 2014 2013

President
Salary including fringe benefits 314,484.00 314,484.00

Statutory pension 55,160.49 54,783.11

Share reward 1 - 12,623.58
Total 369,644.49 381,890.69

Deputy to the president  
(until 6 April 2014)

Salary including fringe benefits 86,384.34 173,139.78
Statutory pension 15,151.81 30,160.95

Share reward 1 - 7,574.15
Total 101,536.15 210,874.88

Total 
remuneration, 

euro
2014

Of which as 
shares, pcs

2014

Total 
remuneration, 

euro
2013

Of which as 
shares, pcs

2013

Members of the board of directors
Järvinen Tapani 1,500.00 - 35,500.00 3,154

Lång Jan 33,500.00 3,221 - -
Martola Hannu 25,000.00 2,205 25,500.00 2,285

Paulasto-Kröckel Mervi 25,000.00 2,082 25,000.00 2,260
Puolakka Mikko 25,000.00 2,163 24,000.00 2,081

Österlund Henri 47,500.00 5,770 48,250.00 5,503

Total 157,500.00 15,441 158,250.00 15,283

Total 628,680.65 751,015.57

1	T he terms and conditions of the share reward schemes are described under section 20, Share-based payments of 
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Share reward based on the share reward programme of 2013 
was paid in February 2014.

Members of the board of directors have not been paid pension-related benefits or fringe benefits. The president and 
the executive management group are not paid separate remuneration for their membership on the boards of subsidiary 
companies or for acting as a president of a subsidiary. The president of Okmetic Oyj may retire with an old-age 
pension at the age of 63 according to the Finnish Employees Pensions Act; however he must retire at the age of 65. 
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Related party loans
As a part of the top management’s incentive scheme 
arrangement, Okmetic granted an interest-bearing loan of 
800,000 euro in 2010 to Okmetic Management Oy estab-
lished by the President Kai Seikku and Deputy to the 
President of that time Mikko Montonen for the purposes 
of financing the subscription of the Okmetic shares. The 
interest rate of the loan was 5.0 percent. In December 
2012, the company’s board of directors decided to extend 
the ownership arrangement, originally planned approxi-
mately for a three-year period, of Okmetic Management 
Oy, by a maximum of one year. The loan period was 
extended respectively.

At the same time, Okmetic Oyj granted a loan of 66,250 
euro to the deputy to the president of that time to be 
used in the capitalisation of the company to be established. 
The interest rate of the loan was 5.0 percent. 

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to 
dissolve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Manage-
ment Oy with an arrangement in which Okmetic Oyj 
acquired the entire share capital of Okmetic Management 
Oy. Also 400,000 shares of Okmetic Oyj were transferred 
to the group via Okmetic Management Oy, as well as a loan 
receivable of Okmetic Oyj from Okmetic Management Oy, 
498,800 euro. The value of the arrangement for the part 
of shares owned by Okmetic Management Oy was deter-
mined using the average trading price weighted by trading 
volume of the company’s share in Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 
January 2014, 4.9969 euro.

Okmetic Management Oy was merged in the parent 
company on 30 November 2014.

Directed share issue for top management
On 16 January 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred in total 
150,000 own shares held by the company to President Kai 
Seikku (140,000 shares) and Deputy to the President of 
that time Mikko Montonen (10,000 shares). Subscription 
price per share was determined using the average trading 
price of the company’s share weighted by trading volume in 

Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, which was 4.9969 
euro. Total value of the deal was 749,535 euro. 

Related party transactions are described in note 26, 
Related party transactions of the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements.

3. Auditor’s fees

Euro 2014 2013

Audit fees 79,955.73 64,381.36
Tax assignments 22,024.69 10,600.00

Other assignments 8,129.50 5,605.50

Total 110,109.92 80,586.86

4. Other operating income

Euro 2014 2013

Other income 7,866.84 23,730.30

5. Other operating expenses

Euro 2014 2013

Credit losses 19,630.63 89,294.11
Reversals of credit losses -31,222.23 -

Other expenses 188,729.06 97,974.84
Total 177,137.46 187,268.95

6. Financial income and expenses

Euro 2014 2013

Interest income
From group companies 5,080.35 40,573.58

From others 4,625.44 4,631.72

Total 9,705.79 45,205.30

Interest expenses
To others -179,801.83 -140,750.87

Other financial income and 
expenses

From/to group companies 1,531.05 -338,921.48

Write-down of loan receivable 
from a group company -1,605,692.03 -
From/to others 76,785.73 -170,925.49

Total -1,527,375.25 -509,846.97

Total -1,697,471.29 -605,392.54

7. Extraordinary expenses

Euro 2014 2013

Merger losses 853,923.14 -

8. Income tax

Euro 2014 2013

Current income tax -551,268.18 -
Tax adjustments of prior periods -7,639.21 10,705.60

Total -558,907.39 10,705.60
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9. Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Euro Buildings
Machinery and 

equipment
Construction in 

progress Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2014 25,951,661.66 110,393,201.99 2,706,577.70 139,051,441.35
Additions 99,453.43 1,501,396.36 1,675,669.50 3,276,519.29
Disposals - -280,149.51 - -280,149.51
Transfers between items -79,166.98 2,284,146.41 -2,204,979.43 0.00
Acquisition cost on 31 December 2014 25,971,948.11 113,898,595.25 2,177,267.77 142,047,811.13

Accumulated depreciation on 1 January 2014 -13,449,465.25 -83,892,207.49 - -97,341,672.74
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers 79,166.98 200,982.53 - 280,149.51
Depreciation for the period -1,145,288.48 -4,362,870.43 - -5,508,158.91
Accumulated depreciation on 31 December 2014 -14,515,586.75 -88,054,095.39 - -102,569,682.14

Carrying amount on 1 January 2014 12,502,196.41 26,500,994.50 2,706,577.70 41,709,768.61
Carrying amount on 31 December 2014 11,456,361.36 25,844,499.86 2,177,267.77 39,478,128.99

Euro Buildings
Machinery and 

equipment
Construction in 

progress Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2013 20,571,032.49 101,900,960.59 9,782,779.89 132,254,772.97
Additions 1,144,109.21 4,182,294.12 2,225,469.06 7,551,872.39

Disposals - -755,204.01 - -755,204.01

Transfers between items 4,236,519.96 5,065,151.29 -9,301,671.25 0.00
Acquisition cost on 31 December 2013 25,951,661.66 110,393,201.99 2,706,577.70 139,051,441.35

Accumulated depreciation on 1 January 2013 -12,444,248.73 -80,813,280.30 - -93,257,529.03
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers - 745,971.26 - 745,971.26

Depreciation for the period -1,005,216.52 -3,824,898.45 - -4,830,114.97
Accumulated depreciation on 31 December 2013 -13,449,465.25 -83,892,207.49 - -97,341,672.74

Carrying amount on 1 January 2013 8,126,783.76 21,087,680.29 9,782,779.89 38,997,243.94

Carrying amount on 31 December 2013 12,502,196.41 26,500,994.50 2,706,577.70 41,709,768.61
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Intangible assets

Euro
Other long-term 

expenses

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2014 67,717.07
Additions -
Disposals -
Acquisition cost on 31 December 2014 67,717.07

Accumulated amortisation on 1 January 2014 -67,717.07
Accumulated amortisation on disposals and 
transfers -
Accumulated amortisation on 31 December 
2014 -67,717.07

Carrying amount on 1 January 2014 0.00
Carrying amount on 31 December 2014 0.00

Euro
Other long-term 

expenses

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2013 67,717.07
Additions -

Disposals -

Acquisition cost on 31 December 2013 67,717.07

Accumulated amortisation on 1 January 2013 -67,717.07
Accumulated amortisation on disposals and 
transfers -

Accumulated amortisation on 31 December 
2013 -67,717.07

Carrying amount on 1 January 2013 0.00

Carrying amount on 31 December 2013 0.00

Investments

Euro
Shares in group 

companies Other receivables Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2014 4,869,214.39 122,907.53 4,992,121.92
Additions 1,539,485.59 - 1,539,485.59
Transferred in merger -1,549,485.59 - -1,549,485.59
Disposals - - -
Transfers between items - - -
Carrying amount on 31 December 2014 4,859,214.39 122,907.53 4,982,121.92

Euro
Shares in group 

companies Other receivables Total

Acquisition cost on 1 January 2013 4,869,214.39 122,907.53 4,992,121.92
Additions - - -

Disposals - - -
Transfers between items - - -

Carrying amount on 31 December 2013 4,869,214.39 122,907.53 4,992,121.92
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10. Subsidiaries on 31 December 2014

Name of organisation Registered office Ownership share, %

Okmetic Inc.
Allen, TX, United 

States 100
Okmetic K.K. Tokyo, Japan 100

Okmetic Limited Hong Kong, P.R.China 100

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to dissolve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Management 
Oy, owned by President Kai Seikku and Deputy to the President of that time, Mikko Montonen, with an arrangement 
in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire share capital of Okmetic Management Oy.

Okmetic Management Oy and Okmetic Invest Oy were merged in the parent company on 30 November 2014.

11. Receivables from and liabilities to group companies

Euro 2014 2013

Long-term receivables
Other receivables 50,064.56 1,391,432.31

Short-term receivables
Trade receivables 592,104.13 743,469.72
Other receivables 85,043.56 192,878.55

Other liabilities -134,534.75 -92,225.34

12. Short-term receivables, prepayments and accrued income

Euro 2014 2013

Main items included in prepayments and  
accrued income
Income tax receivables - 170,655.49

Employee-related insurances 65,881.02 168,250.34
Prepaid rewards 19,941.51 29,379.55

Other 302.11 15,721.40
Total 86,124.64 384,006.78

13. Shareholders’ equity

Euro 2014 2013

Share capital
On 1 January 11,821,250.00 11,821,250.00

On 31 December 11,821,250.00 11,821,250.00

Share premium
On 1 January 20,045,254.71 20,045,254.71

On 31 December 20,045,254.71 20,045,254.71
Reserve for invested unrestricted equity

On 1 January 1,420,417.66 2,464,283.05
Share-based payments 128,038.13 152,671.00

Capital repayment - -1,196,536.39

Share issue 749,535.00 -
On 31 December 2,297,990.79 1,420,417.66

Retained earnings
On 1 January 16,757,023.11 19,679,270.59

Profit/loss from the previous period -208,387.78 4,595,017.65

Dividend distribution - -7,517,265.13
Own shares transferred in merger of  
Okmetic Management Oy -1,172,000.00 -

On 31 December 15,376,635.33 16,757,023.11
Profit/loss for the period 781,009.95 -208,387.78

Total shareholders' equity on 31 December 50,322,140.78 49,835,557.70

Distributable earnings
Retained earnings 15,376,635.33 16,757,023.11
Profit/loss for the period 781,009.95 -208,387.78

Reserve for invested unrestricted equity 2,297,990.79 1,420,417.66
Total 18,455,636.07 17,969,052.99
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14. Short-term liabilities, accruals and deferred income

Euro 2014 2013

Main items included in accruals and deferred income
Accrued employee-related expenses 3,233,661.45 2,856,394.83

Income tax payables 455,210.12 -

Accrued interest expenses 93,013.56 57,291.11
Other 187,480.67 183,977.04

Total 3,969,365.80 3,097,662.98

15. Collaterals

Euro 2014 2013

Own debts secured with collaterals
Loans from financial institutions and other liabilities 7,000,000.00 10,000,000.00

Collaterals

Floating charges, own 15,109,530.74 17,127,785.73

16. Commitments and contingencies

Euro 2014 2013

Lease commitments
Payable next year 478,921.65 488,499.31

Payable at a later date 490,377.89 1,129,140.11
Total 969,299.54 1,617,639.42

The lease agreements involve no redemption clauses. Commitments include value added tax.

Capital commitments 2,689,212.13 1,910,145.09

17. Derivative financial instruments

Euro
Fair value

2014
Nominal value

2014

Currency derivatives
Currency forwards -85,179.00 3,979,020.00
Currency options, call 5,507.36 1,192,555.00
Electricity derivatives -243,561.00 1,075,812.00
Total -323,232.64 6,247,387.00

Euro
Fair value

2013
Nominal value

2013

Currency derivatives

Currency forwards 20,396.00 1,144,328.69
Currency options, call 11,851.00 948,321.00

Currency options, put -1,205.00 182,282.00

Electricity derivatives -350,271.00 1,847,393.00
Total -319,229.00 4,122,324.69

The contract price of the derivatives has been used as the nominal value of the underlying asset.

The fair value of electricity derivatives is based on quoted market prices. The fair value of currency forwards and 
options is determined on the basis of market and contract prices of the agreements at the balance sheet date by 
applying commonly used valuation techniques. Derivative contracts are held for hedging.

18. Deferred income tax

Accumulated depreciation differences recognised in the balance sheet amount to 12.5 mil-
lion euro (2013: 9.5 million euro) at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax liability, 2.5 million 
euro (2013: 1.9 million euro), arising from the accumulated depreciation differences has not 
been recognised in the parent company’s balance sheet.
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According to the financial statements dated on 31 December 2014, the parent company’s distributable earnings amounted 
to 18,455,636.07 euro. No significant changes have taken place in the company’s financial position after the end of the 
financial year.

The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj proposes to the annual general meeting that the company will distribute a divi-
dend of 0.15 euro per share (in total 2.5 million euro) for the financial year 2014 in addition to the dividend of 0.30 euro per 
share already paid in January 2015. The board of directors’ view is that the company’s strong balance sheet enables divi-
dend distribution of 0.45 euro per share in total (in total 7.6 million euro) during the beginning of 2015.

SIGNATURES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Vantaa, 24 February 2015

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL REGARDING THE USE OF DISTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS

Jan Lång
Vice Chairman of the board of directors

Hannu Martola
Member of the board of directors

Kai Seikku
President

Henri Österlund 
Chairman of the board of directors

Mervi Paulasto-Kröckel
Member of the board of directors

Mikko Puolakka
Member of the board of directors
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Auditor’s Report (Translation from the Finnish Original)

To the Annual General Meeting of Okmetic Oyj
We have audited the accounting records, the financial 
statements, the report of the Board of Directors and the 
administration of Okmetic Oyj for the year ended 31 
December, 2014. The financial statements comprise the 
consolidated statement of financial position, statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, as well as the parent company’s bal-
ance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement and 
notes to the financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors 
and the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are 
responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as 
adopted by the EU, as well as for the preparation of finan-
cial statements and the report of the Board of Directors 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the laws 
and regulations governing the preparation of the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors in 
Finland. The Board of Directors is responsible for the 
appropriate arrangement of the control of the company’s 
accounts and finances, and the Managing Director shall see 
to it that the accounts of the company are in compliance 
with the law and that its financial affairs have been 
arranged in a reliable manner.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
statements, on the consolidated financial statements and 
on the report of the Board of Directors based on our audit. 

The Auditing Act requires that we comply with the require-
ments of professional ethics. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with good auditing practice in Finland. Good 
auditing practice requires that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements and the report of the Board of Direc-
tors are free from material misstatement, and whether the 
members of the Board of Directors of the parent company 
or the Managing Director are guilty of an act or negligence 
which may result in liability in damages towards the com-
pany or whether they have violated the Limited Liability 
Companies Act or the articles of association of the com-
pany. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstate-
ment, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation of financial statements and 
report of the Board of Directors that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropri-
ate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the compa-
ny’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the rea-
sonableness of accounting estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements and the report of the Board of Direc-
tors. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial perfor-
mance, and cash flows of the group in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as 
adopted by the EU. 

Opinion on the Company’s Financial 
Statements and the Report of  
the Board of Directors  
In our opinion, the financial statements and the report of 
the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of both the 
consolidated and the parent company’s financial perfor-
mance and financial position in accordance with the laws 
and regulations governing the preparation of the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors in 
Finland. The information in the report of the Board of 
Directors is consistent with the information in the financial 
statements.

Helsinki, 24 February 2015

PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy
Authorised Public Accountants

Mikko Nieminen
Authorised Public Accountant
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Corporate governance statement

This corporate governance statement has been drawn up 
in accordance with recommendation 54 of the Finnish Cor-
porate Governance Code 2010 for listed companies, rules 
of Nasdaq Helsinki and Chapter 7, 7§ of the Securities 
Market Act. The corporate governance statement is pro-
vided separate from the board of directors’ report. The 
statement can also be found on the company website, 
www.okmetic.com. The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj 
(hereafter “Okmetic” and “the company”) has dealt with 
this report. Okmetic’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers has 
ensured that this report was issued and that the general 
description therein of the internal control and risk manage-
ment systems pertaining to the financial reporting process 
corresponds to the financial statements.

The Finnish Corporate Governance Code is available on 
the website of the Finnish Securities Market Association, 
www.cgfinland.fi.

Okmetic’s operational environment
Okmetic Oyj, the parent company of Okmetic group (here-
after also “group”), is a Finnish public limited company, in 
which shareholders exercise their decision-making power in 
the general meeting in compliance with the Finnish Limited 
Liability Companies Act and articles of association. The 
company’s registered office is in Vantaa, Finland. 

The management of Okmetic Oyj is based on the Lim-
ited Liability Companies Act, the Accounting Act, regula-
tions concerning publicly traded companies, the articles of 
association, the Finnish Corporate Governance Code pub-
lished in 2010, and on generally accepted ethical principles. 

Okmetic prepares the consolidated financial statements 
and the interim reports according to the EU-approved IFRS 
standards (International Financial Reporting Standards), the 
Securities Market Act, FIN-FSA regulations and guidelines, 
and Nasdaq Helsinki rules. The board of directors’ report 
and financial statements of Okmetic Oyj are prepared 

according to the Finnish Accounting Act and the guidelines 
and statements of the Finnish Accounting Board. 

The auditor’s report comprises the board of directors’ 
report, the consolidated financial statements, and the 
financial statements of the parent company. 

Organisation
The administrative bodies of Okmetic Oyj – the general 
meeting, the board of directors, and the president – are in 
charge of the governance and operations of Okmetic group. 
The general meeting holds the ultimate power in the com-
pany, and the company’s chief operating decision-maker is 
the board of directors. The president, supported by the 
executive management group, is responsible for the opera-
tive management of the company in accordance with the 
course of conduct of the board of directors.

General meeting
The general meeting holds the ultimate power in the com-
pany. The tasks of the meeting are defined in the Finnish 
Limited Liability Companies Act and Okmetic’s articles of 
association.

In accordance with the Finnish Limited Liability Compa-
nies Act, the general meeting decides on adopting of the 
financial statements, distribution of profit, discharging of 
the board of directors, the president and deputy to the 
president from liability, increasing or decreasing share capi-
tal, amending the articles of association, and the appoint-
ment and remuneration of the board of directors and the 
auditors.

The general meeting usually convenes once a year. The 
annual general meeting shall be held no later than on 30 
June. The board of directors convenes the general meeting 
according to the articles of association and the Finnish 
Corporate Governance Code. If needed, the company can 
convene an extraordinary general meeting. The notice to 

the general meeting is published on the company website 
or in one or more newspapers with a wide circulation area 
and selected by the board of directors, or it will be deliv-
ered to the shareholder by registered mail or handed to the 
shareholder against receipt no earlier than three months 
and no later than three weeks in advance of the general 
meeting, however always at least nine days prior to the 
record date of the general meeting. In addition, Okmetic 
publishes the notice to the general meeting as a stock 
exchange release.  

A shareholder has the right to raise a specific issue at 
the general meeting provided that a written request to 
that effect is lodged with the board of directors sufficiently 
early to allow it to be included in the agenda appended to 
the notice of the general meeting. 

The right to participate in the general meeting applies 
to shareholders who on the record date of the general 
meeting are included in the shareholders’ register main-
tained by Euroclear Finland Ltd.. Okmetic Oyj has one class 
of shares. Each share entitles its holder to one vote at a 
general meeting. The company’s shares are included in the 
Finnish book-entry securities system. 

The president and a sufficient number of board mem-
bers participate in the general meeting. A first-time candi-
date for the board of directors must participate in the 
general meeting where his/her appointment is decided 
unless there is a very weighty reason to justify his/her 
absence. The auditor is present at the annual general 
meeting.

The company is not aware of any shareholders’ agree-
ments.

Annual general meeting 9 April 2014
Okmetic’s annual general meeting was held in Vantaa on 9 
April 2014. A total of 55 shareholders representing 
6,155,693 votes participated in the meeting either in per-
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son or by proxy, corresponding to approximately 35.6 per-
cent of the company’s share total. Documents of the 
annual general meeting are available on the company web-
site www.okmetic.com>Investors>General meeting>2014. 

Extraordinary general meeting 12 January 2015
Okmetic’s extraordinary general meeting was held in Van-
taa on 12 January 2015. A total of 32 shareholders repre-
senting 4,647,817 votes participated in the meeting either 
in person or by proxy, corresponding to approximately 26.9 
percent of the company’s share total. Documents of the 
extraordinary general meeting are available on the company 
website www.okmetic.com>Investors>General meeting. 

Board of directors
The general meeting appoints the members of the board of 
directors. The board of directors comprises at least three 
and no more than eight members. In addition, a maximum 
of eight vice members may be appointed to the board. The 
board appoints a chairman and a vice chairman from among 
its members. The board’s term of office terminates at the 
end of the next annual general meeting after its appoint-
ment.

At the annual general meeting of 2014, five members 
were appointed to the board of directors. President of 
Okmetic is not a member of the board of directors.

The board of directors is comprised of:
•	 Chairman of the board Henri Österlund, 1971, M.Sc. 

(Econ.), Founding partner of Accendo Capital Fund 
•	 Vice chairman of the board Jan Lång, 1957, M.Sc. (Econ.) 

(from 9 April 2014)
•	 Hannu Martola, 1963, M.Sc. (Tech.), eMBA, President and 

CEO of Detection Technology Oy
•	 Mervi Paulasto-Kröckel, 1966, D.Sc. (Tech.), Associate 

Professor (tenured), Aalto University School of Electrical 
Engineering

•	 Mikko Puolakka, 1969, M.Sc. (Econ.), Chief Financial 
Officer of Outotec Oyj

Tapani Järvinen, 1946, Lic. (Tech.) was vice chairman of the 
board until 9 April 2014. 

Of the board members during 2014, Tapani Järvinen, Jan 
Lång, Mervi Paulasto-Kröckel and Mikko Puolakka are inde-
pendent of the company and of largest shareholders. 
Hannu Martola is the President and CEO of Okmetic’s cus-
tomer Detection Technology Oy. The customer’s order vol-
umes have increased since 2010, and Hannu Martola is 
thus dependent on the company. Henri Österlund is a 
Founding Partner of Accendo Capital Fund. Accendo Capital 
SICAV SIF Fund is a major shareholder of Okmetic, and 
thus Henri Österlund is dependent on a large shareholder. 

Duties 
The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj, which is the chief 
operating decision-maker of the company, manages the 
company in compliance with the Limited Liability Compa-
nies Act and the articles of association.

The board of directors is responsible for managing the 
group together with the president. The board of directors 
has general authority in all matters that have not been 
specifically assigned to another body.

Central tasks of the board of directors include:
•	 Taking care of the group’s administration and the 

appropriate arranging of operations, accounting, and 
financial management

•	 Deciding on the group’s strategy and overseeing its 
implementation

•	 Approving the group’s annual plans and revisions to 
them

•	 Deciding on investments and sales of assets that have 
strategic significance or that are extensive in scope

•	 Deciding on significant financial arrangements and risk 
management

•	 Preparing the agenda for the general meeting and 
ensuring that the decisions of the general meeting are 
implemented

•	 Defining the dividend policy

•	 Defining long-term objectives for growth, solidity, and 
profitability

•	 Deciding on appointing and dismissing the company’s 
president and possible deputy to the president and 
establishing the conditions of their terms of office

•	 Deciding on incentive schemes for the group
•	 Ensuring that the company’s values are upheld
•	 Overseeing the process of preparing the financial state-

ments
•	 Overseeing the financial reporting process
•	 Overseeing the efficiency of internal control and risk 

management systems
•	 Discussing the description, which is given out in 

Okmetic’s corporate governance statement, and which 
deals with the main features of the internal control and 
risk management systems pertaining to the financial 
reporting process

Meetings
The board of directors convenes principally monthly and 
actively monitors the operation of the management. The 
board of directors has quorum when at least half of its 
members are present. In 2014, a total of 17 meetings were 
held. The participation rate of the board members in board 
meetings was 95 percent.

Meeting participation rate of the board members during 
year 2014:

Järvinen Tapani (1 Jan to 9 Apr 2014) 100% 

Lång Jan (from 9 April 2014) 100%
Martola Hannu 94%

Paulasto-Kröckel Mervi 88%
Puolakka Mikko 94% 

Österlund Henri 100%

In its meetings, the board of directors sets guidelines for 
the company’s targets and yearly action plans. Meetings 
are convened according to the yearly agreed timetable. The 
main matters agreed on along with the timetable and also 
other current issues are discussed in the meetings.
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The president, possible deputy to the president, and 
senior vice president, finance, IT and communications who 
acts as secretary to the board, take part in the board 
meetings. Other members of the group’s executive man-
agement group take part in the meetings on board’s 
request when needed. 

Permanent committees and committees
The board of directors has not founded any permanent 
committees to deal with its duties. However, the board of 
directors can decide to form committees of its members to 
prepare matters. The committees convene when necessary. 
Board members who do not belong to the committee also 
have the right to take part in committee meetings, if they 
so desire. The matters prepared by the committee are then 
addressed and decided on in the board of directors’ meet-
ings. Previously, the board of directors has formed commit-
tees for appointing the president, formulating new strat-
egy, and making arrangements for the group financing, for 
example. The board of directors is responsible for duties of 
the audit committee as defined in the Corporate Govern-
ance Code.

Assessment of operations
The board of directors assesses its operation and working 
methods on a yearly basis in order to improve its operation. 
Self-evaluation examines work-efficiency, the size and 
composition of the board, and the preparation of matters 
discussed in meetings. As for decision making, the trans-
parency and scope of discussion are evaluated as well as 
member’s possibility to independent decision making. 

President and deputy to the president
The board of directors appoints the president and the pos-
sible deputy to the president and decides on the conditions 
of their terms of office. 

The president is responsible for ensuring that the 
operations and day-to-day administration of the group are 
run in adherence to existing laws and regulations and in 
accordance with the instructions and decisions of the 

board of directors. The president also prepares the matters 
for the board meetings together with the chairman and 
secretary of the board. Kai Seikku, M.Sc. (Econ.) is president 
of the company since 25 January 2010.

The deputy to the president takes over the responsi-
bilities of the president in case the president is prevented 
to attend to his duties. Executive Vice President, Custom-
ers and Markets of that time Mikko Montonen acted as the 
deputy to the president until 6 April 2014. Thereafter there 
has been no designated deputy to the president in the 
company.

The board of directors evaluates the performance of 
the president on a yearly basis. This evaluation assesses 
the company’s result and whether the other targets set for 
the president by the board of directors have been met. 

The executive management group supports the presi-
dent in managing the group. 

Executive management group
In addition to the president, Okmetic’s executive manage-
ment group consists of the possible deputy to the presi-
dent and specific senior vice presidents appointed by and 
reporting to the president. The executive management 
group comprises currently six members. The senior vice 
president, human resources, quality, and environment acts 
as secretary of the executive management group.

The executive management group is comprised of:
•	 Kai Seikku, 1965, M.Sc. (Econ.), President and CEO
•	 Atte Haapalinna, 1969, D. Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice Presi-

dent, Products
•	 Juha Jaatinen, 1965, M.Sc. (Econ.), Senior Vice President, 

Finance, IT and Communications
•	 Jaakko Montonen, 1969, M.Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice Presi-

dent, Supply Chain
•	 Markus Virtanen, 1962, M.Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice Presi-

dent, Human Resources, Quality and Environment
•	 Anna-Riikka Vuorikari-Antikainen, 1965, M.Sc. (Tech.), 

Senior Vice President, Customers and Markets

From 1 January to 6 April 2014, Atte Haapalinna acted as 
Senior Vice President, Customer Support, and Anna-Riikka 
Vuorikari-Antikainen as Senior Vice President, Products. 

Mikko Montonen, Executive Vice President, Customers 
and Markets and Deputy to the President of that time, was 
a member of the executive management group until 6 April 
2014. Petri Antola, Senior Vice President, Technology Pro-
jects and Solar materials of that time, was a member of 
the executive management group until 18 December 2014.

Duties
The executive management group assists the president in 
managing the group. The company’s executive management 
group plans, implements, and monitors the group’s opera-
tive business and related decisions based on the guidelines 
and objectives set by the board of directors.  

Main duties of the executive management group include 
setting operative targets, drawing up the yearly action plan 
and budget, deciding on investments in accordance with 
the investment plan approved by the board of directors, 
monitoring business,  operating environment and the 
implementation of operative decisions. The executive man-
agement group addresses strategic matters, short-term 
and long-term plans, revisions of such plans, and other 
issues that have significance in terms of managing the 
group. Furthermore, the executive management group pre-
pares matters to be addressed by the board of directors.

Headed by the president, the executive management 
group convenes regularly once a month. In addition to regu-
lar meetings, the executive management group meets spe-
cifically to discuss strategy, operations planning, results, 
management reviews, and other topics if needed. 
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Remuneration and other benefits of 
the members of the board of directors, 
the president, and the members of the 
executive management group

The board of directors
The annual general meeting held on 9 April 2014 decided 
that the following annual remuneration for the board of 
directors remains unchanged: chairman of the board 40,000 
euro, vice chairman 30,000 euro, and members 20,000 
euro each. It was decided that the annual remuneration 
shall be paid in the company’s shares and in cash for the 
part of taxes. Payment of the annual remuneration was 
made as a one-time payment on 9 May 2014, and the 
number of remuneration shares was determined according 
to the closing price of the company’s share on 8 May 2014. 
In addition, a meeting fee is paid to the board members, 
amount of which is 750 euro per meeting for the chairman 
and 500 euro per meeting for the other board members. 
The meeting fee does not apply to conference calls lasting 
less than one hour. 

Remuneration of the board of directors in 2014 as 
shares and in cash:

Total 
remuneration, 

1,000 euro*
Of which shares,  

pcs

Järvinen Tapani 1.5 0 
Lång Jan 33.5 3,221

Martola Hannu 25.0 2,205 
Paulasto-Kröckel Mervi 25.0 2,082

Puolakka Mikko 25.0 2,163 

Österlund Henri 47.5 5,770
Total 157.5 15,441 

*	T otal remuneration includes the annual remuneration paid on 9 May 2014 
and meeting fees for the period 1 January – 31 December 2014.

In year 2014, members of the board of directors were not 
paid pension-related benefits or fringe benefits.

The president and the executive management group
Remuneration of the management follows local legislation 
and practice. The amount of remuneration is determined 
taking into account the job grading generally used in the 
industry as well as personal performance reviews. The 
company’s board of directors decides on the president’s 
and the possible deputy to the president’s salary, remu-
neration, and terms of employment. According to the pro-
posal of the president, the board of directors decides on 
salary, remuneration, and terms of employment of the 
other members of the executive management group.

In 2014, the compensation of the president and the 
executive management group was comprised of salaries 
and associated benefits. In addition, the president and his 
deputy had a separate incentive scheme (see the “Top 
management’s incentive scheme” chapter), the key manag-
ers had an own-investment based share option plan (see 
the “Own-investment based share option plan for manage-
ment” chapter), and the members of the executive man-
agement group excluding the president had a separate 
short-term incentive scheme. 

The bonus pay of the short-term incentive scheme is 
based on the group’s quarterly targets for operating profit, 
as approved annually by the board of directors, and on 
other key indicators of the company’s financial perfor-
mance. Bonuses on targets achieved are paid quarterly. 
Under the scheme, the maximum total annual bonus 
opportunity is 200,000 euro including social security costs. 
In 2014, the amount of bonuses paid under the scheme to 
executive management group members excluding the presi-
dent was 122,022 euro including social security costs.

Salaries and remuneration of the president and the 
deputy to the president for 2014 (1,000 euro): 

Salaries*

President 314.5
Deputy to the president (until 6 April 2014) 86.4 

*	 Salaries include fringe benefits.

The annual salaries and fringe benefits of the other mem-
bers of the executive management group amounted to a 
total of around 790,000 euro in 2014. 

The pension benefits of the president and the members 
of the executive management group are determined accord-
ing to the Finnish Employee’s Pensions Act. The president 
is entitled to retire after his 63th birthday. He is required 
to retire from Okmetic after his 65th birhday. The presi-
dent has a period of notice of six months and it must be 
observed by both sides. If the company dismisses the 
president, he will be paid a sum equal to his total salary of 
18 months. 

The company has not provided guarantees or other 
such commitments on behalf of the members of the board 
of directors or the executive management group. Okmetic 
Management Oy, the company founded by the president 
and the deputy to the president of that time, was granted 
a loan of 800,000 euro by Okmetic in 2010. By decision of 
the board of directors, remaining loan balance was paid 
through Okmetic Oyj’s acquisition of the entire share capi-
tal in Okmetic Management Oy. The arrangement of 
Okmetic Management Oy is described in the following 
chapter.

Top management’s incentive scheme
At the beginning of 2010, the board of directors decided on 
an incentive scheme for the top management. Okmetic 
Management Oy, a company founded by the president and 
deputy to the president of that time, was directed a share 
issue against payment of 400,000 shares at prevailing 
market price (3.00 euro). The acquisition was financed by 
capital investments of a total of 400,000 euro in the 
established company by President Kai Seikku and Deputy 
to the President of that time Mikko Montonen, together 
with a loan of 800,000 euro granted by Okmetic Oyj. 

In December 2012, the company’s board of directors 
decided to extend the ownership arrangement, originally 
planned approximately for a three-year period, by a maxi-
mum of one year. The company was supposed to be dis-
solved by means of a merger or another method no later 
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than in the beginning of 2014. The participants were 
required to render service until 31 March 2014.

On 15 January 2014, the board of directors decided to 
dissolve the ownership arrangement of Okmetic Manage-
ment Oy, owned by Kai Seikku and Mikko Montonen, with 
an arrangement in which Okmetic Oyj acquired the entire 
share capital of Okmetic Management Oy. Also 400,000 
shares of Okmetic Oyj were transferred to the group via 
Okmetic Management Oy, as well as a loan receivable of 
Okmetic Oyj from Okmetic Management Oy, 498,800 euro. 
There were no shareholders of Okmetic Management Oy in 
the board of directors of Okmetic Oyj.

The value of the arrangement for the part of Okmetic 
Oyj’s shares owned by Okmetic Management Oy was 
determined using the average trading price weighted by 
trading volume of the company’s share in Nasdaq Helsinki 
on 16 January 2014, 4.9969 euro.

The decision to repurchase company’s own shares as 
part of the arrangement was based on authorisation of the 
board of directors given by the annual general meeting on 
10 April 2013.

Okmetic Management Oy was merged in the parent 
company Okmetic Oyj on 30 November 2014.

Own-investment based share option plan for 
management
Based on the authorisation given by the annual general 
meeting on 10 April 2013, Okmetic’s board of directors 
decided on 17 December 2013 to grant share options to the 
key managers of Okmetic. In addition to the executive 
management group, key managers include also other man-
agers of Okmetic.

As a precondition for being eligible to receive the share 
options, the key managers were required to invest in 
Okmetic shares. According to the investment requirement, 
the key managers were required to hold in the aggregate 
262,600 Okmetic shares to be eligible to receive all of the 
share options.

The share options were, in deviation from the share-
holders’ pre-emptive subscription right, offered to the key 

managers of Okmetic. The maximum total number of share 
options offered was 870,000, entitling participants to sub-
scribe for a maximum number of 870,000 Okmetic shares 
(4.8% of the company’s shares on a fully diluted basis). 
Each share option entitles its holder to subscribe for one 
share. The shares subscribed with the share options may 
either be new shares issued by the company or existing 
shares held by the company. Of the share options, 320,000 
pcs were marked with the symbol 2013 A and 550,000 pcs 
with the symbol 2013 B. The share options were given free 
of charge.

The share subscription price with the share options 
2013 A is 5.75 euro and with the share options 2013 B 
6.00 euro. Future dividends and capital repayments from 
the invested unrestricted equity reserve distributed before 
the share subscription shall be deducted from the share 
subscription price.

The share subscription period for 25 percent of the 
share options 2013 A and 2013 B (A1 and B1) will com-
mence on or about 1 February 2016 and for 75 percent of 
the share options 2013 A and 2013 B (A2 and B2) on or 
about 1 February 2017. The share subscription period for all 
the share options ends on 31 March 2018. 

There is, for the company and in the interest of all the 
company’s shareholders, a substantial financial ground to 
grant the share options in deviation from the shareholders’ 
pre-emptive subscription right, since the share options are 
intended to align the interests of the shareholders and the 
key managers and to form a part of the incentive and com-
mitment program of the key managers. The purpose of the 
arrangement is to encourage the key managers to invest in 
the company’s shares and to work on a long-term basis to 
increase the company’s share value.

On 31 December 2014, the total number of share 
options issued to the key managers at Okmetic was 
604,250. In keeping with the investment requirement, the 
key managers hold in the aggregate 192,900 Okmetic 
shares pursuant to this share option plan.

Directed share issue for top management
On 16 January 2014, Okmetic Oyj transferred in total 
150,000 own shares held by the company to President Kai 
Seikku (140,000 shares) and Deputy to the President of 
that time Mikko Montonen (10,000 shares). Subscription 
price per share was determined using the average trading 
price of the company’s share weighted by trading volume in 
Nasdaq Helsinki on 16 January 2014, which was 4.9969 
euro. Total value of the deal was 749,535 euro. The deci-
sion to transfer company’s own shares was based on 
authorisation of the board of directors given by the annual 
general meeting on 10 April 2013.

Incentive scheme for the personnel
All employee groups at Okmetic are eligible for an incentive 
scheme. The blue-collar employees’ possible production 
bonuses are paid monthly according to the achievement of 
set targets. White-collar employees are subject to a profit-
sharing scheme, which is based on annual targets set by 
the board of directors relating to the group’s profitability, 
financial situation, and operative performance. Bonuses for 
meeting the targets are calculated as percentage of the 
employees’ annual income. The bonuses account for no 
more than 12–20 percent of the annual income depending 
on the personnel group. The cost effect of the incentive 
scheme on the group’s result in 2014 was 289,467 euro for 
blue-collar employees and 133,151 euro for white-collar 
employees.

Internal auditing
The group does not have its own organisation for internal 
auditing. The audit programme, which is produced by the 
auditor and the management of the company on an annual 
basis, takes this fact into consideration.

Auditing 
The auditor is appointed in the annual general meeting. 
The nominated auditor is disclosed in the notice to the 
annual general meeting or via a separate release, should 
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the nominee not be known to the board of directors at the 
time of issuing the notice. 

In accordance with the articles of association the com-
pany has one auditor. The auditor must be an individual 
auditor or an auditing firm approved by the Central Cham-
ber of Commerce. The term of office of the auditor termi-
nates at the end of the annual general meeting following 
the appointment of the auditor.

The accountancy firm PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy is 
responsible for auditing of the companies in the group 
worldwide. PricewaterhouseCoopers Oy is responsible for 
auditing the parent company Okmetic Oyj and the principal 
auditor is Authorised Public Accountant Mikko Nieminen. 
The principal auditor is responsible for giving instructions 
and coordination of the group’s auditing work.

The auditors provide the shareholders of the company 
with the legally required auditor’s report in connection with 
the annual report. In addition, the auditors report to the 
board of directors of the parent company on a regular 
basis.

The remuneration of the auditors amounted to 160,146 
euro in 2014, of which 104,899 euro originated from audit-
ing.

Internal control and risk management 
systems pertaining to financial reporting
The steering and control of the group’s business activities 
and administration is primarily carried out in accordance 
with the aforementioned corporate governance system. 

Okmetic operates as juridical companies on three dif-
ferent continents. The companies share common guidelines 
and timetables for financial reporting. The group manage-
ment, located in Vantaa, Finland, is responsible for the 

centralised management of the companies. Management by 
customer areas is run as a separate system.

For the purpose of financial reporting, the company has 
a reporting system which produces sufficient and timely 
data to the management system for operational planning 
and control. 

The purpose of the control system is to support the 
implementation of the group’s strategy and the reliability 
of financial reporting, and also ensure compliance with 
guidelines. The group’s internal control system is based on 
the company’s values and documented procedural guide-
lines. The company’s values customer orientation, profita-
bility, know-how, co-operation, and continuous improve-
ment continuously direct the group’s operations. The sys-
tem is founded on the group structure, business operation 
and support processes, and control points that monitor 
them. The group’s senior vice president, finance, IT and 
communications, the controller of the parent company, and 
persons involved in preparing the group accounts are 
responsible for the general control system of financial 
reporting.

Okmetic always takes risk management into considera-
tion in its processes. Therefore, also financial reporting 
includes recognition and analysis of existing risks. Risk 
management also includes continuous monitoring of 
changes in operational environment and recognition and 
management of the risks that come with those changes. 
Control points are built into processes as well as into 
financial reporting. Continuous risk evaluation of control 
points is carried out as a result of internal control meas-
ures.

The guidelines for financial reporting give all companies 
coherent framework and standards to work with. All guide-

lines, related to processes and financial reporting, are avail-
able in electronic format to all who need them. Guidelines 
are continually updated. Anyone affected by changes in 
guidelines will also be directly notified of the changes. Eve-
ryone taking part in financial reporting is responsible for 
updating the guidelines in respect to his/her own area of 
responsibility.

Group accounting defines the common principles and 
extent of control points of financial reporting in the whole 
process. The section of the organisation, which is responsi-
ble for supervising the implementation of control points, is 
also responsible for their efficiency. Control points are 
focused on operations as well as on the continuous report-
ing of operations. Correctness of financial reporting is 
ensured by, e.g., approval authority, balancing, and differen-
tiating of tasks and analysing. Risk management, processes, 
and methods are discussed regularly in meetings organised 
according to the management system of the companies 
and the group.

Financial reporting and risk management are monitored 
continuously and weekly in a regulated way on different 
levels. Extensive monitoring is conducted in connection 
with regular monthly reporting. The management system 
also includes several other regularly held meetings, in which 
operations are monitored and necessary actions are decided 
upon. Financial administration is responsible for drawing up 
guidelines for necessary change actions. The board of 
directors is responsible for the final evaluation of opera-
tional results and the possible changes required. Insider 
management of the company is the responsibility of senior 
vice president, finance, IT and communications. 

The board of directors discusses and approves financial 
reports to be published, such as interim reports, financial 
statements release, financial statements, and annual report.
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Insider administration

Okmetic’s board of directors has confirmed the company’s 
insider guidelines that are based on the recommendation of 
Nasdaq Helsinki. The guidelines were last updated on 17 
April 2008.

In accordance with the Finnish Securities Markets Act, 
the public insiders of the company include, on the basis of 
their positions, the members of the board of directors, 
president, possible deputy to the president, members of 
the executive management group as well as principal audi-
tor and auditor. In addition, as per a separate decision of 
the company, the permanent insiders include specifically 
named group-level managers and persons responsible for 
handling group-wide issues, as well as associates of the 
principal auditor, who on the basis of their positions con-
stantly receive insider information.

In addition to this, the management can, if necessary, 
also appoint specific persons as temporary insiders in 

connection with a specific project. Project-specific insiders 
are employees who in the course of their duties or in con-
nection with the project will have access to information 
that may have a significant impact on the value of the 
company’s share. Project-specific insiders also include peo-
ple outside the company who in their dealings with the 
company have an opportunity to acquire information that 
may have a significant impact on the value of the compa-
ny’s share. 

The senior vice president, finance, IT and communica-
tions is responsible for the group-level coordination and 
supervision of insider issues.

The list of Okmetic’s public insiders as well as their 
share holdings and changes thereto are updated monthly 
on the company’s website www.okmetic.com>Investors> 
Corporate governance>Insider administration>Insiders.
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Henri Österlund
1971, M.Sc. (Econ.) 

•	 Accendo Capital fund, founding partner 
2007– 

•	 Okmetic Oyj, chairman of the board 
2009–, board member 2008– 

•	 Key employment history: Conventum 
Corporate Finance, Partner 2003–2004, 
Executive Director 2002–2003; InterQuest, 
Executive Chairman 2000–2002; Triton, 
Partner 1999–2000; Doughty Hanson & 
Co, Associate 1995–1999

•	 Key board memberships: Talentum Oyj, 
board member 2011–

•	 Owns 20,215 shares in the company  
(1 Mar 2015)

Hannu Martola
1963, M.Sc. (Tech.), eMBA

•	 President and CEO of Detection 
Technology Oy 2007–

•	 Okmetic Oyj, board member 2009– 

•	 Key employment history: VTI Technologies 
Oy, President and CEO 2001–2007, 
Head of Operations 1998–2000, various 
managerial positions 1992–1997 

•	 Key board memberships: Powernet 
International Oy, chairman of the board 
2012–, board member 2008–2012; Beddit 
Oy, chairman of the board 2007– 

•	 Owns 11,736 shares in the company  
(1 Mar 2015)

Mervi Paulasto-Kröckel
1966, D.Sc. (Tech.)

•	 Associate Professor (tenured), Aalto 
University School of Electrical Engineering 
2013–

•	 Okmetic Oyj, board member 2011– 

•	 Key employment history: Professor, Aalto 
University School of Electrical Engineering 
2008–2013; Infineon Technologies AG, 
Germany, Director Package Development 
2004–2008; Motorola GmbH, Germany, 
various R&D and management positions 
1996–2004 

•	 Owns 7,851 shares in the company  
(1 Mar 2015)

Mikko Puolakka
1969, M.Sc. (Econ.)  

•	 Chief Financial Officer of Outotec Oyj 
2010–

•	 Okmetic Oyj, board member 2012–

•	 Key employment history: Elcoteq SE, CFO 
2007–2010, Director Finance Europe 
2004–2007; Elcoteq AG, Manager Finance 
2001–2003; Huhtamäki Oyj, Operations 
Controller 1999–2001; Leaf Poland Sp. 
Z.o.o., Manager Finance 1997–1999 

•	 Key board memberships: Oy Gold Gemex 
Ltd, board member 2007–

•	 Owns 6,095 shares in the company  
(1 Mar 2015)

Jan Lång
1957, M.Sc. (Econ.) 

•	 Okmetic Oyj, vice chairman of the board 
2014–

•	 Key employment history: Ahlstrom Oyj, 
President and CEO 2009–2014; Uponor 
Oyj, President & CEO 2003-2008; various 
management positions in Huhtamäki Oyj 
1982-2003

•	 Key board memberships: The Åbo 
Akademi University Endowment, board 
member 2013-; The Finnish Orienteering 
Foundation, chairman of the board 2014-

•	 Owns 3,221 shares in the company  
(1 Mar 2015)

Board of directors
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KAI SEIKKU
1965, M.Sc. (Econ.), President 2010–

•	 With the company since 2010

•	 Key employment history: HKScan 
Corporation, CEO 2005–2009; 
McCann-Erickson, Country 
Chairman 2002–2005; Hasan & 
Partners Oy, CEO 1999–2005; The 
Boston Consulting Group, Project 
Leader 1993–1999; SIAR-Bossard, 
Consultant 1991–1993

•	 Key board memberships: The 
Federation of Finnish Technology 
Industries, board member 2013–; 
Verkkokauppa.com Oyj, board 
member 2013–

•	 Owns 186,670 Okmetic shares, 
180,000 A Options and 180,000 B 
Options (1 Mar 2015)

Atte Haapalinna
1969, D.Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice 
President, Products 2014 - 

•	 With the company since 1998 

•	 Key employment history: Okmetic 
Oyj, Senior Vice President, 
Customer Support Jan-Apr 2014, 
Business Development Manager, 
new business development 
2011-2013, Application Manager 
2008-2011, Senior Application 
Engineer, Customer Support 
Engineer, Development Engineer 
1998-2008; Fraunhofer Institut 
für Produktionstechnologie (IPT), 
Visiting Scientist 2001, Helsinki 
University of Technology, Scientist 
1995 

•	 Owns 1,300 Okmetic shares, 
6,000 A Options and 8,750 B 
Options (1 Mar 2015)

executive management group
JAAKKO MONTONEN
1969, M.Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice 
President, Supply Chain 2010–

•	 With the company since 1994

•	 Key employment history: Okmetic 
Oyj, Senior Vice President, 
Production 2008–2010, 
Senior Vice President, Product 
Development 2004–2007, 
Process and Project Engineer, 
Development Engineer and 
Manager, Vice President 
1994–2004 

•	 Owns 25,693 Okmetic shares, 
18,000 A Options and 40,000 B 
Options (1 Mar 2015)

MARKUS VIRTanen
1962, M.Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice 
President, Human Resources, Quality 
and Environment 2010–

•	 With the company since 1999

•	 Key employment history: Okmetic 
Oyj, Senior Vice President, 
Human Resources 2003–2010, 
Personnel Manager, Deputy 
Vice President 1999–2003; 
Finnish Association of Graduate 
Engineers TEK, Representative, 
Organisation Chief, Director of 
Field Operations, Negotiator for 
Collective Labour Agreements for 
the Metal Industry in Federation 
of Professional and Managerial 
Staff YTN 1989–1999 

•	 Owns 24,370 Okmetic shares, 
14,000 A Options and 20,000 B 
Options (1 Mar 2015)

JUHA JAATINEN
1965, M.Sc. (Econ.), Senior Vice 
President, Finance, IT and 
Communications 2010–

•	 With the company since 2010

•	 Key employment history: Nokia 
Markets, Senior Business 
Controller 2008–2010; Nokia 
Multimedia, Director, Finance and 
Control 2004–2007; Nokia Mobile 
Phones, Business Controller, 
Entertainment Business Unit, 
Development Manager, Financial 
Reporting System Specialist 
1997–2003; ICL Data, Controller 
1995–1997

•	 Owns 16,494 Okmetic shares, 
16,000 A Options and 20,000 B 
Options (1 Mar 2015)

anna-riikka 
vuorikari-antikainen
1965, M.Sc. (Tech.), Senior Vice 
President, Customers and Markets 
2014-

•	 With the company since 1992

•	 Key employment history: Okmetic 
Oyj, Senior Vice President, Products 
2010-2014, Senior Vice President, 
Sensor Business and Product 
Development 2008–2010, Senior 
Vice President, Sensor Business 
Development 2006–2007, Quality 
Engineer and Manager, Production 
Manager, Evaluations Manager, 
Planning Manager 1992–2006

•	 Key board memberships: Airmodus 
Oy, board member 2014-

•	 Owns 26,191 Okmetic shares, 18,000 
A Options and 40,000 B Options  
(1 Mar 2015)
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Annual general meeting
The annual general meeting of Okmetic Oyj will be held on 
Tuesday 14 April 2015 at 10.00 a.m. The meeting will be held 
in the auditorium of the Finnish Aviation Museum in Hel-
sinki-Vantaa airport area, Tietotie 3, Vantaa. The reception 
of the participants who have registered for the meeting and 
the distribution of voting tickets will commence at 9.30 a.m.

All shareholders, who are on 31 March 2015 recorded as 
shareholders in the shareholders’ register held by Euroclear 
Finland Ltd., have the right to attend the meeting. 

Shareholders who wish to attend the meeting should 
register their attendance by Thursday 9 April 2015 at 12.00 
p.m.:

by internet	www.okmetic.com/www/page/general_meeting 

by email		  shareholders@okmetic.com

by telephone	 +358 9 5028 0509

by mail		  Okmetic Oyj, 
		C  ommunications, P.O. Box 44,  
		FI  -01301 Vantaa, Finland

in person		  at the company’s head office at  
		  Piitie 2, Vantaa, Finland

The possible proxy statements should be delivered to the 
head office of Okmetic Oyj within the registration period. 

Proposal regarding the use of 
distributable earnings
The board of directors of Okmetic Oyj proposes to the 
annual general meeting that the company will distribute a 

Information for shareholders

dividend of 0.15 euro per share (in total 2.5 million euro) for 
the financial year 2014 in addition to the dividend of 0.30 
euro per share already paid in January 2015. The board of 
directors’ view is that the company’s strong balance sheet 
enables dividend distribution of 0.45 euro per share in total 
(in total 7.6 million euro) during the beginning of 2015.

Financial calendar 2015
Financial statements bulletin 2014� 13 February

Annual report 2014 on the company’s website� week 13

Annual general meeting� 14 April

Interim report January-March� 29 April

Interim report April-June� 23 July

Interim report July-September� 22 October

Investor relations
The objective of Okmetic’s communications and investor 
relations is to continuously provide correct, adequate, and 
up-to-date information fairly to all market participants. In its 
operation, Okmetic aims at transparency and good service.

Okmetic’s stock exchange releases and presen- 
tation materials are available on the company’s website 
immediately after their publication. On the website 
(www.okmetic.com), IR material is published under the 
Investors section.

Okmetic’s investor relations are the responsibility of 
President Kai Seikku. All questions addressed to him con-
cerning the company can be sent by email to
communications@okmetic.com.

Investor relations and communications 
contacts
Senior Vice President, Finance, IT, and,  
Communications Juha Jaatinen
Communications Officer Laura Peltonen
Communications Officer Tuuli Oja
Communications Officer Marika Mäntymaa  
(on parental leave)

Switchboard	 +358 9 502 800

Fax	 +358 9 5028 0500

Email	 communications@okmetic.com 
	 firstname.lastname@okmetic.com

Silent period
Okmetic’s representatives will not comment the company’s 
financial situation nor meet with any capital market repre-
sentatives during a period of two weeks prior to the publi-
cation of financial statements and interim reports.

Publication orders
Okmetic’s financial reviews and releases are published in 
Finnish and English. 

Stock exchange releases can be ordered:
by telephone	 +358 9 502 800

by email	 communications@okmetic.com

on the Internet	 www.okmetic.com > Contact us
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GLOSSARY

C-SOI: a subgroup of SOI 
wafers (cavity SOI, product 
name Okmetic C-SOI); a 
value-added SOI wafer with 
built-in buried cavities that 
enable the manufacture of 
more advanced MEMS 
components

Discrete semiconductor: a 
separate transistor, diode or 
other semiconductor 
component 

ENIAC: European Technology 
Platform for Nanoelectron-
ics, supports development 
projects of the European 
electronics industry. Was 
replaced in 2014 by the 
ECSEL programme

Epi wafer: a silicon wafer 
with a thin layer of silicon 
grown on its surface in an 
epitaxial reactor 

Fab lite model: a business 
model, in which the com-
pany focuses on its core 
competencies in its in-house 
production and increases 
production capacity by using 
contract manufacturers 

GADSL: Global Automotive 
Declarable Substance List, a 
list of forbidden raw 
materials in the manufac-
ture of materials and parts 
for cars

HV SOI: High Voltage SOI, 
an application area of SOI 
wafers. Typically the 
insulation features of the 
buried oxide in SOI are 
utilised in insulating high 
voltage electronics from 
sensitive low-voltage 
electronics. 

ISO 14001:2004: an interna-
tional standard for the 
management system of 
environmental matters

ISO 9001:2008: an interna-
tional standard for the 
quality system used in the 
company

MEMS: Micro Electro 
Mechanical Systems.  

Polysilicon: the raw material 
for silicon wafers, high 
purity polycrystalline silicon

Power semiconductor: a 
semiconductor component 
used in power electronics

REACH: Registration, 
Evaluation and Authorisation 
of Chemicals; EU directive 
aiming at identification and 
phasing out of the most 
harmful chemical substances

RF: Radio frequency. Used 
to differentiate the technol-
ogy applicable for process-
ing radio frequency signals 
from that applicable for 
processing lower frequency 
signals

RoHS: Restriction of the 
Use of Hazardous Sub-
stances; EU directive, 
purpose of which is to 
approximate the laws of the 
member states on restric-
tions for the use of hazard-
ous substances in electrical 
and electronic equipment

Semiconductor: a material 
which electrical conductivity 
can be heavily modified by 
adding appropriate numbers 
of impurity atoms to it

Sensor: a component that 
measures a variable or 
discerns changes in it (an 
inertial sensor, for example, 
is used to trigger the airbag 
in a car)

Silicon: an element in the 
fourth main group, the most 
common raw material for 
semiconductors

Silicon wafer: a round, thin 
wafer made from a single 
crystal of silicon in diam-
eters of 100, 125, 150, 200, 
or 300 mm, usually mirror 
finished either on one side 
or both sides

SOI wafer: a value added 
silicon wafer (SOI = Silicon 
On Insulator) with a 
sandwich structure; an oxide 
layer on the silicon wafer, 
and a thin silicon film on 
the oxide layer

TS 16949:2009: a quality 
system standard that the 
automotive industry has 
developed for its entire 
subcontracting chain

TSV: Through Silicon Vias. 
(Vertical) vias made to a 
silicon wafer. A technology 
that enables an advanced 
packing technology for 
semiconductor and sensor 
components.

Yield: a ratio that indicates 
how much of the material 
put into production comes 
out according to specifica-
tions

RESEARCH COMPANIES 
AND INDUSTRY 
ORGANISATIONS 
MONITORING THE SENSOR 
AND SEMICONDUCTOR 
MARKETS:
Future Horizons
Gartner 
IC Insights
IHS 
SEMI
Semico 
SIA (Semiconductor Industry 
Association)
VLSIresearch
WSTS (World Semiconductor 
Trade Statistics)
Yole Développement

okmetic annual report 2014 / 92



Analysts

At least the following analysts prepare investment 
analysis on Okmetic on their own initiative. Okmetic 
holds no responsibility for the content of any 
analysis or for any forecasts or recommendations 
that they contain.

Inderes Oy
Mikael Rautanen
Telephone +358 50 346 0321
mikael.rautanen@inderes.com
 
Pohjola Pankki Oyj
Hannu Rauhala
Telephone +358 10 252 4392 
hannu.rauhala@pohjola.com

An up-to-date list of analysts can be found under 
the Investors section on Okmetic’s website  
www.okmetic.com>Investors>Analysts

Contact information

Okmetic Oyj
Vantaa plant and group management
P.O.Box 44, FI-01301 Vantaa, Finland
Piitie 2, FI-01510 Vantaa, Finland
Telephone +358 9 502 800
Fax +358 9 5028 0500

Okmetic Inc.
Allen plant and US sales office
301 Ridgemont Drive,
Allen, TX 75002, USA
Telephone +1 972 747 8600
Fax +1 972 747 8611 

Okmetic K.K.
Japan sales office
Sunrise Mita 8F
3-16-12, Shiba
Minato-ku, Tokyo
105-0014 Japan
Telephone +81 3 3798 1400
Fax +81 3 3798 1402

Okmetic Ltd.
Hong Kong sales office
Level 3A
Causeway Corner
18 Percival Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 
Telephone +852 3656 7858
Fax +358 9 5028 0200

Investor relations and communications
Senior Vice President, Finance, IT, and  
Communications Juha Jaatinen
Communications Officer Laura Peltonen 
Communications Officer Tuuli Oja
Communications Officer Marika Mäntymaa  
(on parental leave)

P.O.Box 44, FI-01301 Vantaa, Finland
Telephone +358 9 502 800
Fax +358 9 5028 0200
communications@okmetic.com, or
firstname.lastname@okmetic.com

Okmetic Oyj
Domicile Vantaa, Finland
Business ID 0596885-4 

www.okmetic.com
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